i

|| ; ANR
P

npn

WESTGATE/BELVEDERE HOMES COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
Monday, June 14, 2021 Board Meeting

1280 N. Congress Ave. Suite 215
West Palm Beach FL 33409

NOTE: Agenda Summary (Pages 3-7)
Staff Report (Pages 8-14)

I. CALLTO ORDER/ROLL CALL
. AGENDA APPROVAL
1. Additions, Deletions, Substitutions to Agenda
2. Adoption of Agenda
. ADOPTION OF W/BH CRA MINUTES (Pages 15-21)
iV. PUBLIC COMMENTS
V. DISCLOSURES
VI. CONSENT AGENDA

1. Approval of Site Development Assistance Program Grant for Elite Capital &
Development (Pages 22-41)

VIl. REGULAR AGENDA

1. Approval of Development Order Abandonment, Development Order
Amendment to an MUPD, Variances for a Limited Access Self-Storage
Facility on Cherry Road (Pages 42-84)

2. Election of Board Chair and Vice-Chair

3. Approval of Ward & Company, P.A., Engagement Letter for FY 2021
Audit Services (Pages 85-93)

4. Approval Funding for Construction and Engineering and Inspection
(CEI) for Belvedere Phase | (Page 94)

5. Authorization Advertise Invitation to Bid (ITB) for the Construction of
the Westgate Dog Park (Pages 95)

1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215, West Palm Beach, Florida 33409 = Tel 561.640.8181 = www,westgaiecra.org



e

VEDERE HOMES

VIl. REPORTS
A. Staff Reports
Correspondence (Pages 96-115)

B. Attorney’s Report
C. Committee Reports and Board Comments

Community Affairs —
Special Events — Chair, Ms. Rufty
Correspondences

1. Administrative/Finance -

2. Capital Improvements — Chair, Mr. Daniels
3. Land Use -

4. Real Estate — Chair, Mr. Kirby

5. Marketing —

6.

7.

8.

IX. ADJOURNMENT

ANY PERSON MAKING IMPERTINENT OR SLANDEROUS REMARKS OR WHO
BECOMES BOISTEROUS WHILE ADDRESSING THE BOARD WILL BE BARRED FROM
FURTHER AUDIENCE BEFORE THE BOARD BY THE PRESIDING OFFICER, UNLESS
PERMISSION TO CONTINUE OR AGAIN ADDRESS THE BOARD AS GRANTED BY A
MAJORITY VOTE OF THE BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT.

IF A PERSON DECIDES TO APPEAL ANY DECISION MADE BY THIS BOARD WITH
RESPECT TO ANY MATTER CONSIDERED AT THIS MEETING, HE WILL NEED A
RECORD OF THE PROCEEDING, AND FOR SUCH PURPOSE HE MAY NEED TO ENSURE
THAT A VERBATIM RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS IS MADE, WHICH RECORD
INCLUDES THE TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE UPON WHICH THE APPEAL IS TO BE
BASED.

ON JUNE 7, 1994, THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS APPROVED
RESOLUTION NO. 94-693, KNOWN AS THE CODE OF ETHICS. UNDER SECTION 11, IT
IS REQUIRED THAT PAID AND UNPAID LOBBYISTS REGISTER. PLEASE REFER TO
SECTONS 11.01 AND 11.02 IN THE CODE OF ETHICS FOR REGISTRATION SPECIFICS.
FOR YOUR USE, REGISTRATION FORMS ARE AVAILABLE FROM THE CRA’S
ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT.

1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215, West Palm Beach, Florida 33409 . Tel 561.640.8181 - www.westgatecra.org

ya



B

AGENDA ITEMS
Westgate/Belvedere Homes CRA Board Meeting
June 14, 2021

CONSENT AGENDA

1. Approval of Site Development Assistance Program Grant for Elite Capital &
Development

A. Background and Summary: Elite Capital & Development Inc. is a housing
development corporation operating in Palm Beach County since 2015. It has built six
single family homes in the Westgate area, two of which on a vacant lot purchése from
the CRA in 2019. They have plans to build more than 20 more single family homes
including two 3-bedroom, 2-bath with 2-car garage on two 50 foot lots on 2810 and
2811 Saranac Ave. These two houses will have 1,400 SF under air, and a total of 1,785
SF under roof including the covered front entry and garage. The developer plans to
provide CBS construction, impact rated windows, pavers driveway and patio, vaulted
ceilings, stainless steel appliances, and other standard features for the houses.

The corporation has requested a grant of $10,000 from the CRA’s Site Development
Assistance Program (SDAP) for the two homes at $5,000 each. The funds would be
used for pre-development expenses, landscaping expenses, exterior stucco, impact
window upgrades and glass doors in accordance with the program guidelines.

The application meets the program eligibility guidelines. The SDAP is a reimbursement
based grant. It provides the funding after the project is completed and certificate of
occupancy is received. '

B. Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of a reimbursement grant of $10,000
from Site Development Assistance Grant Program for Elite Capital & Development Inc.
for 2810 and 2811 Saranac Avenue.,

Page | 1
WCRA Board Meeting
June 14, 2021

1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215 ® Waest Palm Beach, Florida 33409 e Ph561.640.8181 e Fax561.640.8180

5



1.|,?J| nrtn
Hnﬂ

HEIGAEACLVEDRE e

REGULAR AGENDA

1. Approval of Development Order Abandonment, Development Order Amendment to
an MUPD, Variances for a Limited Access Self-Storage Facility on Cherry Road

A. Background and Summary: The subject site is a +/- 3.5-acre property with frontage on
Cherry Road, approx. 500 ft. from N. Military Trail, and is within the Cherry Road Plaza
MUPD. The site has three parcels, and is vacant and undeveloped. The 5.86 acre
MUPD consists of an automated car wash and an 18,000 sf retail building operated by
Badcock Furniture. The MUPD also includes the Greater Yamaha property to the north,
bringing the total size of the entire MUPD to 9.89 acres. The site is within the Urban
Highway (UH) sub-area of the WCRAO and zoned MUPD (Multiple Use Planned
Development). The Future Land Use designation is CH/8 (commercial high with an
underlying residential land use of 8 du per acre). The site is in the U/S Tier, RRIO
(Revitalization, Redevelopment & Infill Overlay), as well as in the URA (Urban
Redevelopment Area). Al Packer Lincoln/Ford, a vehicle sales and rental facility with
ancillary repair and maintenance, is located to the north, zoned CG with a CH/8 FLU. To
the east is a 19.5 ac County-owned property, zoned PO with an INST/IND FLU, utilized
for PBSO and PBC Library storage. To the south, Palm Beach Commons, zoned CG
with a CH/8 FLU; and to the west, outside of CRA district boundaries, is a retail center,
also zoned CG with a CH/8 FLU.

New Request:

The subject site has an approval for a Vehicle Sales and Rental with General Repair
and Maintenance, granted via R-2016-0828 and R-2016-0829 for Phase |l of the overall
MUPD, which must be abandoned by the BCC to allow the proposed use to move
forward; the All-American Trailer Sales development recommended for approval'by the
CRA Board in 2015 is no longer contemplated. The proposed development consists of a
3-story +/- 114,150 sf self-storage Limited Access Self-Storage facility with 1,200 sf of
accessory office to be constructed within the MUPD’s 3.5 ac. vacant property. A Phase
Il is planned for the northwest vacant portion of the subject site for an additional 3-story
+/- 47,000 sf Limited Access Self-Storage building; the area is proposed io be utilized

Page {2 *
WCRA Board Meeting
June 14, 2021

1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215 e Waest Paim Beach, Florida 33408 e Ph561.640.8181 e Fax561.640.8180

4



‘ot

* fnAn
! r?"‘ apn

\EESTG 3.TEBEL\EDERE HOMES

A L RS Y S-SR Bl LR

for outdoor RV/boat storage during Phase | of the development. The proposed
development will add 161,000 sf of limited access self-storage to the entire MUPD. A
site plan depicting both phases is included with the application.

Due to impacts on surrounding uses, self-storage development typically requires Class
A Conditional Use approval by the BCC, however, MUPD zoning allows the use by
DRO approval. The project is proposed to be completed by 2025.

Summary of Petition
The applicant requests a recommendation of approval from the Westgate CRA for the
following:

1. Development Order Abandonment of R-2016-0828 and R-2016-0829 (existing
Conditional Use approval for General Repair and Maintenance and Vehicle Sales and
Rental) for Phase Il only;

2. Development Order Amendment of R-2016-0827 to reconfigure the MUPD site plan,
modify/delete conditions of approval, and allow a +/- 114,150 sf Limited Access Seif-
Storage Facility with 1,200 sf of accessory office;

3. Five (5) Concurrent Type 2 Variances to include:

a) A 100% overlap of an easement into an 8 ft. landscape buffer (Art. 7.C.5.A);

b) Elimination of the required canopy trees within the easternmost 23.5 ft. of the
Cherry Rd. ROW buffer (Table 7.C.2.A);

c) Elimination of the required trees and shrub material in the east buffer (Table
7.C.2.B);

d) Elimination of one tree per terminal landscape island (Table 7.C.4.A);

e) Elimination of one tree and shrubs per interior landscape island along the eastern

property line (Table 7.C.3.A); and,
4. Final DRO Site Plan approval.

B. Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of applicant’s petition to include the
following:
1. Development Order Abandonment of R-2016-0828 and R-2016-0829 (existing
Conditional Use approval for General Repair and Maintenance and Vehicle Sales and
Rental) for Phase Il only;

Page | 3
WCRA Board Meeting
June 14. 2021

1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215 e West Palm Beach, Florida 33405 e Ph561.640.8181 e Fax561.640.8180

D



WESIGATEBELYEDERE HOMES

IR R e

2. Development Order Amendment of R-2016-0827 to reconfigure the MUPD site plan,
modify/delete conditions of approval, and allow a +/- 114,150 sf Limited Access Self-
Storage Facility with 1,200 sf of accessory office;

3. Five (5) Concurrent Type 2 Variances to include:

f) A 100% overtap of an easement into an 8 ft. landscape buffer (Art. 7.C.5.A);

g) Elimination of the required canopy frees within the easternmost 23.5 ft. of the
Cherry Rd. ROW buifer (Table 7.C.2.A);

h) Elimination of the required trees and shrub material in the east buffer (Table
7.C.2.B);

i) Elimination of one tree per terminal landscape island (Table 7.C.4.A);

j) Elimination of one tree and shrubs per interior landscape island along the eastern
property line (Table 7.C.3.A); and,

4. Final DRO Site Plan approval.

2. Election of Board Chair and Vice-Chair

A. Background: In accordance with the CRA By-Laws, Chair and Vice-Chair are elected
for a period of one year. Election for the Board Chair and Vice-Chair should be held
every year and the result forwarded to the Palm Beach County Board of County
Commissioners for formal approval.

B. Recommendation: Board discretion.
3. Approval of Ward & Company, P.A., Engagement Letter for FY 2021 Audit Services.

A. Background and Summary: The CRA is seeking the service of Ward & Company to
audit the financial records of the CRA for fiscal year 2021. The auditors will be
responsible to test the accounting records of the Westgate CRA and perform other
procedures considered necessary to prepare a comprehensive report in accordance
with the standards for financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. It is estimated that a single
audit will not be needed this year. Ward and Company has submitted a proposal for

Page | 4
WCRA Board Meeting
June 14, 2021

1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215 e  West Palim Beach, Florida 33409 e Ph561.640.8181 e Fax561.640.8180

(o



VEGEALDEIO

the work. The company proposes to complete the audit for an amount not to exceed
$22,000.

B. Recommendation: Staff recommends that the Board authorizes staff to engage Ward
and Company, P.A. to provide auditing services for fiscal year ending in September
2021.

4. Approval Funding for Construction and Engineering and Inspection (CEl) for
Belvedere Phase [

A. Background and Summary: The CRA is working with Palm Beach County
Engineering to install streetlights and sidewalks in Belvedere Heights with a grant from the
Florida Department of Transportation. The construction project is scheduled to start this
September. When the project starts, the County will hire consultants for construction
engineering and inspection (CEIl). This cost is estimated at $275,000. The County is
requesting a prepayment for that amount to avoid delaying the project.

B. Recommendation: Staff recommends that the Board authorizes staff to prepay the
County $275,000 for CEl for Belvedere Heights Phase I.

5. Authorization to Advertise Invitation to Bid (ITB) for the Construction of the Westgate
Dog Park

A. Background and Summary: The CRA has received a grant from Solid Waste Authority
to develop a dog park at the corner of Seminole Boulevard and Oswego Avenue. Staff
is seeking permission from the Board to advertise an Invitation to Bid to select a
contractor for the project.

B. Recommendation: Staff recommends that the Board authorizes the advertisement of
the ITB for the Westgate Dog Park.

Page | 5
WCRA Board Meeting
June 14, 2021

1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215 ¢  West Palm Beach, Florida 33409 e Ph561.640.8181 e Fax561.640.8180

-



Page | 1

WESTGATE/BELVEDERE HOMES CRA BOARD MEETING
June 14, 2021

Staff Update on In-House Projects

CDBG Funding for Demolition of CRA-Properties (STARTED)

In April 2021 the Board approved a request to authorize PBC DHES to demolish 4 vacant homes on
CRA-owned properties on Cherokee and Westgate Avenues. The CRA purchased the properties in
2018 with the optic of holding the land for private redevelopment. The homes are severely dilapidated,
structurally unsafe, and have become a magnet for criminal activity, contributing to slum and blight in
the community, particularly on Westgate Avenue. Staff applied to a DHES program to access CDBG
funding for the demolition of the homes. The process is to be adminisiered and managed by DHES staff
who will be responsible for procuring contractors, administering the mitigation of asbestos and lead
based paint, and ensuring that the demolition process follows all federal guidelines. The DHES
contractor will acquire all necessary permits and complete the work. The CRA will likely plant grass
following site clearance. The demolition is anticipated to cost $60-80,0000.

2021-01 ULDC Amendment Round (INITIATED)

The CRA is seeking to make amendments to the WCRAO in the first round of 2021. The following are
highlights: corrective and clarifying amendments to overlay language and tables generally; introducing
a new housing type called “South Westgate Estates Single Family Alternative” which allows smaller
single family homes, limited to 45% building coverage, to be constructed on 25' wide lots; creating a 10’
minimum front and side street setback in the UH Sub-area; and, exempting all development in the
WCRAO to the provisions of Art. 3.D.1.E.2 which states that a structure must be set back one foot for
each foot of height over 35' — applying this provision conflicts with build. to line and frontage
requirements.

This round of ULDC amendments was initiated by the Zoning Division at the January 28" BCC
meeting. A draft of the amendment language was presented to the LDRAB on April 28th with a
unanimous recommendation and no changes requested by the LDRAB. The 1% reading of the
amendments is scheduled for July 22" with adoption by the BCC on August 26%, 2021,

Background: Amendments to the County’s Unified Land Development Code (ULDC) occur twice
annually. The CRA regularly participates in this process to update areas of its WCRA Zoning Overlay to
better achieve the goals and objectives of the agency and the amended Community Redevelopment
Plan, respond to industry and market trends, simplify processes, and correct technical and language
glitches.

2021 Comprehensive Plan Amendments (STARTED}

The Planning Division is initiating amendments to the WCRAO in the Future Land Use and
Transportation Elements of the Comp Plan. FLUE amendments will address an outdated policy
allowing a 20% commercial bonus increase without amendments to the FLUA, and TE amendments will
update policies related to WDRAQO Density Bonus Program income categories following the adoption of
the 2020-02 amendments to the DBP in the ULDC. Amendments may also include updates to the
WCRAO narratives in both elements. Planning will take the lead in drafting amendment language.

COVID-19 Small Business Emergency Relief Forgivable Loan Program (ONGOING)

The Board approved the Program at their June meeting. The program is advertised on our website as
well as Facebook page. Staff completed a direct mail out promoting the availability of the program to

@



Page[2

Westgate businesses at the end of August. Business types are screened by uses permitted in certain
WCRAO sub-areas. Interest in the program has been robust. Five (5) applications were approved by
the Board at their September 2020 meeting; four (4) more were approved by the Board at their October
2020 meeting; 1 application was approved at the November 2020 meeting; and one application was
approved at the January 2021 meeting. The program budget spans two budget years: $50,000 was
allocated to FY 19/20 and $100,000 is allocated to FY 20/21. The program has budget capacity for four
more applications. Two businesses applied for and received loan forgiveness by the Board in February
2021.

Background: Small businesses have suffered financial loss and hardship due to the COVID-19 crisis.
Small businesses in the CRA district with less than 25 employees can apply for up to $10,000 in
financial assistance in the form of a forgivable loan for eligible expenses associated with rent, payroll
support, inventory purchases, utilities, expenses associated with technology upgrades to facilitate
remote working, and/or expenses associated with the reconfiguration of interior spaces fo
accommodate a 6’ physical separation. First come, first served basis. $150,000 from the CRA’s FY
19/20 and 20/21 budgets has been allocated to the program.

Public Assistance Grant (ONGOING)

FEMA has approved nearly $100,000 to pay for debris removal, and clean up detention ponds as a
result of Hurricane Irma. Staff is working with the Florida Department of Emergency Management to
implement this project.

Community Garden/Greenmarket (ONGOING)

Update: The Plat has been granted technical compliance. Following the completion of corner clip
dedications, the project can move into the permitting phase. Electricity, an irrigation pump and an
irrigation system have been installed. Staff is working on developing a design and securing a contractor
for site improvements and installation of a pre-manufactured structure to act as a permanent
greenmarket. ‘

Background: Staff engaged Schmidt-Nichols (SN) to prepare a site plan for the community garden and
the green market. The CRA initiated new regulations to allow green markets to operate as an
accessory to community gardens without having to buffer surrounding residential uses with an opaque
wall and 20 ft landscape buffer. The site plan includes an enclosed structure with a bathroom and a
walk-in cooler. The community garden/greenmarket received site plan approval in March 2018.

CRA staff proposed amendment language, adopted in the 2018-02 Round, to eliminate the community
garden use from landscaping requiremenis, and modified code language regarding hours of operation
and building size and placement for the accessory greenmarket use. Schmidt Nichols submitted an
administrative amendment (ZAR) to remove the landscape buffers and ROW utility easement. The ZAR
was approved in April 2019. The permits have been approved to operate the cornmunity garden. The
electrician and plumbing contractors are working with the utility companies. The CRA will begin to work
with a contractor/architect to design the greenmarket structure and prepare plans to submit for building
permit. Platting is a condition of approval and is underway.

PBC Solid Waste Authority (SWA) Blighted & Distressed Properties Grants

FY 18/19 — Oswego Avenue Properties Clean-up - Westgate Dog Park (STARTED)

Update: CRA staff will issue an ITB (Invitation to Bid) to construct the park on June 20™, following
Board approval on June 14™ A revised cost estimate, generalized to reflect increases in construction



Page | 3

- and materials costs, prepared by Schmidt Nichols projects the budget on the project to reach
approximately $143,500 with contingency. The SWA grant will fund $92,700 of the project with the
CRA’s responsibility at $50,800. Staff will review bid submittals 30 days after ITB issuance, and bring
the tabulations to the Board for final selection at their August meeting.

The CRA has paid a landscape contractor to remove invasive trees, vegetation and debris on the sites.
An additional time extension of the grant agreement has been provided by the SWA.

Staff worked with Schmidt Nichols on the dog park design. A site and landscape plan, along with cost
estimate have been provided. The CRA is also working with County Purchasing to see if the agency
can utilize the County’s annual contract “piggyback” policy. The remaining lots will be cleared, sodded,
and fence commensurate with the original scope.

Background: The CRA was awarded in the amount of $92,700 to clean-up, clear, sod and fence 6
vacant CRA-owned properties on Oswego Avenue east of Seminole Blvd. previously earmarked for the
L-2 Canal Expansion project. The CRA is proposing match funds in the amount of $34,460. An
Interlocal Agreement between the CRA & SWA was approved by the BCC in March 2018. The CRA
received a 50% disbursement of {otal funds in April 2018.

SWA has approved an extension to the grant timeline and a change of scope to develop a dog park on
three of the Oswego Avenue parcels targeted for the properties clean-up. The dog park will include
areas and equipment for small and large dogs, fencing, landscaping, and benches. By the fall of 2018,
the LWDD cleared a majority of the vegetation overgrowth along the L-2 canal leaving a window of
opportunity in the budget to create a simple dog park and still maintain the overall budgeted amount.

PBC _Transportation Planning Agency (TPA} Transportation Alternatives (TAP} & Local
Initiatives (LI} Grants

FY20 Cherry Road Pedestrian & Safety Improvements (NEW)

Update: The Cherry Road project received approval for funding by the TPA Governing Board in July,
2020.

The CRA engaged consultants, WGI to refine the Cherry Rd. improvements project for TPA TAP grant
application submittal in the 2020 cycle. CRA Staff and WGI worked with Engineering on improving the
proposed typical sections. The project proposes reduced with travel lanes for traffic calming, new
sidewalks on the south side of Cherry Rd east and west of the bridge to the intersection of Country
Club Rd., a new 12’ shared multi-use path on the north side of the corridor, new crosswalks, pedestrian
scale lighting, and shade trees where allowed. The total project cost is $1.96 million. The grant
reimburses $1 million. The application was submitted to the TPA on February 28, 2020.

FY19 and Seminole Blvd. Complete Streets (FUNDED/ONGOING)

Update: The Transportation Planning Agency Governing Board approved funding for the Seminole Blvd
project at their July 18" meeting. The Seminole project was ranked #1. Staff and WG] presented the
projects to FDOT and BTPAC in early April; Semincle was ranked #1 and Cherry Rd was #4. The
Board recommended that the Seminole Blvd project should be pricritized since it ranked higher and is a
iarger project.

Background: The Board approved a two-fold work assignment with WGI in November 2018 to prepare
a feasibility analysis to identify the best two projects to submit to the TPA for the 2019 Transportation
Alternatives Program (TAP) cycle. Based on findings presented by WGI, the Board selected the
following projects:

1. Seminole Blvd Complete Streets which expands existing sidewalks to 10-12 ft. multi-use paths on
each side of the roadway, adds high visibility crosswalks at each intersection, adds pedestrian scale

VO



Page | 4

lighting, and shade trees. The project boundaries are from Okeechobee Blvd. to Oswego Ave. Total
construction cost is $1,622,979. The grant reimburses $1 million.

TAP grant projects are designed and constructed within 3 years of pricritized funding. Design will begin
in 2020 with construction completion in 2022.

FY18 — Westgate Avenue Corridor Complete Streets (DESIGN 50% COMPLETE)

Update: Design has begun on the Westgate Avenue project and must be completed by July 2021
Design is moving forward without a roundabout. CRA Staff met with County Roadway Production and
the project consulting engineers in February to discuss the design, scope and timeline of the project.
The CRA has been asked to provide input on lighting design and landscaping.

A County Selection Committee met in November 2019 and selected American Consulting Engineers of
Florida (ACE) to design the project. CRA staff was in attendance for the presentations and scoring. The
County Engineering Department had shortlisted three firms for the project, including CRA consultants
WGI, however, volume of previous work was an overriding factor in selection.

Background Information: Staff engaged WGI to coordinate the preparation of travel demand forecast
modelling to determine the impact of reducing Westgate Ave from & lanes to 3 lanes utilizing a road diet
approach. WGI facilitated communication with PBC TPA and Engineering to determine the best design
alternative, held a public input meeting, and drafted the final design for the project be used to obtain
funding. WGI met with the Engineering Department to present the lane elimination plan. County staff is
in support of the lane reduction from Wabasso to Congress, but they are not in support of the elevated
landscape median. An alternative design, which allows for 3 lanes (2 thru lanes and one center turn
lane), bike lanes, and floating landscape islands on both sides of the ROW alternating with on street
parking was presented to County Engineering for approval and support. With assistance from WG, the
LI grant application was submitted on March 2, 2018. CRA staff is working with County Engineering
and Administration to design and administer all 3 of the TPA grant projects.

The TPA Governing Board voted to adopt the TPA List of Priority Projects for the LRTP FY 2020-2024
at their September 20, 2018 meeting. Projects that met TPA and FDOT eligibility requirements were
ranked by internal advisory boards, committees and TPA Staff to be forwarded the Governing Board.
The Westgate Avenue Complete Streets project was ranked #1 of 8 entries to receive Local Initiatives
Program funding. This project has been moved up the timeline due to the inability of other funded
projects to proceed. Design can start in July 2019 for FY 2019/20. Construction funding will be
approved after the design is completed.

FY18 — Phase Il Belvedere Heights Streetlights & Sidewalks (DESIGN STARTED)

Update: The BCC is considering an agenda item on June 16" for the design of this second phase. The
TPA Governing Board voted to adopt the TPA List of Priority Projects for the LRTP FY 2020-2024 at
their September 20, 2018 meeting. Projects that met TPA and FDOT eligibility requirements were
ranked by internal advisory boards, committees and TPA Staff to be forwarded the Governing Board.
Phase |l of the Belvedere Heights Streetlights and Sidewalks project was ranked #3 of 4. This project
has been moved up the timeline due to the inability of other funded projects to proceed. Design can
start in July 2019, Construction funding will be approved after the design is completed. The CRA needs
to execute an MOU and provide upfront funding to the County for design.

Background Information: CRA staff prepared and submitted a Transportation Alternatives Program
(TAP) grant application for Phase I| — Wellington Road to Bridgeman Road, of the Belvedere Heights
Neighborhood for sidewalks and streetlights to PBC TPA in March 2018.

FY17 — Phase | Belvedere Heights Streetlights & Sidewalks (DESIGN COMPLETE)
Update: The neighborhood has experienced chronic poor drainage and the water mains have reached

\\



Page | 5

the end of their useable life and must be replaced. Mock Roos, the contractor for the
sidewalks/streetlights project requested that PBC Water Utilities do the water main work prior to the
installation of sidewalks and they have agreed; Mock Roos will also do this work. Engenuity Group has
been working on a drainage design for the area and a request has been made for Water Utilities in
collaboration with Engineering to do this work ahead of sidewalk installation as well. Water main
replacement will occur January thru March, 2021 with drainage in March thru July, 2021. Construction
on the sidewalks project is set to begin in August 2021.

Engineers are preparing the second part of the design. The Engineering Department has engaged
several consultants through a CRA/County MOU to implement the project. Design is almost completed.
The County is currently reaching out to the residents.

Background Information: An application was submitted to the TPA Transportation Alternatives Grant to
request almost $1 Million to install sidewalks and streetlights in Belvedere Heights in 2017. The funds
will not be available until 2019. The BCC approved Engineering Department sponsorship of the project
via resolution in May 2018,

CRA Strategic Plan [ONGOING)

CRA staff is continuing to work on a 5-year strategic plan that will implement the goals and objectives of
the amended Redevelopment Plan. A strategic plan will outline the specific tasks, timeline and budget
required for redevelopment activities over the next 5 years. It can also serve as a platform for the CRA
to refine its vision and mission statement in a way that is current with its shifting priorities. Staff has
received some initial input from Board members. Work on the Strategic Plan is ongoing.

Streetlights for Belvedere Homes {ONGOING)

The Engineering Department is partnering with Office and Community Revitalization to install streetlight
in Belvedere Homes. An initial meeting has been held. Citizens are currently gathering signatures and
easement authorization from residents and property owners.

\ 2L



Proposed Private Redevelopment Projects

Page | 6

Below is list of private development projects in the Westgate CRA that are in the entitlements or the

permitting process:

Projects

Address

Status

Cherry Road Plaza MUPD

Cherry Rd

ABN, DOA, Variances, DRO approval for
a 161,000 sf (phased) self-service storage
facility

Broward Motorsports

2300 Okeechobee Blvd

DOA to address phased plan, additional
square footage for storage & retail, access

Murphy Express Gas
Station/C-store

1010 Military Trail (Walmart
MUPD)

In Zoning

Demolish vacant Walgreens & relocate
and expand existing Murphy Express and
add c-store

Palm Key Apartments

Cherokee Ave

In Zoning
7 townhome-style multifamily units on .46
ac — utilizing CRA density bonus units

“1713 Quail (former Opportunity
Inc.)

1713 Quail Drive

In Zoning

Repurposing existing building for new
medical office use

Rezoning to CG, multiple variances

Museo Vault self-service
storage (now Uovo Art)

4200 Westgate Ave

in Zoning
proposing a 4-story, 50,000 sf fine art and
antique storage facility

Autumn Ridge LITC mixed use

Congress Ave

In Zoning

106 units by Landmark Construction, 90%
of units at or below 60% of AMI — 77 DBP
units, TCEA and rezoning from RM to CG

Soapy Shark Car Wash
{formerly KFC/Jack's)

2200 Okeechobee Blvd.

In permitting
DRO Approval & 6 variances required

Duplex development

1115 Osceola

LHitizing 1 WCRA density bonus unit, non-
conforming lot

Small Home project

2611 Saranac

Construction on first 7 units has begun in
early 2021

1-acre site newly subdivided into 14 25 ft.
lots for smali homes

Congress Avenue -
Greene Apartments

1600 N. Congress Ave

DRO approved — project now in permitting
198 units (138 density bonus units from
WCRA pool; 55 income restricted)
SFWMD permit received at end of July
utilizing available acre feet from the
Preserve

MacDonald Industrial/McArthur
Dairy

N. Florida Mango

On hold

Type 2 waiver for extended hours of
operation. BCC approved January.
Construction to begin mid 2019

Mi Pais Express (Fernandez)
Mixed Use

2633 Westgate Ave

CONSRUCTION NEARING
COMPELTION!

Dos Hermanos Mixed Use

Westgate & Seminole Blvd

Administratively withdrawn
Rezoning & variances approved. DRO site
plan approval. New architect

Westgate One

Westgate at Nokomis

On hold

Approved/ Extension.

\D



Page | 7

| 4



WESTGATE/BELVEDERE HOMES COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
1280 N. CONGRESS AVE., SUITE 215, WEST PALM BEACH, FL. 33409
MINUTES OF THE MONTHLY MEETING

May 10, 2021

CALL TO ORDER (IN PERSON MEETING BROADCASTED ON ZOOM PLATFORM)

Mr. Daniels, the Board Chair, called the meeting to order at 5:20p.m. The roll was called
by Ms. Bui.

Present: Ronald Daniels
Joanne Rufty
Ruth Haggerty
Joseph Kirby

Absent: Ralph Lewis
Yeraldi Benitez

Staff Present: Elizée Michel, Executive Director
Denise Pennell, Senior Planner
Carmen Geraine, Bookkeeper
Mai Bui, Administrative Assistant
Thomas J. Baird, Esq., General Counsel (Virtually Via Zoom}

Others Present:  Enol Gilles, Dorritt Miller, Assistant County Administrator, Deputy
George Gomez, Deputy Adam Robinson, Keith Jackson, PE,
Engenuity Group, CRA Engineer (All Virtually Via Zoom)

AGENDA APPROVAL

1. Additions, Deletions, Substitutions to Agenda

- No Deletions, Substitutions to Agenda

2. Adoption of Agenda

- ltwas moved by Ms. Rufty and seconded by Ms. Haggerty to adopt the Agenda
as amended. Motion carried (4-0)

ADOPTION OF W/BH CRA MINUTES

- Itwas moved by Ms. Haggerty and seconded by Ms. Rufty to adopt the minutes
of the April 12, 2021 meeting. Motion carried (4-0)

PUBLIC COMMENT

\5



Westgate/Belvedere Homes CRA Minutes of the Monthly Meeting
May 10, 2021
Page 2

- PBSO Deputy Robinson and Deputy Gomez gave a brief report to the Board

about police activities in the Westgate CRA area for the previous month.

- Ms. Wolliston, a neighborhood resident expresses her concerns of elevated
crimes that she has noticed in the community in the Golfview Neighborhood.

Deputy Robinson responded and addressed her concerns.
V. DISCLOSURES

- No disclosures

VI. CONSENT AGENDA
- No Consent Agendas

VIl. REGULAR AGENDA

The regular meeting was suspended at 5:30p.m. to conduct Board nominations.
Haggerty nominated Mr. Gilles to fill Seat #1. No other nominations were offered.
Haggerty nominated Mr. Kirby to fill Seat #2. No other nominations were offered.
Haggerty nominated Mr. Lewis to fill Seat #3. No other nominations were offered.

Ms.
Ms.
Ms.
Ms.

Haggerty nominated Ms. Rufty to fill Seat #7. No other nominations were offered.
Nominations will be sent to the Board of County Commissioners for their consideration.

1.

Development Order Amendment for Broward Motorsports of Palm Beach: 2300
Okeechobee Blvd

Mr. Michel and Ms. Pennell introduced the item and the applicant's representatives
Attorney Susan Taylor, Perry & Taylor, PA and Pat Lentini, from 2GHO. Also in attendance
to represent the owners were J.J. Sciarrino, director of operations and Peter Laurelli,
general manager of the West Palm Beach branch. Susan reminded the Board that
Broward Motorsports sells a wide variety of recreational vehicles and has operated in the
area for a number of years. The site is approved for and operates a Vehicle Sales and
Rental, Light as the principal use The current use is vested but the proposed changes
require a Development Order Amendment with the County. The subject site is located on
the southwest corner of Okeechobee Bivd. and Congress Ave. Broward Motorsports of
Palm Beach, is 3.87 acres in total and consists of a 24,805 sf., one and two story
showroom sales and office as depicted on the map. The current site is also approved for
a Phase |l that includes a one story 15,496 sf. inventory storage structure in the back that
has not been built. This application will eliminate the Phase |l storage building and add the
two proposed new vehicle showroom areas on the east (at 2,949 sf.} and west (at 2,231

\Wo



Woestgate/Belvedere Homes CRA Minutes of the Monthly Meeting
May 10, 2021
Page 3

sf.) sides of the building totaling 5,180 sf. The plan is being modified slightly to address
the new showroom and reconfigure the site plan to remove the previously approved Phase
2 inventory storage building from the overall square footage; and to make minor
adjustments to the site parking areas and circulation to accommodate new vehicle
showroom space. The application is necessary to bring the site into compliance to rectify
some code violations identified by Palm Beach County. (The site has been the subject of
two code enforcement cases: for enclosing areas without permit not pursuant to the
approved site plan, and for using Suwanee Dr. to the west for loading and unloading, as
well as utilizing parking spaces for vehicle storage).

The Future Land Use is CH/8 Commercial High/8; the Zonin is CG — General Commercial;
the site is 3.84 acres; the total building area will be 29,985 SF (24,805 s.f. existing and
5,180 s.f. proposed); 121 parking spaces are required; 170 spaces including 2 motorcycle
paces are provided.

Staff added that the existing building does not currently meet all the sub-area regulations.
There may be a need to also apply for a variance in the future.

The application requests the following amendments associated with the development
order approved via #R-2002-1046:

1. A Development Order Amendment to modify the approved site plan, including
associated conditions of approval as necessary, to add 5,180 sf. of vehicle
showroom, remove a planned 15,496 sf. inventory storage structure, and
reconfigure parking and site circulation;

2. An increase of 123 net new trips per day and 11 pm peak hour trips, from the
existing vested use to be allocated from the WCRA Transportation Concurrency
Exception Area (TCEA) pool.

3. Any variances necessary to bring the site into compliance with current ULDC and
WCRAO regulations; and,
4. Final DRO site plan approval.

Staff recommends:

1. A Development Order Amendment to modify the approved site plan, including
associated conditions of approval as necessary, to add 5,180 sf. of vehicle
showroom, remove a planned 15,496 sf. inventory storage structure, and
reconfigure parking and site circulation;

2. An increase of 123 net new ftrips per day and 11 pm peak hour trips, from the
existing vested use to be allocated from the WCRA Transportation Concurrency
Exception Area (TCEA) pool.

\ '



Westgate/Belvedere Homes CRA Minutes of the Monthly Meeting

May 10, 2021
Page 4
3. Any variances necessary to bring the site into compliance with current ULDC and
WCRADO regulations; and,
4, Final DRO site plan approval.

it was moved by Ms. Rufty and seconded by Mr. Kirby to approve staff

recommendations. The motion passed unanimously (4-0)

21-01 Round of ULDC Amendments

Ms. Pennell presented the item to the Board. She informed the Board that a few other
items that need more coordination with other Department will be considered in the next

round of amendments. This round will introduce an alternative single family housing type

to allow smaller dwelling on 25’ wide lots and clarifies a few other regulations.
Amendment Timeline

BCC Initiation & draft due to Zoning November 25, 2020
Zoning & Agencies Round Tables April 15 & 16, 2021
Land Development Regulations Advisory Board (LDRB) Meeting  April 28, 2021

BCC Request for Permission to Advertise June 24, 2021
BCC 1st Reading July 22, 2021
BCC 2nd Reading & Adoption August 26, 2021

Part 1 amends Art. 3.B.14.E, WCRAQ Use Regulations and Table

O Amends Table 3.B.14.E, WCRAO Sub-area Use Regulations by introducing the
“South Westgate Single Family Housing Alternative.” This alternative allows
smaller dwellings that can be built on 25 wide lots. This new SF model, named
“South Westgate Estates Single Family Alternative” will only be allowed in the
NRM Sub-area, an area of the overlay which generally corresponds to original
South Westgate Estates subdivision plat. This alternative housing type differs
from cottage homes in that there is no 1,000 sf size cap; unit size is determined
by setbacks and building coverage. Also differs from the standard SF model
which is allowed in the NR and NRM Sub-areas on 50’ wide lots. Add a note to
South Westgate Estates Single Family Alternative which allows the building
coverage to increase by up to 10% to accommaodate covered front porches and

\S



Westgate/Belvedere Homes CRA Minutes of the Monthly Meeting
May 10, 2021
Page 5

rear patios, as well as a provision maximizing the size of attached garages to
15% of building coverage

Part 2 amends Art. 3.B.14.F, WCRAO Property Development Regulations and Tables

O It adds PDRs for the South Westgate Estates Single Family Alternative and
revises PDRs for Cottage Homes to be more consistent with ULDC standards.

0 It also Deletes “build to line 10-25™ in the UH Sub-area and instead add a “min.
10" front setback to better allow for front and side setback flexibility for existing
small, sub-standard sites along Okeechobee Blvd. between Shawnee and Indian,
while ensuring existing larger development setback a minimum of 50’ on
Okeechobee Blvd. and Military Trail remains conforming

0 Part 2 also exempt buildings over 35’ from the requirements of ULDC 3.D.1.E.2
in standard code which states that a structure must be set back an additional foot
for every foot of height over 35’. Applying this provision would conflict with form
based code requirements for build to line and frontage.

Part 3 of the Amendment corrects minor errors where table cells were left blank or note
numbers incorrectly referenced.

Staff recommends that the Board authorizes staff to collaborate with the Palm Beach
County Zoning Division to process the above amendment.

Ms. Haggerty asked what was the approximate square footage targeted for the new
“South Westgate Estates Single Family Alternative” homes?

Ms. Pennell responded the maximum building is 45%, from setback is 20, rear 10, a one
story can yield about 1,200 to 1,300 square feet. There is an allowance for covered
porches and patios where the building coverage can increase by 10%, to allow for some
architecture interests to these units. There is also a provision that allows 15% for an
attached garage.

it was moved by Ms. Haggerty and seconded by Ms. Rufty collaborate with the
Palm Beach County Zoning Division to process the above amendment. The
motion passed unanimously (4-0)

VIIl. STAFF REPORTS

Ms. Pennell updated the Board about 4200 Westgate Avenue. The Museo Vault project
was sold to another group, Rovo Fine Art Project. The site plan was slightly modified and
an administrative letter to approve the changes were forwarded to the County Zoning
Department.

\Q



Westgate/Belvedere Homes CRA Minutes of the Monthly Meeting
May 10, 2021
Page 6

Mr. Keith Jackson disclosed that his firm is working on the Broward Motorsports Project.

Ms. Liliana and Mr. Keith Jackson from Engenuity Group update the Board on the
Belvedere Heights Project Phase |. The project has been mobilized. Materials will be
brought to the site in the next coming week. The design for Phase Il has been approved.
Phase | is scheduled to be completed by the end of August. Engenuity will be providing
inspection services for the Belvedere Heights project.

Ms. Dorritt Miller thanked the Board and staff for their diligent work.

Mr. Baird updated the Board about the closing of the Cherokee property being bought from
Elite Capital.

Mr. Baird also advised the Board on the Danza Group proposal to prelease office space
in the proposed Seminole Bivd. and Westgate Avenue site. Mr. Baird suggests that if the
Board wants to authorize the prelease, the Board needs fo seek indemnification from the
Danza Group. He is concerned that if the Danza Group preleases properties that the CRA
owns and takes deposits from prospective tenants, there may be some legal
entanglements that need to be considered.

As for preleasing office to the CRA, the Board needs to consider the terms of the lease to
make sure the Board can enter into a 20-year lease with the Group. Mr. Baird expresses
concerns about the Group’s request for a $10,000 deposit for properties that they have
not yet acquired.

Mr. Baird does not support authorizing Danza to prelease office space at this time. He
doesn't recommend either the agreement to prelease office space and pay the deposit. If
the Board wants to move forward with any of those requests, he suggests that the Board
modify the Option Agreement and include languages in there to protect their interests.

Ms. Rufty stated that she doesn’t support either the prelease, the lease agreement nor the
$10,000 deposit.

Mr. Kirby asks what are the chances that the project will come to fruition.

Mr. Baird stated that there are a lot of things that need fo happen. First, the Danza Group
will have to obtain entitlement from the County to be able to provide office space on the
site and also receive funding from lenders other than the CRA. Until those things happen,
it is difficult to say if the project will come to fruition.

There was a consensus from the Board not to consider Danza’s request to prelease office
space, and not to enier into a long term lease agreement with the Danza Group at this
time.

There was no other report.
IX. AJOURNMENT

It was moved by Ms. Rufty and seconded by Ms. Haggerty to adjourn the meeting.
The meeting adjourned at 6:10p.m.

20



Westgate/Belvedere Homes CRA Minutes of the Monthly Meeting
May 10, 2021
Page 7

7 Mai Bui

\'/ {( @ Administrative Assistant, Westgate CRA

2.\



Elite Capital & Development Inc
2465 Mercer Ave, Suite 303
West Palm Beach, FL, 33401

05/31/2021

RE: 2811 & 2810 Saranac Ave, West Palm Beach, FL 33409 — SDAP

Dear WCRA,

We are reaching out as a small developer in Palm Beach County. We have been operating in
West Palm Beach since 2015 and specialize in providing affordable housing for the population
of the area. You may remember us back in February 2019 when we presented and got
approval to purchase your former parcel off Genessee Ave, where we built two new single-
family residences. We have since then built six of our Andre Model in the Westgate Area over
the past year, and we are adding two more on our sites located at 2811 & 2810 Saranac Ave.,
We also have 18 single family alternatives {houses in 25’ lots) in the works, for a total of 26
NEW housing in the WCRA. We consider ourselves the Singfe-Family leader in the area,
opening doors for more developer to follow our path. We are applying for $10,000 (55,000
per dwelling) from the Site Development Assistance Program fund in order to help with the
development of our two properties off Saranac Ave. Our company’s projected revenue for
FY2021 = 5.3m, FY2022 = 4.8m and FY2023 = 4.8m.

Project Narrative

The “Saranac” project consists of a 100’ x 115’ site that used to have an old house on it, which
we demolished. The land was already subdivided into two 50’ x 115’ parcels with their own
PCNs, making it easier for development. The Andre model that we have been building is a 3-
bedroom, 2 baths with a 2-car garage. It has right around 1,400 SF under air, and a total of
1,785 SF under roof including the covered front entry and garage. The architecture and
finishes are modern, compatible and meeting today’s buyer’s demand and taste.

1iPage



We offer a very competitive product for the price, with top-of-the line materials and quality.,
All of our homes are CBS construction, impact rated glass, tankless water heater, modern
finishes, 42" cabinets with Dallas White granite stone, pavers driveway and patio, vaulted
ceilings, stainless steel appliances, and so many more standard features that are not being
charged as extra. We have received exceptional feedback from our buyers, most of them first-
time homebuyers. The Saranac properties and‘our Andre model is consistent with what is
allowed by the NRM Sub-Area Property Development Regulations of the Land Development
and Florida Building Code.

We understand that the SDAP has some eligible and ineligible expenses, all subject to Board’s
approval. As per the guidelines, the following elements should be eligible and this is what we
plan on using the grant towards; Pre-Development Expenses (site design, architecture,
engineering, entitlement and permitting), Landscaping Expenses, Exterior Stucco, Installation
of Parking Areas (stone pavers used in our case} and Exterior Windows upgrade {full hurricane
impact windows and glass doors). We are including with this application a breakdown of our
construction budget, some photos from the same model built in the area, and a copy of the
floor plan & elevations, building permit and warranty deed confirming our ownershli‘p.

We trust that this complete application will be acceptable for the WCRA members and their
Board for grand approval. We have been very involved in the Westgate area over the past 3
years, making the community better and providing much needed affordable housing to its

residents.

Do not hesitate to contact us with any questions.

Best regards,

Philippe O Boucher, Founder and CEO.

2|Page




SITE DEVELOPMENT ASSISTANCE PROGRAM APPLICATION

Applicant Name: Philippe O Boucher, CEO

Business Name: Elite Capital & Development Inc.

Business Address: 2465 Mercer Ave, Suite 303

West Palm Beach, FL 33401

Mailing Address (if different than above):

561-475-6700

Phone:
Email: info@elitecapdev.com
Website: www.dpehomesrealty.com

Property Control Number (PC#): _00-43-43-30-03-050-0460 + 00-43-43-30-03-050-0480

EIN#: 81-0771126

Applicant’s business/development site is:
(attach copy of muiti-year lease or warranty deed)

X Owned O Leased

Applicant’s project includes: {check alf that apply)

d Exterior Lighting ] Landscaping ] Roof Repair

Ul Commercial Parking O Exterior Signage X New Construction
O] Expansion/Rengvation of an existing building

Project Budget:

1. Interior Renovations/Improvements: §

2. Exterior Renovations/Improvements: $

3. Pre-development/Permitting: §

4, Total Project Budget: § 606,100

Are you applying for grant assistance under any other program offered by the CRA: Yes [ No [XI

If so, what other programs are you applying for:

Have you been approved for funding by the CRA Board: Yes [l No [XI If so, amount: $ ?
4

245



Please read the section below carefully. Afier you have read the entire application, sign the form below
and submit your completed application to the CRA offices.

1, the undersigned, being a principal of the business applying for assistance under the Site Development
Assistance Program, certify that the business in the Westgate/Belvedere Homes Community Redevelopment
Area within the unincorporated area of Palm Beach County.

| understand that the CRA may, at its sole discretion, discontinue subsidy payments at any time if in its sole and
absolute determination it feels such assistance no longer meets the program criteria or no longer furthers the
Westgate CRA Community Redevelopment Plan. '

| understand that this application is not a guarantee of assistance. Should my application be approved, i
understand that | am committing to completing the project | have represented in this application and obtaining
a Certificate of Occupancy or the necessary satisfactory inspection notices signifying that the work has been
done in accordance with County ordinances and codes. | agree to obtain all necessary County or other
governmental or State approvals and/or licenses prior to beginning any work. Failure te do so may jeopardize
my ability to receive reimbursement under this grant program.

I understand that the project represented in this application must receive CRA Board approval before the work
is completed in order to be eligible for reimbursement.

| have read this program brochure in its entirety and by signing below accept the terms of the program as
represented in this brochure. 1 understand that if this application is submitted incomplete, it will not be
processed.

W

Aﬂplicant‘s Signature

Printed Name Date
APPLICATION CHECKLIST

The completed application must include the following items prior to processing:

Signed and completed application form

Business Plan or Executive Summary, including a narrative describing the business, its operations, its business
principles, impact on the community, and potential for area resident employment

Detailed 3-year budget projections of revenues and expenses

Historical financials for the past three years, in a sealed envelope (existing businesses only)

Copy of multi-year lease {including expressed permission from landlord to make changes as outlined in the project)
or copy of Warranty Deed showing property ownership

Narrative description of entire project, broken down into interior and exterior improvements and/or renovations,
including financing sources

Detailed breakdown of exterior renovations and improvements for which reimbursement is being requested under
the grant program.

E N SEE SO

25



OFFICE USE ONLY:

Pre-application meeting date: VW\ fl/'ﬁkw, Meets eligibility requirements: Yes EZ/No O

CRA Board meeting date: (ﬂ! lb’ I‘ 84\

Application notes:

Recommend Board approval: Yes IZ/NO O

CRA staff initials: W)r
_‘/‘-—' T

2\0



& DEVELOPMFENT N

FILITE CAFPITAL [

NEW CONSTRUCTION BUDGET
Andre Model
2811 & 2810 Saranac Ave, West Palm Beach, FL 33409

DEVELOPMENT COSTS
Archictecture S 3,500
Land & Preparation S 70,000
Infrastructure S 12,000
Surveying 5 2,200
Sub-Total S 87,700
SOFT COSTS
Water & Sewer S 7,800
Impact Fees S 7,200
Sub-Total $ 15,000
CONSTRUCTION COSTS
Footing and Slab $ 15,000
Labor 5 7,500
Materials $ 7,500
Beams and Columns S 15,000
Labor S 7,000
Materials S 8,000
Rough Carpentry $ 12,000
Labor S 4,500
Materials S 7,500
Roof $ 15,000
Plumbing $ 9,750
Electrical S 12,850
HVAC 3 10,250
Windows and Doors $ 14,250

2°\



Labor s 5,500
Materials S 8,750
Framing, Drywall and Insulation S 16,000
Labor S 7,500
Materials S 8,500
Lath and Stucco S 8,750
Labor S 5,250
Materials S 3,500
Fiooring S 15,500
Labor S 7,000
Materials S 8,500
Kitchen S 16,500
Labor s 7,000
Materials S 9,500
Bathrooms $ 11,500
Labor S 7,000
Materials $ 4,500
Appliances S 3,500
Landscape & Pavers S 9,500
Painting S 7,500
Fixtures $ 7,500
Sub-Total S 200,350
TOTAL COSTS S 303,050 .

2D






by

A
.,/

20



A\



3

‘GN H

vy

SNOISIIY

SLNIRnOD

IA T HOVEE INTIVA LSEAN
THAY DVNVHEYS XX
O8FD0SOE0DEERERD0 "B
TONI LNINAOTHAHA % TV ILIAYD DLI 1A

N VIO rIeE
ImHYoD

alewrai-osalld

SHCE "L VONPHLE NIV

THUGLH DN DT "L

SPOTE ¥ HLWILAILHED VD
Bd UUS TIVEZNCD NVITI

TDN DAEHIENTONE T

e 4

i 5 e

LRIva
e
Te|ezucH

v AT

Al
paubis Aneubig

20T0'120T

£ Zzi| mosorey

BT YD
AUvaAQ TITYAL HOMEELMN

Toifia yr1ao
[ll—.s-hlil\! ALY A AWUNOSYIW "1IVvDIAAL

. TV AL HANHOD

AN UOOA A eyt L 0 8] DY %

10d pusjnbed LOIRA] 183 161800 Ad0a LM
ROILD3IdEM SNIQUNG Ll 1Y
150dTd FINVTIINOD L53L HOOD ¥IMCIE

30/A0Hd TIVHS HOLOVHINDS

TV AA ROLLDESHELLIY T TS

AATTA, NV Id OO LT

T0IE MDA

THADKACY W4 1430 DITE T HOE O STRADHAIY
LONOOHA UENS “SSYTI0 GILYY LIVAR BO STINYT SHYORUNH TIACHLIY J0EA0Y
- TOILON DHTZ v Irt

"3000 H3d ¥ON0 X ¥ N0 TIVHS SHODA OHY SMOON I INYISESN
13V TV TIVADUASY LOND0HA T3%H SNOLLNHLLEN] ROLLY TV LENT
SUTHALN LN CHY SO0 TTWASH .
. MOEN ASHa

4NNV BOO0D ONY MODND HLIM COHIRIM ANNOEYN TTY AJSEA S
JHoNn

TSIMESHI0 SLSOont _Itum.ﬂi 4| GALIKIVHINGD SH AYA DHLAYEO

ElWl RIHLIM 0ALYLS SNOILY ONTMROTT SHL ' ATENINDISHO ‘oM GSaW

40 BIINONT SHL 01 NI MO ROLLYHEOHNI KO CASYE 3V SOV BHL

Hl G3INIS3Yd SHOILY OWWR003Y ONY HOIS30 FHL IVHL TAL0H 38 TINCHE

A1 FIVNIVA SHL N IALDSIH S NODUYNHOIKE 31 01 A0 0arih 54
SOOI W, 3L 40 Jirual .3

SEILON T aandHD

03 116 3065 TIRLITTS TYHRIYN
(nFR} (3 ALL 3000 SIEANTS DA

1020%) *03 HL2 3000 WOIMVHOIN DS
16262) "03 HL# 503 TWLNFOKEIW S84
40208 *a3 H1L 3005 DHITING S@
SHAO0D A TAVIT LIIYT

= -
LVIEO NOLLDANNOD ALTHINOD

O.L MDMNE GO0, TYDI-TAL

oLHEmz T

IWHOOQ ADVAEVE HOHF

50w Td Ax 2 Ay ax3

Z '

W T NS Bopuede
WP E TS JEN] SOORE Y
A L L ] 0 R

B MIEY - 1n1ai8 et pitx i < depem ' 0ES WIEY - St

DOKD LDV 10 ¥ 10 LIV « MeDAriOr 1410 LGY - WAiLAG il
"G00 MLEY - Bupmoio

! e MLSY

» e in0i8 1o whuane

Lo ke FLE S LRI T, l!..-rl._nnslniuu.lh—

MORIPY "L 020X DA % sNmrncow 1] wenomosd R X Joop e Bael ey

1)
LR A | e Ll Jo W L

) o 4y W naUgE 12 Yges pu Boygad R math iy
amiu e 7 | Wil

U L) basdey L ik Arsseil | #iio03 Boape

e H ]
t.i!l!:s-nllln.pr‘ltsvﬂﬂw_il.mp. -
SRR
_.._ 'y
95 00AZ ¢ A funmas o5 £
‘mapq espsureed ubpep s ey P T

R e o ol i e

T4 L PO D1 VAL SOOI LY B R B JLLIRIR
e ook i —poy

SHILON MIVHEANLDIOHLE
O

o
DR F‘.qunl.lrw\

T
vorps
[

[ e |

> 2y TORRRIG FO00 RPN 31 TV
aw . -
L il >
SN
Rl s e
Py ] St
e

L i

HoOoa

L by

"I LEC AOHIDINY

-3
T
e ATk

A

[ IR B

T
o, NEIYLM
}
1
. i
b .

11

SO
g,
w1 i
T g
= sl A ——
i s
i A1 SR
n P g
mm. =] e Hl
e JE—
- m— il
1 L e
* Lo EEEm
e e wmimal
Y e
v ———
e Svimnr

TADVIOOA AUYnos |

SOHIRISIY AN TYDHE 5B AHO1E-L ¥ NG
HHOM 20 BAO0DS

0000-2.8v00-1202-9




y
A

z ervany Pagm k) ) et T den o
a - T T W HLUDNIULS LU0 5
- WA npminy Gy v R ey .
_BTRIM g e s . B et Ll it
W romey L v ] R saeg v hapm. VERLIVIOLN E iy m T PLTY UL YDINETY v
N DAY STIpmOEe A e wop Loua wary . ~FATE OOHMMORY ¥P6L3 ALEY W TN
2l o wemny | e et ogrmng 5 K Yk Ay A
mi 2 T vy e A g " w jowus| gy oq L R s
s I e
2 E AL T AGHAIY IO w | . [ | o | e e iy Asoas poneiante 1
“ v na S oo T | e sl T e ar oyt
a2 T
a TV NS O OOl AL GO ™ e - 2 LRI UM 03 TBCTILE
F o AL NOULDAHISHOTD T e o m an} e TP —
5 ] AL AINVANID0 Fee AR Gy QT aos AL VY u | om Juwea) pen g oen . M
' - ERF A TEL-M TUNGIER D5 Wo)
£ 3 AHODAIVD IHNSOAXY A T w | an [swwa | sw | 6 e oy ey
SAUNULSTH HOW AMOBALYS DHOHAE _ el rOUrTIVIR S o1 woid | x| swm | oo | TR T T ALY
asoTHE ZdAL DHONE e mun "
. -, - [ N | e Ll
i LHOIEH NY3N L53HOM _ ~. TN LKD) T U 'L
UITHNE A6 DHLTIHE “@ QUOHD KOL10E ./.Tr ux . | nwa | " 54 o AOM4Y L53n0Cd 0 v PO L 20N
SITWNEAONITIHS - E'DCHOHD O 7 e | ow umnse| oA LUOOg O
T3 0S¥ {S1SN9 OHDS £ HamaLL UF3dS OMM. m m | mn [usewae] oa | o E s | umenm | 2 | -
T Yo1avd KoWYHAD S =
Trem i 7 e e [uananl s ] e e v | umenm | e - v wram uota Tdmon
M T [ Yol TvIOL S T AT 7 ~ £ : [
€ " O¥30 QHOH3 NoLLOE TR P LA TR 7 wn | G |bwmae) T3 9 Lo L T N Bl LI/XT-9TA8
M f INTHHNONODHON 8 JATT OHOH NOLLOR : |ﬂ_ i | o |vacnan| s | we ol el il Bl sl Barnpns e | \_
o W Ty L Ov30 OHOHD JOL H an | om |paewse] s | = an mwge | w3 | o ST A LN T
: B e | e e e I N e e e
w84 | e . - - —
E STIDWNS LTVHISY PINILYN DRS00 a | U | umria | e | o potinge [
W. i 8 W SHILSISTY 3HCS DML HIVI ODHLIN HDISI0 OHUA - - pane | Sl | o [0 Jarun, | ALaviE au | s | B -IMWMH..{;.EE. =] 1%
B~ - ~ | CIBOTTIF | [ossoTTY | TRROTTY TN Y3 B TN 0
2 s SISE2336Y  VIHIUWS NOiS30 OMM : e ' .f.../,. el IN I3
=k ANMOOHIVIANTYd  INGMLUYJEID DHeaTing - nsinainandvanbisind TR 2 LY [ i £
B. N m G d . ,4/_ [T ——— B R DA T 43 LT T e =) MWW
Hygn : e > RS ot
w ) m < VIEL LR MNEISEC
Hyom
4] % p
ﬂ i m O - 2 2 =T : ’ ’ WOl = TIHTYOS
m = 1 -
-
e s i

1 1 I |_. =L£h¢£hl_\ A__ I Il Il

0FC 2P0
ac GRpT,
u_um wumm ‘l_ LI |
228 3BE B T
wu s«mm Loy LB
msm 8 g
ky fy
m % ﬂ N A=, L - nn\-..ﬂ-...H‘\.Hv.u
6 CAAHIA LSVEHE E CAAHIA HINOS
.m .
g o) ln._m . N =
= 2 = __HE.mr B RTRI IR
i = LA ] I
=L [T AT TET T ILT T
2} I ]

[
L S

LL5-R14-195 o
ooy 3 Aq bap —_—
- e
-

Qe

192
DNLLAVHA 1DAYON cz._.r.?../alw\

il & Yaea

VIRL Jatent

0000-2.8700-L202-d




SaAEETvLs . -
TIVAECL LIV AL MORIELLAI - . C J—
: | Y 53000 A1HRoS TOUPI WY ‘DB2 A 01

y
o ﬁ

parreend . - ' o - HaY3E WV ALdOCY UMDY DEA T IO L USARS
K ATV IAA TITFED> . ALINTHYND QL MRONCDY ad s Uopasdsuy ey

—— AT NS ARMNOSYIN TVOTdAL ‘ © - TIVHS 590 ONV SHERITd 10 SR B Y RIARDLL B [
19, . . : IO YHOEM Teohi 5THE asuEgduna o eI 1404 34 ISHMANOD 1531 HOOA HIMGTE
' B ® v AR TTYHS HOLWH INGD

UGN

‘e rrdn g K Svyma . ' L
F N g . TvAsmanuoos NI a
1 .

aLvd

AT et BTN

ATIA NV Id HOO T4

SNOISIAZY
=l

SLNIKHOD

hrt ]
AUVLEO NOLLDAMNNOD BLIHINOD
OL MDNHA COOM TvDIdAL,

-
1

1

1

1 (
I (
1 \
1 |
1 1
THAGULAY B L1300 “SOTE 40 O ETVAGUEIY a3 i aa !
1 k (
1 1
1 1
1 1
1 1
1 i
i

{

|

|

|

|

I

‘3007 HIS XN 1T ¥ TUNDIY TIVHS SHOOO OHY SROGHIM, INVLSSTH
19¥4AM TTV TArACKAIY JI000H T35} ENOLLINHEL SN NOINYTIVISN)
H3d SNOONL ONY SHOD0 TTYLSRE

TRLLON S

1NO0H HINANS ‘SSY 0 OELYH EDY A W0 ETINY INVIRIUNH G2A0EDY 30LhOdd
rogiuld .
L o %
FADVHVO SHYS OML

"AAHYA HOOO OBt AODNIM, HILA SONNIGO AUNCEVN TIY APHIA
“SNOLLINHLEM JHOM HO E1L0H TYYILLINKULE OL 443 T -

TSIMHIHIO S1R3B0OE &Fuwunl_m- MEEIKIVE IHOD S8 A SHlddHO
SHL MHLM CALYLE SNOUVONINNOA M SHL ANINOISHOD 'CHOSIH
40 UIZHIDNT FHL 0L NZAID HOLL VNG Goei] WO 035Y3 Y DYDY FHL
MUTUNISTHY SHOILYONIMNOOT ONY N2EID JHL LVHL IELO0N 38 TROHS
L3003V SHL N 0AIN3S3Ud NDUYRHOSH] SHL Ot A" WD 02wl B

40 i

1 ouwnssmeme

09PQ0SOEBOEEREH0D NI

SHLON TYdINED

THAY DVHMNVHVS 118

'03 210% 3QE TYRLOTS TWHOLLYH
(0202} '03 Hi2 3003 DHIANN SB4

102021 °03 HLE 3002 IWORVHDIN D84
(nz0z) *g3 KLz 3000 TylNEoKE a4 .
{oz68) *03 HEL SO0 DHITYING D84 - Y — - : ax
SHAOD A1FVOLITddY

I HOVHE WTvd LSTTAA

1 pit = 5
| kT g e 5 4

T - : ~ o [}

o U P gl
| 1 4 | :m.h
1 ' g A

s - f

! =

ONI LNAWIOTIIATICI 77 TV LIIVYVD SLLI 13

‘YD JLLEY 30 LD HLEY - eDaIB0R ‘5510 MISY - FUMISS PURIOS
“827063 WLEY = ¥3a tupiepiinyn Mysatic) alfy Upu KRkisos et xpime 11

¥ RIEY
Jo siueuennbe) s of Bupaliopuso wanepaeu [vd 000z =g yeys incol o 1nSusns

SN TS 10 W) I LG 51, 12 e B iy of 10l 1L

“BEDT 2 T TR Huude
0P GTERY Y] R,

ETAF pOz-ipEe 11d
MIGVID RS |
2

SO "H SN WY

" 40 | -
o 1 YE U D58 e Y e Dugted aoe SRS 1) [ .E.

!
-

5 & N ﬂuwﬂn‘.’mE . %g
Loge | i OO
@_ el — i WALSVIY

| .
e

SAMOANIAN

SHRE 4 BLVIIALLHED ¥
TrH6Le "DNT OdY 1

'd ‘gl 'Z"d’“-"l.l\‘ﬂl‘) NVITTM

2
i il i
}
¢
4]
£
it
L
]
3

[t EC E i
Faubss de15q
i
i
X
3
E
%
1.
!E

.-
i LS Gz 0 i wag RLAR B2 W e .
7o GODC KNG DY A SLan ag oy SR
o 1o

1nd g N
Bm o mageraeisa s = e i L Y P u™ o -
oy e mieap wag (o UL ® - LWL ¢ R . i ———r

iy
LWOTOILT s
aeq

zaeaung

00.50- U5

L -Hi LA roes 2 430w v

SHOYLOOE HHVNOS

pavm K ol <
WAL CRE {20:1) AP0 BUIPENA TPHSLE S L ULGUAD e Y . o 3 ‘

LLLG-AIE—196 SHILON IV HNMIDNWTLS
ouzory -3 dq Enp Eprr—— = .- TIHSISTY KUV TIONK 653 AUOLSS ¥ aa

vy
. ONELIVH O 10 B0, .
DNLEA VAT HYEVOD S =IO AACODE HFIMOM

— T

VTG s
o

0600-8.8%00-L20C-1




)
A

AATTLA FEIMON

o]
orzre

4
e
) T oY M BUTICRILE 100U
TN DRTCTIR NI 1O B B00'E OMY S TIOT LYY T
a e o e ~oubuns e V0. 40 B 1Y 1d ST ROMBEA HATHINAS 5
| o [oTa it oy anr s v Ty 7 s T R e RS T T S P L
m| 2 T Serwitna i s T FOEL SAOHIUGNY S KL LAY T3 VOIS <
m + s P oy i R uﬂhﬁﬁﬂﬁibrn
g e ] P [t | e | om0 Er ki
z . i - R YTV R ol E”Jﬂ.v.w.izﬁu.in
“Ivisa oMHooueE T v e R R e B —a——
b CT o BIYVED T1AY MLEY SN DO O
m [ 20AL NOUDHISHOD 5‘\" BN NSO OO AVOCINT A, = m-N—JI.ﬁT MV AOUII .-.Uﬂ,hﬂ-ﬂ-v.-u- L .1 uH-RA | rx a1 s pow oy MY L€ ¥ Tod
g i N = [ [ [ | R
F n AVODALYS JUNSAIXS ¥ . MY YEDL B TLNGCHLEN. TR Al - [T
i DNLVOD DNV IGE T ALY v L B a0 | v TIY OV LY WDMRITAN ¢ IR oAt
SAUDISTH KON A AUODALYD DRRTINE _ ~ NOALY TR SR O Mo Rt W FTA Y aart
03507183 FdALDNKIINE = = - un | umua | 2
trfl AMDIIH KYIN 1SIHDH L] o LTIV Qe A CATITLIM MY TIPS QUACHAIT W) RLIFIFYY
"LEYIIN
HIAUNA AA DHLLAGHS *6r3 AHOHS NOLIGE - v | uwwa | pa | 6 . e
ﬁ HITANE AS DHULTIHE “H"D QHOHD JOL PV A (gt e e i e s =N
ZEH OS5V ISLSND ONODITS t) HaMeLL TITAS NN . UOOT 77 _AVCCENT M
Hil L nareige | e L =
Py BOLAYS HOLEYHAT — P, - - - A TTELLNIY CTVOLd AL
it s | smme | o
n T 1 a¥o1TY10L
Y] £ " ¥30 QHOHI WOLLOF vo | o Jsmeas] e | oaa | |pmue| s | .-uh:!.!._ _I.E.u.m.ﬂ
n LNIHHAOMODNON 81 JANOYOHI HOLLOE e e fumnan| s | o i wr e | W2 | e LI/EHT-9TaR
Tr £t av3d oHoH3 o1 e | oo jumus | s | o nwe i somouse |
L AT OHOHD 401 BARINSIINT
N Ty J00u [ —— un e nmvan| a5 | o0 s me ey ey =1 TRl ™ {1 ¢ L0 HISAL IO * 4
[t ROLEVHGIRGI Uy,
m - H STIDMMS 1TVHASY TVRILLVI BHLIOOH 1w | wm |swman| x| =a [V AP (PPN I R NOILVEST Rrws
o W N LU o | wm jaeinss| a | e o | s Jumus| x| m
hg 31622336 WIHILED NSISI0 O Jreiy iy N e ™ Uiy Py I Y P
m [ ALNMOIHIVIE NTYD  INGMLEVAIO0 SHORNG [esaaramy | ammoTre an ouaTr | oasom | T
W ] v] ALNNOS HIYIE WTYd Alknes et bl s 0 ¥l
2 v [T —————— [T p e rr—
a
VIREALLTED X -
—cqn__ ) m 4 BEISEO - rranTE . mras
P NE H .
827 %
s m
H

25

mmw mem —iF || FERIN T IT WL I
LERETH R LA
Hﬁw wmqu
B samy
mu.w m a cﬂpﬂ ﬂ:
i fg
M g m W T ALY DS
: 3 MHEIA HLAOS
[ a ’ - -
m s L2l
’ st Y
kT o T 53 :D
N i aa -
| = |
q0F e 7 [T LT L T , =0 T in)
N &. R L, ek
._-_._._-_..._-_E_n_ b= X =t

1215-R19-135
oywosy ) g Gep

A0 jl
DNLLAVHA SLIAYOS D_,:.ES_Q

e W T
VEOL_sareent
)

0000-818¥00-L202-8



¢

B

INSPECTIONS

(561) 355-2222 Automated Schedule
(888) 236-3807 Toll Free

(561) 233-5170 During Business Hours

OPEN MONDAY THRU FRIDAY 8:00 AM TO 4:30 PN LOR1Y
Visit us at www.pbcgov.com/PZB/Building to view Application B U I L D I N G D IV I S I 0 N

Tracking, Inspection History and Contractor Information.

PALM BEACH COUNTY
PLANNING, ZONING & BUILDING DEPARTMENT

BUILDING/SITE REVIEW PERMIT

PERMT . | . VIOLATION "STATESURCHARGES | FIREREVIEW ~~_ROADS |- PARKS
2505.90 0 62.85 0.00 4717.00 734.28
_ LIBRARIES . __SCHOOLS _FRE___ . PUBLIC BLDGS LAW ENFORCEMENT _ ERM
185.76 4330.00 276.00 170.54 128.15 0.00
HEALTH . OUTSIDE 'MISC.FEES. | ZONINGDEV | UNITS PROJECTE | CONTROL# |COMM]  GPS..
SR AGENCY . |~ - ORDER # 5 R PR 1 B
0.00 21.00 1 01000-668 0-0 TT | AR A
TSN SEY S FLOODZONE |  FIN.FLR. | CONT CERTIFICATION# PERMIT DESCRIPTION
B:2021-004877-0000 - | ' 020312021 - X CBC-1261168 . .
: a UL PROPERTYCONTROLNUMBER - .| INSPAREA B
B N B 00-43-43-30-03-050-0480 004
New single fanity.dwelling. -~ - -
SIS, SITE PLAN.SQUARE FOOTAGE,. | . GROSS SQUARE FOOTAGE | VALLE
o 0325i2020 1845 1845 165590.00

WARNING TO OWNER: YOUR FAILURE TO RECORD A NOTICE OF COMMENCEMENT MAY
RESULT IN YOUR PAYING TWICE FOR IMPROVEMENTS TO YOUR PROPERTY. A NOTICE OF
COMMENCEMENT MUST BE RECORDED AND POSTED ON THE JOB SITE BEFORE THE
FIRST INSPECTION. IF YOU INTEND TO OBTAIN FINANCING, CONSULT WITH YOUR LENDER
OR AN ATTORNEY BEFORE RECORDING YOUR NOTICE OF COMMENCEMENT. (F. S. 713.135

NO REFUNDS ON PERMIT FEES $100.00 OR LESS OR AFTER FIRST INSPECTION IS MADE.NO REFUNDS AFTER 180 DAYS.

2021-004877-0000

Construction lien information and notarization is required of Owner/Agent and| [ IN ACCORDANCE WITH 553.79, F.S. THIS IS TO ADVISE YOU OF YOUR
Contracfor signature is required when the aggregate value (tofal cost of all{ | RESPONSIBILITY TO COMPLY WITH ALL ASBESTOS REGULATIONS INCLUDING
Improvements and not just work authorized by the individual permit) is over $2,500f | NOTIFICATION REQUIREMENTS WHICH CAN BE FOUND [N CHAPTER 469 FLORIDA
or over $7,500 on mechanical work. STATUTES. CONTACT PALM BEAGH COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT, ASBESTQOS
PROGRAM COORDINATOR AT {561) 837-5900 FOR FURTHER INFORMATION,
** Track progress, and get essential details on permits and inspections when you visit us at www.pbegov.com/pzbibuilding. **

In accordance with Part |V, 373 F.S. and Chapter 62-330, F.A.C., any work in wetlands or other surface waters may

require authorization from the Florida Department of Environmental Protection {(FDEP) or South Florida Water

Management District (SFWMD). Please call FDEP's Southeast District at 561-681-6600 or the SFWMD at 561-686-8800

with questions regarding wetlands.

**CALL BEFORE YQU DIG™
CALL 811 OR VISIT HTTP://WWW.SUNSHINE.COM BEFORE YOU DIG PURSUANT TO CHAPTER 556 FLORIDA STATUES
IN ORDER TO COMPLY WITH THE FLORIDA UNDERGROUND FACILITY DAMAGE PREVENTION AND SAFETY ACT
NO DEVIATIONS FROM THIS PERMIT MAY BE MADE WITHOUT PRIOR WRITTEN AUTHORIZATION,
OWNER: Elite Capital & Development Inc. CONTRACTOR/COMPANY NAME: Meticulous Services
CONTRACTORS' PHONE NUMBER: 561-201-2430
PROPERTY ADDRESS: 2810 Saranac Ave, West Palm Beach, 33403 SUBDIVISION NAME: West Gate Estates Northem Secfion
BAY/SUITE#:
Diaz, Aisy | Doug Wise
ISSUING CLERK BUILDING OFFICIAL

NOTICE: This permit and any permitted plans must be available to the Inspector at the time of inspection to receive a passed inspection

Ao




PALM BEACH COUNTY BUILDING DIVISION
Planning, Zoning & Building Department
Stamp Permit Number:

B-2021-004877-0000

BUILDING/SITE REVIEW PERMIT

BUILDING
FOOTING | .- ' LAB | BEAMICOL. ROOF FRAMING " | . : | -ROOFMETAL | = FRAME - INSULATION
a R S SHEATHING : . . : . . . ! L "
Date Date Date Date Date Date Date Dale
DRYWALL | CLATH © . DIW-SW POOL STEEL- ' ‘POOL DECK . WALL - WALL ANCHORS - FINAL
R " L o . o SHEATHING . ‘ S R Tt
Date Dala Date Date Date Date Dete Date
Date Dale Date Date Date Date Date Date

ELECTRICAL PLUMBING MECHANICAL FIRE SITE
| UNDERGROUND R UNDERGROUND, '

Date Date Date Date Date Date Date Date
T FINALT T FINALT T RINALT o FINAL. | PARKING
Date Date Date Date Date Date Date Date
3 H | SPECIAE GOND.
Date Date Dale Date Date Data DCate Date

Lo - CONDITIONS OF PERMIT. - 7% % Dmy sl P L ey ]

As evldenced by the permlttee s mgnature on the Permit Application, and in consideration for granting thls permlt (53 agreed that in all respects
the work will be performed in accordance with the permitted plans and the applicable codes for Palm Beach County, Florida. This permit may be
Revoked at any time upon the violation of any of the provisions of said Laws, Ordinances, Rules, Regulations, Policies and Procedures.
Issuance of this permit does not in any way create any rights on the part of the applicant to obfain a permit from a state or federal agency and does not create any liability on the
part of the County for issuance of the permit if the applicant fails to obtain requisite approvals or fulfill the obligations imposed by a state or federal agency or undertakes actions
that result in a violation of state or federal law. All applicable state or federal permits must he obtained before any development is commenced.

TIME LIMITATION

This Permnt becomes mactwa |f the wurk authonzed is not inspected within § months from the date it was issued or If at any tlme there is more than a 6-
month lapse between Inspactions. No work may occur without an active Permit. Inactive permits may be renewed upon application and payment of
required fees {including any increases in fees that have occurred since original issuance), and may be required to meet updated codes.

RESTRICTIONS

NOTICE: In addltmn to the reqmrements of lhls permrt there may be additional restrictions applicable to this property that may be found in the public records of thls county
such as the requirement for Home or Property Owners Association approval, and there may be additional permits required from other governmental entities
such as water management districts, stafe agencies or federal agencies.

INSPECTIONS

(561) 355-2222 AUTOMATED

(888) 236-3807 TOLLFREE

(561) 233-5170 DURING BUSINESS HOURS WWW.PBCGOV.COM/PZB/BUILDING

NEXT BUSINESS DAY SERVICE

SEE FRONT OF FORM FOR PERMIT INFORMATION

3



INSPECTIONS

{561) 355-2222 Automated Schedule
(888) 236-3807 Toll Free

(561) 233-5170 During Business Hours
OPEN MONDAY THRU FRIDAY 8:00 AM TO 4:30 PN

Visit us at www.pbcgov.com{PZB/Building to view Application B U I L D I N G D Iv | S I O N

Tracking, Inspection History and Contractor Information.

BUILDING/SITE REVIEW PERMIT

PERMIT VIOLATION - - | STATESURCHARGES _ FIRE REVIEW : ROADS - PARKS'
2505.,90 0 62.65 0.00 0.00 0.00
LIBRARIES SCHOOLS FIRE PUBLICBLDGS | LAW ENFORCEMENT ___ ERM

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

HEALTH OUTSIDE MISC. FEES ZONINGDEV | UNITS | - PROJECT# CONTROL# [COMM| - GP.S.

- AGENCY .. ORDER# L ‘ st |
0.00 0.00 11,41 01000-668 00 T7 | s
FLOOD ZONE - FIN.FLR. | CONT CERTIFICATION # PERMIT DESCRIPTION
B-2021-004878-0000. | 0203/2021 -+ X CBC-1261168 _
T LR . " Slngle-Family Dwelling Detached'..

B PERMIT NO ASTER NO ~__PROPERTY CONTROLNUMBER | INSP AREA PR

R 00-43-43-30-03-050-0460 004 .

.+ Newsingle family dwelling. -~ -
NS S'TE FLAN SQUARE FOOTAGE | GROSS SQUAREFOOTAGE ~ | _ VALUE-
A 031252021 1845 1845 165590.00

WARNING TO OWNER: YOUR FAILURE TO RECORD A NOTICE OF COMMENCEMENT MAY
RESULT IN YOUR PAYING TWICE FOR IMPROVEMENTS TO YOUR PROPERTY. ANOTICE OF
COMMENCEMENT MUST BE RECORDED AND POSTED ON THE JOB SITE BEFORE THE
FIRST INSPECTION. IF YOU INTEND TO OBTAIN FINANCING, CONSULT WITH YOUR LENDER
OR AN ATTORNEY BEFORE RECORDING YOUR NOTICE OF COMMENCEMENT. (F. S. 713.135

NO REFUNDS ON PERMIT FEES $100.00 OR LESS OR AFTER FIRST INSPECTION IS MADE.NO REFUNDS AFTER 180 DAYS.

B-2021-004878-0000

Construction lien information and notarization is required of OwnerfAgent and| [ IN ACCORDANCE WITH 553,79, F.S. THIS |S TO ADVISE YOU OF YOUR
Contractor signature is reguired when the aggregate value (total cost of all| | RESPONSIBILITY TO COMPLY WITH ALL ASBESTOS REGULATIONS INCLUDING
improvements and not just work authorized by the individual permit) is aver §2,500{ | NOTIFICATION REQUIREMENTS WHICH CAN BE FOUND IN CHAPTER 469 FLORIDA
or over $7,500 on mechanical work, STATUTES. GONTACT PALM BEACH COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT, ASBESTOS
PROGRAM COORDINATOR AT (561) 837-5900 FOR FURTHER INFORMATION.
** Track progress, and get essential details on permits and inspections when you visit us at www.pbcaov.comipzb/building, **

In accordance with Part IV, 373 F.S. and Chapter 62-330, F.A.C., any work in wetlands or other surface waters may

require authorization from the Florida Department of Environmental Protection {(FDEP} or South Florida Water

Management District (SFWMD). Please call FDEP's Southeast District at 561-681-6600 or the SFWMD at 561-686-8800

with questions regarding wetlands,

*+CALL BEFORE YOU DIG**
CALL 811 OR VISIT HTTP:J/WWW.SUNSHINE.COM BEFORE YOU DIG PURSUANT TO CHAPTER 556 FLORIDA STATUES
IN ORDER TO COMPLY WITH THE FLORIDA UNDERGROUND FACILITY DAMAGE PREVENTION AND SAFETY ACT
NO DEVIATIONS FROM THIS PERMIT MAY BE MADE WITHOUT PRIOR WRITTEN AUTHORIZATION.
OWNER: Elite Capital & Development Inc CONTRACTOR/COMPANY NAME: Meticulous Services
CONTRACTORS’ PHONE NUMBER: 561-201-2430
PROPERTY ADDRESS: 2811 Saranac Ave, West Palm Beach, 33409 SUBDIVISION NAME: West Gate Estates Northern Section
BAY/SUITE#:
Diaz, Aisy | Doug Wise
ISSUING CLERK BUILDING OFFICIAL

NOTICE: This permit and any permitted plans must be available to the inspector at the time of inspection to receive a passed inspection

50



PALM BEACH COUNTY BUILDING DIVISION
Planning, Zoning & Building Department

BUILDING/SITE REVIEW PERMIT

Stamp Permit Number:

B-2021-004878-0000

FOOTING. LAB - - BEAM/COL.. | ROOF FRAMING | ROOF METAL " FRAME": - | "INSULATION
. : e - SHEATHING . R , o : :
Date Date Date Date Date Date Date Date
" DRYWALL LATH - . DIW-SW POOL STEEL "POOL DECK WALL | WALL ANCHORS |~ - 'FINAL- "
. ) R - SHEATHING : ) Lo
Date Date Dala Date Date Dale Date Date
Date Date Date Data Date Date Dats Data
ELECTRICAL PLUMBING MECHANICAL FIRE SITE
;| UNDERGROUND..| UNDERGROUND. [ L " "ROUGH * ;
Dale Date Date Date Date Date Date Date
T ROUGH: |~ FINAL - [7-"8 "UUFINAL T[T FINAL T FINAL | PARKING
Deate Date Date Dale Date Date Data Date
R | SPECIAL-COND,
Date Date Date Date Date Date Date Date
CONDITIONS OF PERMIT T

As evldenced by the permlttee s sugnature on the Perrmt Application, and in consideration for granting thls permat itis agreed that in all respects
the work will be performed in accordance with the permitted plans and the applicable codes for Palm Beach County, Flerida, This permit may be
Revoked at any time upon the violation of any of the provisions of said Laws, Ordinances, Rules, Regulations, Policies and Procedures.
Issuance of this permit does notin any way create any rights on the part of the applicant to obtain a permit from a state or federal agency and does not create any liability on the
part of the County for issuance of the permit if the applicant fails to obtain requlsite approvals or fuffill the ohligations imposed by a state or federal agency or undertakes actions
that result in a violation of state or federal law. All applicable state or federal permits must be obtained before any development is commenced.

TIME LIMITATION

Th]s Permit becomes inactive if the work authorlzed is not inspected within 6 months from the date it was lSSUEd or if at any time there is more than a 6-
month lapse between Inspections. No work may occur without an active Permit. Inactive permits may be renewed upeon application and payment of
required fees (including any increases in fees that have occurred since original issuance), and may he required to meet updated codes.

RESTRICTIONS

NOTICE: In addition to the requirements of thls permll there may be additional restrictions applicable to this property that may be found in the public recnrds of this county
+ such as the requirement for Home or Property Owners Association approval, and there may be additional permits required from ofher governmental entities
such as water management districts, state agencies or federal agencies.

INSPECTIONS

(561) 355-2222 AUTOMATED

(888) 236-3807 TOLLFREE

(561) 233-5170 DURING BUSINESS HOURS
NEXT BUSINESS DAY SERVICE

WWW.PBCGOV.COM/PZB/BUILDING

SEE FRONT OF FORM FOR PERMIT INFORMATION

o3



R UL R (R LI

CFM 202000409573

OR B 318488 FG 3223
RECORDED 10/28/72020) 13:43:144
ART 145:000.00
Do Stame I1015.00
Paolm Beach Countyr Floridae
Prepared by and Retumn to: Sharon R. Bock:CLERK & COMPTROLLER
Pags 0233 - 2243 (2pas)
Jonathan C. Benitah, Esq,
JONATHAN C. BENITAH, P.A.
440 Hollywood Blvd., Suite 415
ollywood, Florida 33021
hone: (954) 241-4266
ile I\(Ijumber: 20-117.85R

[dentification Numbers:
-43-30-03-050-0460

00-@-30—03-@50—0480
@8

% Warranty Deed

(STATUTORY FORM - SECTION 689,02, F.S))

[Space Above This Line For Recording Data]

This lndentur@de this 23rd day of October, 2020, between Olde Porte Properties, LLC, a
Florida limited ility company a/k/fa Olde Port Properties, LLC, a Florida limited
liability compan e post office address is 550 Bay Villas Lane, Naples, FL 34108, of the
County of Collier, of, Florida ("Grantor")*, and Elite Capital & Development Inc., a
Florida corporation ost office address is 2465 Mercer Avenue, Suite 303, West Palm
Beach, FL 33401, of t of Palm Beach, State of Florida ("Grantee")*,

Witnesseth that said Grafor and in consideration of the sum of Ten and No/100 Dollars
($10.00) and other good f@,ﬂ"‘ considerations to sald Grantor in hand paid by said
Grantee, the receipt whereofis hereby acknowledged, has granted, bargained, and sold to the
said Grantee, and Grantee's heir assigns forever, the following described land, situate, lying
and being in Palm Beach Coun%ida, to-wit:

Lots 46, 47, 48 and 49, l{?@] of West Gate Estates (Northern Section},
according to the Plat thereof; 48 recorded in Plat Book 8, page 38, Public
Records of Palm Beach C =Aorida.

Subject to taxes for 2020 and subsequent years; covenants, conditions, restrictions, easements,
reservations and limitations of record, if any.

Te have aed to hold, the same in fee simple forever.

And said Grantor does hereby covenant with Grantee that Grantor is lawfully seized of said
property in fee simple, that Grantor has good right and lawful authority to sell and convey said
property, and Grantor hereby fully warrants the title to said property and will defend the same
against lawful claims of all persons whomsoever.

* "Grantor" and "Grantee" are used for singular or plural, as context requires.

BoubleTime®

A0



Book31868/Page224
e CFN#20200409573
Page 2 of 2

In Witness Whereof, Grantor has hereunto set Grantor's hand and seal the day and year first
above written.

gigned, sealed and delivered in our presence:

Lewis C. Carran, Manager

STATE OF DA )
COUNTY OF R )

. The foregoing ins ag acknowledged before me by means of [x] physical presence or [ ]
online notarization, day of October, 2020, by Lewis C. Carran, as Manager of Olde
Porte Properties, LL a limited liability company, on behalf of the company. He'k7'i
personally known or produced a $
identification.

" [ Notary Seal ] @

K, | MAYRAL CESPEDES (( {
'.:mcomsswusee 5325 ID
& EXPIRES: August7,2023 d

Warranty Deed (Statutory Foym) - Page 2 DoubleTime®
File Number: 20-117.85R

A\



Westgate CRA Board Meeting
June 14, 2021

AGENDA ITEM REVIEW

EXTRA SPACE STORAGE
(Cherry Road Plaza MUPD)

Control No. 1977-041

Development Order Abandonment, Development Order Amendment to an MUPD,
Concurrent Type 2 Variances, & DRO Approval
for a Limited Access Self-Storage Facility

Entire MUPD area
outlined in red - 9.89
ac = including the
Greater Yamaha

property

L e

Affacted area

—Phases 1 & I

Location Map

Paga | 1
Westgate CRA Board Meeting
June 14, 2021
1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215~  West Palm Beach, Florida 33409 ~ 561.6408181 ~ westgatecra.org

AL



VESTGTEBHLEDRAE HOVES

Site Background:
The subject site is a +/- 3.5-acre property with frontage on Cherry Road, approx. 500 ft. from N. Military

Trail, and is within the Cherry Road Plaza MUPD. The site has three parcels, and is vacant and
undeveloped. The 5.86 acre MUPD consists of an automated car wash and an 18,000 sf retail building
operated by Badcock Furniture. The MUPD also includes the Greater Yamaha property to the north,
bringing the total size of the entire MUPD to 9.89 acres. The site is within the Urban Highway (UH) sub-
area of the WCRAO and zoned MUPD (Multiple Use Planned Development). The Future Land Use
designation is CH/8 (commercial high with an underlying residential land use of 8 du per acre). The site is
in the U/S Tier, RRIO (Revitalization, Redevelopment & Infill Overlay), as well as in the URA (Urban
Redevelopment Area). Al Packer Lincoln/Ford, a vehicle sales and rental facility with ancillary repair and
maintenance, is located to the north, zoned CG with a CH/8 FLU. To the east is a 19.5 ac County-owned
property, zoned PO with an INST/IND FLU, utilized for PBSO and PBC Library storage. To the south, Palm
Beach Commons, zoned CG with a CH/8 FLU; and to the west, outside of CRA district boundaries, is a
retail center, also zoned CG with a CH/8 FLU.

“Extra Space Sforage is the second largest operator of self-storage facilities in the U.S. Since we
were founded in 1977, we have taken the storage industry by storm. In the last 5 years, we
added 4.6 billion doliars in new acquisitions to our national portfolic.”

https://www.extraspace.com/

New Request:

The subject site has an approval for a Vehicle Sales and Rental with General Repair and Maintenance,
granted via R-2016-0828 and R-2016-0829 for Phase i of the overall MUPD, which must be abandoned
by the BCC to allow the proposed use to move forward; the All-American Trailer Sales development
recommended for approval by the CRA Board in 2015 is no longer contemplated. The proposed
development consists of a 3-story +/- 114,150 sf self-storage Limited Access Self-Storage facility with
1,200 sf of accessory office to be constructed within the MUPD’s 3.5 ac. vacant property. A Phase Il is

Page |2
Wesigate CRA Board Meeting
June 14, 2021

1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215 ~  West Palm Beach, Florida 33409 ~ 561.640.8181 ~ westgatecra.org

45



WESTGATEBELY

SUNRLING e R TR

planned for the northwest vacant portion of the subject site for an additional 3-story +/- 47,000 sf
Limited Access Self-Storage building; the area is proposed to be utilized for outdoor RV/boat storage
during Phase | of the development. The proposed development will add 161,000 sf of limited access self-
storage to the entire MUPD. A site plan depicting both phases is included with the application.

Due to impacts on surrounding uses, self-storage development typically requires Class A Conditional Use
approval by the BCC, however, MUPD zoning allows the use hy DRO approval. The project is proposed to
be completed by 2025.

Summary of Petition
The applicant requests a recommendation of approval from the Westgate CRA for the following:
1. Development Order Abandonment of R-2016-0828 and R-2016-0829 (existing Conditional Use
approval for General Repair and Maintenance and Vehicle Sales and Rental} for Phase Il only;
2. Development Order Amendment of R-2016-0827 to reconfigure the MUPD site plan,
modify/delete conditions of approval, and allow a +/- 114,150 sf Limited Access Self-Storage
Facility with 1,200 sf of accessory office;
3. Five (5) Concurrent Type 2 Variances to include:
a) A 100% overlap of an easement into an 8 ft. landscape buffer (Art. 7.C.5.A);
b) Efimination of the required canopy trees within the easternmost 23.5 ft. of the Cherry
Rd. ROW buffer (Table 7.C.2.A);
¢} Elimination of the required trees and shrub material in the east buffer (Table 7.C.2.B);
d} Elimination of one tree per terminal landscape island (Table 7.C.4.A);
e) Elimination of one tree and shrubs per interior landscape island along the eastern
property line (Table 7.C.3.A); and,
4. Final DRO Site Plan approval.

Staff Analysis:

Consistency with the Westgate CRA Community Redevelopment Plan & WCRA Zoning Overlay

WCRAO property development regulations were established to encourage a pedestrian friendly
environment, street presence, and mixed use developments to reinforce the smart growth principles of
the Westgate CRA Redevelopment Plan and the County’s Comprehensive Plan. Within the Urban
Highway (UH) Sub-area of the WCRAO, existing intense commercial development along Okeechobee
Blvd. and Military Trail is recognized. While self-service storage is not necessarily considered among the
best and highest uses that could be achieved in this segment of the Cherry Road corridor, the use is

Pagel}3
Wesigate CRA Board Meeting
June 14, 2601
1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215~  West Palm Beach, Florida 33409 -~ 561.640.8181 ~ westgatecra.org

AN



compatible with the existing County-owned facility to the east; plans for a new Supervisor of Elections
facility are underway. Limited self-service storage is currently allowed at this location pursuant to
standard ULDC use regulations; self-service storage is prohibited in the NR, NRM, NG, or NC Sub-area.
Amendments to the WCRAO in the 20-02 round, adopted by the BCC in January 2021 prohibits the
traditional multi-access self-storage facility type in all sub-area of the overlay except the Ul Sub-area.

CRA Staff generally supports the development of a self-service storage facility on this vacant parcel; the
use is limited access self-storage, so traffic impacts, and visible activity on site are minimal. Given its
relative proximity to the Belvedere Homes/Golfview Heights neighborhood, the use will serve a local
and 'regional demand for individuals and businesses seeking a new climate controlled self-storage
facility.

Few PDR’s or supplementary development standards exist for properties in the UH Sub-area. This
project complies with UH Sub-area regulations as applicable including: building coverage at 28% where a
maxirnum of 40% is allowed, minimum rear and side setbacks are met. A side setback of 64 ft. is
proposed for the east to accommodate numerous LWDD drainage and access easements, where a
minimum of 15 ft. is required in the UH Sub-area. The structure is 3 stories or 41 ft. high (a maximum of
10 stories is permitted in the UH) providing bulk and massing. A build to line of 10-25 ft. is in place for
the UH Sub-area; the proposed development complies, but, the curvature of Cherry Road makes it
difficult for all points of the front of the structure to be alighed at the built to line. The building is
sethack approximately 25 ft. The building is 100 ft. wide by 390 ft. deep; no maximum building depth is
required by WCRAO PDRs. The project has an FAR of .71 where a maximum of .85 for parcels with a CH
FLU is standard. As a vacant parcel, the site has no existing non-conformities; minimum lot dimensions
per code are met. WCRAO deviations for landscaping, parking and loading are not applicable.

Although the WCRAQ supersedes, where Table 3.B.14.F PDRs defauli to standard code, MUPD standards
apply. The intent of an MUPD is to “provide opportunities for imaginative approaches to site design by:
allowing flexibility from standard PDRs; applying PDRs to the entire project rather than individual fots,
such as: access, parking, lot dimensions, lot frontage, and landscaping; and, encouraging the creation of
a unified image between buildings and signage through architecture and linkages between land uses.”
MUPD zoning allows the incorporation of individual by-use parking requirements in to a ratio range that
applies to the entire MUPD. The owner of the subject property is proposing to revise the parking of a
portion of the MUPD to be by use (the Greater Yamaha property is not included in parking counts), so
ratios for Badcock furniture, the carwash, and the proposed development would need to be met. 133

Page | 4
Westgate CRA Board Meeting
June 14, 2021
1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215~  West Palm Beach, Florida 33409 ~ 561.640.8181 ~ westgatecra.org

AD



WESTGATEAFYEDRE M

LU I RO e

spaces are provided for _phaées | and . A total of 11 loading spaces are provided to comply with ULDC
requirements. Cross access from use to use is existing. Access to the MUPD exists from Military Trail to
bring customer to an entrance at the rear of the property, and a new access is proposed from Cherry
Road. The project includes monument and building signage commensurate with the end user’s brand.

Development Order Amendment Standards & Concurrent Type 2 Variance Requests

The Westgate CRA reviews projects for consistency with the goals and objectives of the Community
Redevelopment Plan and compliance with WCRAO use regulations and PDRs. A thorough, multi-agency
review will be conducted upon submittal to the County’s Zaning Division. The project must comply with
Art. 2 review standards for Development Order Amendments (DOA) and Art. 2 standards for Type 2
variances.

The FLU in most areas of the WCRAO is CH or commercial high allowing for greater structural intensity.
N. Military Trail is one the CRA’s primary perimeter commercial corridors, where the FLU and zoning
supbort intense commercial development. Within the CRA district boundaries, Military Trail is largely
built out. Much of the land on the north and south sides of Cherry Road is owned by the County. Since
Airports will no longer permit residential use within regulated runway zones, the project is generally
compatible with surrounding uses,

All five (5) of the requested variances from the requirements of Art. 7 are necessary due to the number
of LWDD easements that encumber the eastern perimeter of the property. CRA staff generally supports
these variance requests; ail 5 have been granted by previcus development orders that have since been
abandoned or withdrawn. The area along the east property line contains easements covering 50 ft. into
the property. An east compatibility buffer cannot be placed without allowing a 100% encroachment into
the easement, and removing some landscape material; relocating the buffer would create an illogical
site design.

Architectural Standards

Preliminary architectural elevations renderings have been provided. A modern design aesthetic utilizing
dark grey and white tones with pops of the brand’s green has been achieved on the front street-facing
elevation, with a series of recesses and projections providing visual interest. Fenestration is minimal
with the exception of the front facing wall.

Page | 5
Westgate CRA Board Meeting
June 14, 2021
1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215 ~  West Palm Beach, Florida 33409 ~ 561.640.8181 ~ westgatecra.org

Ao



WESTGATEBELVEDERE HCMES}

The project is designed to minimize potential impacts even though no residential is adjacent.
Architectural standards such as screening of access points from all public streets with vehicular gates
have been accommodated in the site design. Separate entrances are provided for public access from
the east and west sides of the building; loading areas are adjacent. Unlike the many architectural
requirements for projects in the NC, NG or NRM Sub-areas, none exist for projects in the UH Sub-area.
Conditional uses typically require Art. 5.C architectural review by the Zoning Division.

=~ KENNETH
CARLSON

Architectural rendering

Traffic & Drainage Considerations

The overall MUPD generates 1,801 daily trips and 153 pm peak hour trips. 48 of those daily trips, and 8
pm peak trips, will return to the CRA’s Traffic Concurrency Exception Area (TCEA) pool as a result of the
abandonment of the vehicle sales and rental/general repair and maintenance development order for
the All-American Trailer project. Phase | of the proposed development includes a reduction of 120 daily
trips; with Phase |l proposing an additional 48 daily trips. The project is considered equivalent to the
approved uses and is in compliance with TPS and concurrency. No TCEA trips are requested.

Page | 6
Westgate CRA Board Meeling
June 14, 2021
1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215 ~ West Palm Beach, Florida 33409 ~ 561.640.8181 ~ westgatecra.org

A0\



Storm water will be managed through exfiltration trench and interconnected culvert pipes to accomplish
legal positive outfall to Cherry Road. No onsite retention is proposed. Due fo its location in the C-51
basin, this project, including site grading, will be reviewed for compensating floodplain storage and
permitted through the SFWMD.

Staff Recommendation

Staff recommends approval of applicant’s petition te include the following:

1. Development Order Abandonment of R-2016-0828 and R-2016-0829 (existing Conditional Use
approval for General Repair and Maintenance and Vehicle Sales and Rental) for Phase Il only;

2. Development Order Amendment of R-2016-0827 to reconfigure the MUPD site plan,
modify/delete conditions of approval, and allow a +/- 114,150 sf Limited Access Self-Storage
Facility with 1,200 sf of accessory office;

3. Five (5) Concurrent Type 2 Variances to include:

f) A 100% overlap of an easement into an 8 ft. landscape buffer (Art. 7.C.5.A);

g) Elimination of the required canopy trees within the easternmost 23.5 ft. of the Cherry

Rd. ROW buffer (Table 7.C.2.A);

h} Elimination of the required trees and shrubk material in the east buffer (Tahle 7.C.2.B);

i) Elimination of one tree per terminal landscape island (Table 7.C.4.A);

j} Elimination of one tree and shrubs per interior landscape island along the eastern
_ property line (Table 7.C.3.A); and,
4, Final DRO Site Plan approval.

Page | 7
Wesligate CRA Board Meeting
Jupe 14, 2021
1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215 ~ West Palm Beach, Florida 33409 ~ 561.640.8181 ~ westgatecra.org

AD



29



PALM BEACH COUNTY - ZONING DIVISION FORNM # 1

Palm Beach County Zoning Division
2300 N. Jog Road

West Palm Beach, Florida 33411
Phone: (561) 233-5200

Fax; (561} 233-5165

v Check Type(s} of Apphcatron Request(s) and comb!etel és apphcab!e
TPUBLIC HEARING REQUESTS IR 5,;,. B _‘ -"‘ _ '

[] oOfficial Zoning Map Amendment from Zoning Districtto___ Zoning District
[0  With a Concurrent Land Use Amendment from landUseto ____ lLandUse
[J Class A Conditional Use (CA) for
[J Class B Conditional Use (CB) for:
Development Order Abandonment (ABN) of Resolution No; R-2016-0826 & R2016-0828 which allowed i siewsd a Benenl Repalrand
Maintenance and Vehicle Sales & Rental Facility, only for Phase |l of the overall MUPD
0 Expedited Application Consideration (EAC) for:
Development Order Amendment (DOA} fo a previously approved;
p Y

O coz PDD/TDD [] ClassA [ Class B [J other:

OO To madity and/or delete Conditions of Approval; O To add and/for delete land area;
To reconfigure Plan{s) [ Master X Site [J Subdivision [0 To add andfor delete units;
[ Landscape {7 Regulatng [J Sign Plan [ Toadd, delete, or modify Uses;
To add and/or delete square footage; [0 To add access points;
] Other:
X Type 2 Variance: (Submit Form #43 Variance Supplemental) Concurrent Standalone []
[0 sSubdivision Variance: (Submit Form #43 Variance Supplemental) Concurrent []  Standalone [J
[0 PO Deviations: (Submit Form #92 PO Deviation) from Article(s)
[ Pre-Application Conference (PAC) IRO or PRA:  With Questions? [ Yes [No
O Type 2 Waiver: (Submit Form #18 Waiver Supplemental) Concurrent [J Standalone [
] Unigue Structure:
O other:

DRO ADMINISTRATIVE REQUESTS:

Expedited Development Review Officer approval (DROE) {within 2 months of BCC/ZC approval)
Use subject lo Devetoprment Review Officer (DRO) approval for

Pre-Application Conference (PAC) - Concurrent Review: With Questions? [lves [ No
Type 2 Concurrent Review: [T with Building Permit # or [] with Plat, Name/No.
Type 3 Concurrent Review (Zoning, Land Development and Buiiding)
Administrative Modification to a Plan approved by the ZC / BCC / DRO for

Administrative Abandonment (ABN) of a DRO Approval

O 0O OoOooo oo

Subdivision

]

Transfer of Development Rights (TDR} (Submit Form #16 TDR Supplemental)
[0  Type 1 Waiver (Submit Form #19 Waiver Supplemental) fram Arlicle for

0O  Other

Generat Apphcation - Public Hearing and DRO Administrative: Processes Revisad 712020

Page 1 af 4 Waeb Farmat 2015 50



PALM BEACH COUNTY - ZONING DIVISION

FORM & 1

3k

Current Proparty Owner(s) Name: Please see list of owners

Address:

State:

Phone: Please contact Agent

Email Address: Please contact Agent

City:

Zip:

Cell Phone: Please contact Agent

App[icant‘s name (if other than property aner(s): Sanjay Patel, Manager, MHG Hotels, LLC

Address: 12680 N.W. 65th Drive

State: FL

City: Parkland

Zip: 83078

Phone: Please contact Agent
Email Address: Please contact Agent

Cell Phone: Please contact Agent

. Check () here If Applicant is a contract purchaser. Consent is required from the contract purchaser if a contract is pending o
purchase the subject property. Home Owners Assoclation (HOA) or Property Owners Association {POA) consent will
be required if subject property is under common ownership or request Is to modify any aspect of the project which applies to the
entire development (i.e. condition of approval, internal roadway, etc.)

Agent:* Josh Nichels, LEED AP Name of Firm: Schmidt Nichols

Address: 1551 N. Flagler Dr., Suite 102 City: West Palm Beach State: FL Zip: 33401
Phone: 561.684.6141 Cell Phone #:

Email Address: jnichols@snlandplan.com

Agent:* Name of Firm:

Address: City: State: Zip:
Phone: Cell Phone #:

Email Address:

* All correspondence will be sent to the Agent(s) unless otherwise specified,

A. “Property Control Number (PCN): 00-42-43-25-00-000-5073; 00-42-43-25-00-000-5040; 00-42-43.26-00-000-5350;
{List additionial PCN(s) on separate shaet) 00-42-43-25-00-000-5400, 00-42-43-25-00-000-5030

B. *Control Number: 2017-0059

C. *Control Name : Cherry Road Plaza MUPD

D. Application Number: Cherry Road Plaza MUPD

E. *Application Name: TBD

F. Project Number: TBD

G. *Gross Acreage: 5.86

H. Gross Acreage of affected area: 5.86

I ;—;ﬁi’?; g;fﬂggg . o |NEC of Military Trail and Cherry Road '

J. *Address: 1450 N. Military Trail

K. *BCC District: 7

L. Overlay (Special Study Area): URA / RRIO / WCRAO

M. Tier ums [0 REX [JAGR [] GLADES

‘OR

ZONING, INF

X % 2
Current Future Land Use Proposed Future Land Use

designation: CH/8 designation: N/A

Current Zoning District: MUPD Proposed Zoning District: N/A

Existing Use(s): ;:tgasm; t“;?g';?::”g’im:;ﬂa Proposed Use{s): Same + imited access self storape
Existing Square Footage: |53,560 s.f. Proposed Square Footage: |214,586 s.1,

Existing Number of Units: |N/A Proposed Numker of Units: | N/A

General Application - Public Hearing and DRO Administrative Processes

Page 2 of 4

Revised 7/1/2020
Web Formal 2015

B\



PALM BEACH COUNTY - ZONING DIVISION

FORM # 1

This application is subject to the requirements of Arficle 5.C, Design Standards and request review of the
proposed elevations concurrent with:

[0 Type 1 Projects Requiring BCC Appraval
[0 Type 2 Projects Requiring ZC Approval

Type 3 Projects Requiring DRO or Site Plan Appraval
[ Type 4 Projects Requiring Building Permit Approval

This application also includes request{s) for Elevation review and consideration, as indicated below:

[0 Revise previously approved Elevations;

[J Non-conforming structures that are subject to Article 5.C, Percentage of Renovations;
g Approval for Green Architecture (Type T Waiver, Art.5.C.1.E.3}
O Approval for Unique Structure (Art.5.C.1.E.2)

Note: All application documents shall be consistent with the current Technical Manual, refer to the Zoning Web Page.

Complete the chart below to identify the Use and Zoning information for the surrounding properties to the project.

Adfacent FLU Zoning Existing Use Approved Use S:isfttino% Asppl:v:f C‘};tKr;I ¥ Resolution
Property District | (Res, Comm, Ind, ete.)| (Res, Gomm, Ind, etc.) Dl:JIAC I;II'J!AC Petition #) #R_
EAST INST/ PO Institutional PBC Supervisor | 31,470 31,470 N/A R-2008-1
IND (PBC) Of Efections s.f. s.f. 682
Auto Vehicle Sales & : .
north | CHI8 | CG | G Mamenance Single Famly 1051 dufac| 0.51 dufac)  N/A | R-1971-048
Retall i i
sourn | CH/8 | CG e acgr':gipmg Canauorcr:]r;dommm N/A N/A N/A R-1!:1JE1-04
west | CH®@ | CG Reaiagei?:rpping Singte Familly  |0.51 du/ac|0.51 dufac|  N/A N/A
Residential

s

- Is the property in compliance with all previous Conditions of Approval and applicable Code
YES No O Requirements? If no, please explain in the Justification Statement.
< | Is the property currently the subject of Code Enforcement action?
YES [ NO If yes, provide Code Enforcement Case Number:
YES [] NO Will the request require modification(s) to a recorded plat ar plat with Technical Compliance?
= | If yes, explain in the Justification Statement.
= Is the subject property an existing legal lot of record?
YES NO [ if no, submit Legal Lot Review Application fo the Land Development Division.
— | Does the proposed improvements exceed the allowable improvement value of the existing structure
ves O NO as identified in ULDC, Article 17 If yes, comply with Article 1.F — Nenconformities.
- Use(s) Square | Number of Phase '
Building Name . (as per ULDC) Footage Units Name QOutparcel
Auto Sales, Repair, | Auto Sales Light, Repair |34 540 s.f. N/A, Phase | of N/A
& Maintenance and Maintenance Light the MUPD
(ExIsting)
Car Wash Car Wash (Existing) | 1,020 s.f. N/A Phase || of N/A
(Existing} the MUPD
Retail (Existing | Retail Sale (Existing) |18,000 s.f. N/A Phase |1 of NFA
Furniture Store) MUPD
Self Storage | Limited Access Self | 1140001/ N/A | Prasel=i1a00 N/A
Phase | & || Storage 000 5. 47,000 51,

General Application — Public Hearing and DRO Adminisirative Processes

Page3of4

Revised 7/1/2020
Wely Formal 2015

o3



PALM BEACH COUNTY - ZONING DIVISION FORM # 1

Concurrency Reservation Concurrency Equivalency [7] Concurrency Exemption []

A. Water Provider: PBC

B. Waste Water Provider: PBC

C. Drainage District: LWDD

D. Traffic Provider: PBC Traffic Trips Existing: N/A

E. Mass Transit Provider: PBC Palm Tran Traffic Trips Proposed: | TBD

F. Traffic Capacity: U rostor o 301 vt sty it s ropares) TBD

G. Public School: PBC

H. Public Health Provider: PBC Well /Septic tank : PBC
. Parks FBC

J. Fire Rescue PBC

K. Solid Waste: PBC

L. Check the proposed means of achieving access from the development site to a point of Legal Positive

Qutfall for storm water discharged from the site:

[ Property is configuous to a natural waterway, or a canal owned and aperated by a water control district.

Property owner has |legally established drainage rights to convey storm water through all intervening properties
between the development site and natural waterway or water control district canal,

Property abuts a road with a functioning drainage system, and property owner has abtained written confirmation
from the entfity responsible for maintaining the road that the proposed development is eligible to utilize the road
drainage system, subjeci to meeting all permit requirements for drainage connection.

0 Other (specify);

B ENVRONRERTAR AR S

| ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCE MANAGEMENT (ERM) —Aft. 148.8.C . =~ . ° L
Yes [J No If yes; a Pre-Application Appointment with ERM is required;
Enter date of PAA meeting with ERM May 25, 2021 :

[s there Native Vegetation on Site?

General Vegetation Statement:
Property previously cleared with the exception of sabals and a canopy tree which has been designed
to remain on-site, sabals will be relocated.

Existing and Proposed 16.6'
Grade/Elevation where existing
Native Vegetation is to be preserved:

Is site in a Wellfield protection zone? (] Yes [X|No [f yes; submit Wellfield Protection Affidavit, available from ERM

HEALTH DEPARTMENT - Art.15

In Justification Statement, under heading “Hazardous Material", address type(s) and amount of:

1) all industrial, manufacturing, special or hazardous waste that may be generated; 2) airborne pollutanis that
may be generated (i.e. dust or other unconfined particulates such as NOx, SOx, CO, VOC's, heavy metals,
etc.); and, 3) any special handling of solid waste that may be required.

This application is not complete without the following documents as attachments;

1. Justification Statement: to address the purpose, project history, intent and design objectives of
this request, refer to Art.2.A.6.A.1 for the required information,

2. Status of Conditions of Approval (COA):
a. Provide letter/document which includes the status of all current Conditions of Approval;
b. Include the exact language for any modification(s) to any Condition of Approval;
¢. If the application request requires time extension for Commencement of Development or
recording a Plat, then provide further explanation. (This explanation may be added to the
Justification Statement.)

Note: Please refer to PZB Zoning Website for all ULDC Articles http://www.pbcgov.com/ulde/index.hitm
referenced in this document and the Technical Manual for helpful information

http://www.pbegev.com/techmanual/index.htm

General Application — Pubiic Hearing and DRO Administralive Processes Revised 7/1/2020
Page 4 of 4 Web Farmat 2015

55



r\ SCHMIDT
N NICHOLS

-, LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE
% AND URBAN PLANNING

Justification Statement
Cherry Road Plaza MUPD
Westgate Community Redevelopment Agency (WCRA) Submittal
Development Order Amendment Application
Development Order Abandonment Application and
Type Il Variance (Concurrent) Application
Original Submittal: June 1, 2021

Applicant Requests

On behalf of AATC Realty, LLC (the “Applicant”) our office respectfully requests
consideration of the following applications to develop the vacant portion of the
property as a limited access self-storage facility. Below is an outline of the
required applications/requests:

Request 1: Development Order Amendment (Reconfigure the Site Plan, add

s.f. to incorporate self-storage use, modify andf/or delete PDD
' Conditions of Approval per R-2016-0827 for the MUPD)

Request 2: Development Order Abandonment (Abandon Resolution No. R-
2016-0828 and R-2016-0829, which allowed a General Repair and
Maintenance and Vehicle Sales & Rental Facility, only for Phase I
of the overall MUPD)

Request 3: Type Il Zoning Concurrent Variances (Total of 5 variances for
easement encroachment into the 8 compatibility buffer and to
eliminate landscaping requirements within the parking areas
encumbered by easements)

The subject property is 5.86 acres which includes what is been designated by
Palm Beach County Zoning (PBC Zoning) as Phase | of the Cherry Road Plaza
MUPD. PBC Zoning has also determined that the request must also include the
Greater Yamaha property which increases the total land area to 9.89 acres
(considered as Phase |l of the overall MUPD). The affected area is
approximately 3.5 acres (PCN 00-42-43-25-00-000-5030; 5040; 5073) and is
subject the DOA to reconfigure the site plan, Type Il Variances, and the
abandonment applications. The affected area portion of the property is currently
vacant and undeveloped. The affected area currently supports approvals for
Vehicle Sales and Rental and Repair and Maintenance for a trailer sales facility
which is not moving forward with construction on the site. The balance of the
property is currently constructed with an existing automated car wash (1,020 s.f.)
and an 18,000 s.f. retail building currently operated by Badcock Furniture. The
affected area resides within Phase [l of the Cherry Plaza MUPD and was
previously approved and reflected on Exhibit 53 under Control No. 1977-041.
The site plans associated with Phase | and Phase Il are separate and do not
have overlapping improvements. The subject application will only provide the
Phase |l site plan following the prior approval process. We have put together an

1551 N Flagler Drive Suite 102, West Palm Bezch, FL 33401 m T: 561.684.6141 | E: [schmidi@snlandplan.com

%



Justification Statement

Cherry Road Plaza MUPD

Palm Beach County (PBC)} Zoning Application
Original Submittal: June 1, 2021

Page 2 of 13

overall site plan which graphically depicts Phase | and Phase Il on an overall
plan sheet. Based on the previous DOA, it was also agreed that we would
submit the previously approved Phase ! site plan as-is with minor modifications to
the site data to accurately indicate the Phase Il development details.

The MUPD was originally parked based on individual uses, the previous DOA
was changed to utilize the MUPD parking range, however, range will not work for
self-storage as the parking is based on s.f. not on storage bays. This would
result in an extraordinary number of parking spaces in excess of what is required
to adequately serve the use. That said, the applicant is proposing to change the
parking back to parking by use. This has no impact on Phase | which is the
former Greater Yamaha facility. The MUPD has been subdivided per the
property appraiser records as it currently indicates there are three property
owners, however, the center was never platted. The Applicant will re-plat the
property and provide the subdivision lines accordingly once the plat has been
recorded.

The property is heavily encumbered by several easements (LWDD, Utility,
Drainage easements) along the east property line which consumes 50’ of the
east portion of the property. This has pushed much of the proposed
development to the west. The access point from Military Trail will remain open
and will create a central corridor bringing patrons to the rear of the property. An
access point which was previously approved from Cherry Road will be utilized to
bring patrons in to access the self-storage leasing office. The proposed
development will add 161,000 s.f. of limited access self-storage to the overall
center and is proposed to be phased in two buildings. The Phase | building will
be 114,000 s.f. in a 3-story building with an outdoor boat/RV storage area which
will be built out with a 47,000 s.f. 3-story self-storage building in Phase Il.

Below is a summary of surrounding properties:

Adjacent | - oy SRR PR L
Lands | FLU . Zo,‘nujg‘ _ o ~ Uses
: Subject : Vehicle Sales and Service and Repair and
- Property CH8 MUPD Maintenance, Car Wash, Retalil
I Vehicle Sales and Rental, Repair and
: _North - CH/8 CG Maintenance
South CH/8 CG Retail Sales
~ East | INST/IND PO Palm Beach County Gov't Uses
" West CH/8 CG Retail Sales

1551 N Flagler Drive Suite 102, West Palm Beach, FL 33401 & T: 561.682.6141 | E: jschmidt@snlandplan.com

o



Justification Statement

Cherry Road Plaza MUPD

Palm Beach County (PBC) Zoning Application
Original Submittal: June 1, 2021

Page 3 of 13

Request 1 and 2: Development Order Amendment to Add Land Area and to
Reconfigure the Site Plan

This application is a request for a Development Order Amendment (DOA) to
reconfigure the site plan:

DEVELOPMENT ORDER AMENDMENT (DOA)

Per Unified Land Development Code (ULDC) Art.2.B.2.B 1-8, Standards,
Development Order Amendment (DOA) must take the following standards into
consideration:

1. Consistency with the Plan ‘

a. The subject property has a future land use (FLU) designation of
CH/8 which is consistent with the existing zoning designation of
MUPD. The applicant proposes a requested use on the subject
property. The proposed FAR is permissible with regard to the .85
maximum FAR set forth by the Comprehensive Plan. The
modification of conditions of approval do not impact any elements
of the Comprehensive Plan. Per Policy 2.2.2-a.2., uses shall
include a wide range of uses to serve the community and region
commercial demand.

2. Consistency with the Code

a. The proposed use is a requested use within the MUPD zoning
district. The site plan proposed for the property meets all
applicable Code requirements with the exception of the location of
the required compatibility buffers along the north and east property
boundaries. The site is encumbered by several LWDD and Utility
easements which encumber 50’ of the east property and make it
very difficult to design the site with this existing condition. The
proposed variance would allow the buffer to remain fully within the
easement. The other variances are requested to allow perimeter
buffers and required parking and maneuvering area.

Article 3 — Overlays and Zoning Districts

Table 3.E.1.B — PDD Use Matrix

Limited Access Self Storage — DRO use within an MUPD
supporting Commercial High FLU.

Article 4: The proposed amendment is consistent with the use
regulations outlined in this article.

The project will comply with the standards listed in ULDC Article 4, Use
Regulations as follows:

1551 N Flagler Drive Suite 102, Weast Palm Beach, FL 33401 = T: 561.684.56141 | E: jschmidt@snlandplan.com

Ao



Justification Statement

Cherry Road Plaza MUPD

Palm Beach County (PBC) Zoning Application
Original Submittal: June 1, 2021

Page 4 of 13

Per ULDC Art.4.B.2.A.37.a, Seif-Service Storage
A facility consisting of individual, self-contained units that are leased fir
the storage of business, household or other personal items.

1) Types Permitted: Self-Service Storage facilities may include but
are not limited to Limited or Multi-Access storage units, with or
without Outdoor Storage areas, limited to the storage of personal or
household goods, automobiles, recreational vehicles, boats, or
personal watercraft, only, subject to the following:
a) Limited Access: Limited Access is a Self-Service
Storage facility with limited access points from the exterior of
the building to interior halls that serve individual storage
units.

Response: The proposed self-storage facility expansion will
have limited access points from the exterior of the building to
interior halls that serve the individual storage units.
Therefore, the proposed use is a Limited Access Self-
Service Storage facility.

€. Architecture
1) Storage Access or Storage Unit Door Screening:
Access points and storage unit doors shall be screened from
all public streets, residential uses or vacant parcels with a
residential FLU designation, through the use of buildings,
walls, opaque vehicular gates which primarily remain closed,
or other similar barriers.

Response: The proposed expansion of the self-storage
facility will consist of a 3-story, 114,000 square feet phase |
building and 47,000 s.f. phase Il building, which will not be
constructed to have access points to storage units facing
any public rights of way or adjacent residential parcels.

2) FeneStration: The use of fenestration that allows visibility
of storage unit doors or is designed in conjunction with
interior signage, logos, lighting, or paint schemes intended to
expand permitted exterior signage shall be prohibited.

Response: The proposed building will not employ
fenestration features that allows visibility of storage unit
doors nor will it be designed in conjunction with interior
signage, logos, lighting, or paint schemes.

Article 5: The applicant will submit the preliminary architectural plans
(elevations, floor, roof) for review to be in compliance with Article 5.C

1551 N Flagler Drive Suite 102, West Palm Beach, FL 33401 m T: 5561.684.6141 | E: jschmidt@snlandplan.com

M



Justification Statement

Cherry Road Plaza MUPD

Palm Beach County (PBC) Zoning Application
Original Submittal: June 1, 2021

Page 5 of 13

at time of building permit.

Article 6: The proposed amendment meets the standards listed in
ULDC Art.6, Parking, as follows:

e Per ULDC Table 6.A.1.B, Minimum Off-Street Parking, as
follows:
» CarWash - 1 space/200 s.f. of office, retail @ 1,020 s.f. =
5
» Retail - 1 space/200 s.f. @ 18,000 s.f. = 90
» Limited Access Self-Storage - 1 space/200 storage bays,
min. 5 customer spaces @ 1,000 bays = 5 (Phase |)
» Limited Access Self-Storage - 1 space/200 storage bays,
min. 5 customer spaces @ 450 bays = 2 (Phase I[)

Required Parking: 102 spaces
Phase | Parking Provided: 133 spaces
Phase Il Parking Provided: 133 spaces

e Per ULDC Table 6.A.1.D, Parking Spaces for Persons Who
Have Disabilities, the proposed conditional use meets the
required spaces for persons who have disabilities as follows:

o Required: 5 ADA spaces '
o Provided: 5 ADA spaces

e Per ULDC Table 6.A.1.B(6), Limited Access Self-Storage
facilities must provide a minimum of two off-sireet loading
spaces at each entry into the building, excluding office access
not utilized by customers for accessing storage units. The
proposed facility meets this requirement as follows:

o Required: 11 loading spaces
o Provided: 11 loading spaces

Article 7: The proposed amendment is consistent with the standards
listed in ULDC Art.7, Landscaping as follows:

e Per ULDC Table 7.C.2.A, Width of R-O-W Buffer, the proposed
project will require a 15-foot buffer along Cherry Road ROW.

¢ All other buffers around the property are required to be an 8-foot
minimum compatibility landscape buffer. This buffer is provided
on the east abutting the County’s property.

Article 8: The proposed amendment is consistent with the standards
listed in ULDC Art.8, Signage as follows:

The applicant is proposing wall signage fo the proposed building. All
1551 N Flagler Drive Suite 102, West Palm Beach, FL 33401 & T: 561.684.6141 | E: jschmidt@snlandplan.com

o}e



Justification Statement

Cherry Road Plaza MUPD

Palm Beach County (PBC) Zoning Application
Original Submittal: June 1, 2021

Page 6of 13

signage is in compliance with Article 8 signage standards. A Master
Sign Plan is included with this application as reqwred by Art.8.E.3.B
more specifically as follows:

¢ Maximum Sign Area:
o 1.0 square feet for each lineal foot of the front wall to which the sign
is attached;
= South Fagade Length = 100 Lf. (Max 100 s.f.)
o 0.5 square feet for each lineal foot of the side and rear wall to which
the sign is attached; or
» West Fagade Length = 400 I.f. (Max 200 s.f.)
= East Facade Length = 390 L.f. (Max 195 s.f.)
» North Fagade Length = 100 L.f. (Max 50 s.f.)
o Allowable facades: Front, Side and Rear if facing a street;

Per ULDC Table 8.G.2.A, Freestanding Sign Standards, the project is
currently proposing one (1) freestanding monument sign along Cherry
Road and will comply with the standards for the U/S Tier.

3. Compatibility with Surrounding Uses
a. The surrounding properties are commercial and/or institutional in
nature with a vehicle sales and rental facility to the north,
commercial shopping center to the south across Cherry Road and a
public school to the east. There are no anticipated impacts
resulting from the proposed use.

4. Design Minimizes Adverse Impact
The proposed site plan preserves a specimen tropical almond tree.
The design provides for an integration of uses within the MUPD and
finishes out the last remaining vacant portion of the development.
The site is surrounded by similar uses and at the intersection of two
commercial ROWs within the Wesigate CRA’s Urban Highway sub-
district.

5. Design Minimizes Environmental Impact
a. The design incorporates the existing tropical almond tree and the
sabal palms will be relocated to the buffers.

6. Development Patterns
a. The property is contiguous to commercial and institutional land
uses and the subject property was previously approved for a more
intense automotive retail use. The site is zoned MUPD which
provides the basis for uses similar in nature to the proposed repair
and maintenance as well as the vehicle sales and rental.

7. Consistency with Neighborhood Plans
1551 N Flagler Drive Suite 102, West Palm Beach, FL 33401 & T: 561.684.6141 | E: jschmidt@snlandplan.com

jou!



Justification Statement

Cherry Road Plaza MUPD

Palm Beach County (PBC) Zoning Application
Original Submittal: June 1, 2021

Page 7 of 13

a. The subject property lies within the Westgate CRA Overlay. All
applicable code provisions relating to THE WCRAQO have been
addressed on the proposed plan. The property is within the Urban
Highway (UH) sub-district which is intended to allow the for the
standard ULDC provisions to prevalil.

8. Adequate Public Facilities
a. The subject property has adequate public facilities as required per
the previous request and approval.

9. Changed Conditions or Circumstances

a. The applicant is requesting to reconfigure the site plan to add the
vehicle sales and repair and maintenance uses to the plan. The
subject property has remained vacant for several years without any
development. The County requires vehicle sales and rental
facilities to be cited on properties of 3 or more acres. This is often
difficult to find with frontage on an arterial or collector that can meet
the ULDC standards. The subject property is a great candidate for
such a use since it has secondary frontage on Cherry and meets
the minimum acreage thresholds.

Request 3: Type Il Concurrent Zoning Variance

The applicant respectfully requests consideration of five (5) Type |l Concurrent
Zoning Variances. The first variance is required to allow for the required &
landscape buffer to be located within the existing LWDD and Utility easements
which encumber the site.

1551 N Flagler Drive Suite 102, Wast Palm Beach, FL 33401 & T: 561.684.6141 | E: [schmidt@snlandplan.com

(00O



Justification Statement

Cherry Road Plaza MUPD

Palm Beach County (PBC) Zoning Application
Original Submittal: June 1, 2021

Page B of 13
TYPE 2 ZONING VARIANCES (CONCURRENT)
APPROVAL
ULDC ARTICLE REQUIRED PROPOSED VARIANCE DATE/RESOLUTION
NO.
At.7.C.5.A
Easements may overlap a 100% overlap of an To allow for a 100%
Owverlap of Easementing | Maximum of &', provided there | easementintothe 8 | overlap of an easement TBD
Compatibliity Buffer remains 5' clear for planting landscape buffer into a 8'landscape buffer
Table 7.C.2.A No canopytrees within | To eiminate the canopy
A 1 canopy free per 25 linear | the eastemmost 23.5° of trees within the 18D
R-O-W Buffer Landscape | feet the Cherry Road ROW | easternmost 23.5' of the
Requirements buffer Cherry Road ROW buffer
Table 7.C.2.B
Tree, shrubs, and hedges shalll No trees and hedges To eliminate the frees
Compatibliity Bufier be provide;iui;eml perimeter materiiligeme east andmdge maut;erial In TBD
Landscape Requirements rs " east buffer
Tablo 7044 Terminal Islands shall h N thin the
erminal Islands sl ave a o freas within -
Land§cape lsland and | minimum length of 15 feetand | temminallandscape To gm;;zﬁ;;zgaeeeper 18D
Divider Medlan include a minimum of ore tree | islands along the east island P
Planting and Dimensional perisland property ling sla
Requirements
Table 7.C.3.A
- ! . Noa trees and hedges To eliminate one tree
Interior islands shail contain . L
. ; within the interior and hedges per interior
& Inle;or Liandscatzlrg ane tr;i:dndc:vzl:a ropenate landscape islards along | fandscaps Island along oD
equiremen g g the east property line the east propertyline

Per Unified Land Development Code (ULDC) Art.2.B.3.E, Standards,
applications for Type Il Variances must take the following standards into
consideration:

VARIANCE INFORMATION:

Per ULDC Article 2.B.3, requires a statement of special reason or the basis for
the variance required. Article 2.A.3.E states that in order to authorize a variance,
the Zoning Commission shall and must find that the conditions enumerated have
been met. The Seven Standards below are one of factors Staff uses in
formulating their recommendations and opinions. Address each standard
completely and attach additional information or documentation as necessary.

General Statement of Variance.

All of the proposed variances are tied together for purposes of the analysis as it
relates to the seven variance standards. These variances all relate to easement
encumbrances in the perimeter buffers as well as the required terminal and
interior landscape islands which are also encumbered by the same easements
along the east property line.

V1. ULDC 7.C.5.A. Easement overlap in landscape buffers
V2: ULDC Article 7.F.2.A.1.a ROW Buffer Trees (Southeast corner of the

1551 N Flzgler Drive Suite 102, West Palm Beach, FL 33401 m T: 561.684.6141 | E: jschmidt@sniandplan.com

(o)



Justification Statement

Cherry Road Plaza MUPD

Paim Beach County (PBC) Zoning Application
Original Submittal: June 1, 2021

Page 9 of 13

property)

V3: ULDC Article 7.C.2.B. Eliminate trees and hedge material in compatibility
buffer (East PL)

V4/V5: ULDC 7.C.4.A and 7.C.3.A Terminal and Interior islands to eliminate
trees encumbered by easements (East PL)

These variances are required due to the number of easements which encumber
the eastern property line. More specifically the eastern property line supports 50'
of easements over the property. The adjacent property is zoned PO and
supports an Institutional/Industrial FLU, therefore, only an 8' compatibility buffer
is required, however, it is totally encumbered by said easements. It is not
feasible to relocate the 8’ buffer to the west boundary of the easements as this
results in a detriment to the site layout as it would be located within the drive
aisle. In addition, it will inhibit the LWDD access to the canal to the north. The
request is to allow the 8' buffer to remain in its current location, with existing and
additional planting material (shrubs) to be accommodated within the existing &’
landscape buffer area.

TYPE 1l VARIANCE SEVEN (7) STANDARDS

1. SPECIAL CONDITIONS AND CIRCUMSTANCES EXIST THAT ARE
PECULIAR TO THE PARCEL OF LAND, BUILDING OR STRUCTURE,
THAT ARE NOT APPLICABLE TO OTHER PARCELS OF LAND,
STRUCTURES OR BUILDINGS IN THE SAME ZONING DISTRICT:

RESPONSE: Special conditions and circumstances exist that are peculiar to the
parcel of land, building or structure that are not applicable to other parcels of
land, structures or buildings in the same district.

Furthermore,

V1/V2/V3/V4AIN5: The subject property is located within a previously approved
MUPD. The past approvals have all included variances to allow 100%
encroachment of the utility easement into the landscape buffer. This was
requested three times previously under Applications ZV-2007-203, ZV-2007-732,
and ZV-2016-035. The first two applications were withdrawn, however, not due
to the nature of the variance request, the third was approved. The property
includes several easements which total 50’ in width from the property line. It is
very peculiar to the parcel that these easements would be encumbering the east
portion of the property. The building has been setback to accommodate the
easements, however, to relocate the landscape buffer would not result in a
logical development and would inhibit the ability for LWDD to access the canal to
the north.

1551 N Flagler Drive Suite 102, West Paim Beach, FL 33401 & T: 561.684.6141 | E: jschmidt@snlandplan.com

(22



Justification Statement

Cherry Road Plaza MUPD

Palm Beach County (PBC) Zoning Application
Original Submittal: June 1, 2021

Page 10 0f 13

2. SPECIAL CIRCUMSTANCES AND CONDITIONS DO NOT RESULT
FROM THE ACTIONS OF THE APPLICANT:

RESPONSE: There are special circumstances and conditions that apply that are
not a result of actions by the applicant.

Furthermore,

V1N2/V3IV4IN5: The subject property has been previously approved and the
easements were placed on the property prior to the Applicant going under
contract fo purchase the property. The east property line serves as a point of
access to the LWDD canal to the north that said two 25’ access easements have
been applied to the site plan to maintain unrestricted access to the north of the
site. A 30" PBC WUD easement was required upon research by our civil
engineer that the east property line contained existing water main and sewer line
that never had an easement over them. In order to provide this easement the
variances are necessary to make reasonable use of the property.

3. GRANTING THE VARIANCE SHALL NOT CONFER UPON THE
APPLICANT ANY SPECIAL PRIVILEGE DENIED BY THE
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AND THIS CODE TO OTHER PARCELS OF
LAND, BUILDINGS OR STRUCTURES IN THE SAME ZONING
DISTRICT:

RESPONSE: Granting the variance will not confer any special privilege upon the
applicant denied by the Comprehensive Plan and this Code to other parcels of
land, buildings or structures in the same zoning district.

Furthermore,

VA/V2IV3/V4IV5: The easements imposed were that of LWDD and Palm Beach
County. These easements were not required for development of the property as
a result of the applicant’s actions. The easements have encumbered the site and
this relief would be granted similar parcels with similar circumstances.

4. LITERAL INTERPRETATION AND ENFORCEMENT OF THE TERMS
AND PROVISIONS OF THIS CODE WOULD DEPRIVE THE APPLICANT
OF RIGHTS COMMONLY ENJOYED BY OTHER PARCELS OF LAND IN
THE SAME ZONING DISTRICT, AND WOULD WORK AN
UNNECCESSARY AND UNDUE HARDSHIP:

1551 N Flagler Drive Suite 102, West Palm Beach, FL 33401 & T: 562.684.6141 | £: jschmidt@snlandplan.com

(o3




Justification Statement

Cherry Road Plaza MUPD

Palm Beach County (PBC) Zoning Application
Criginal Submittal: June 1, 2021

Page 11 of 13

RESPONSE: Literal interpretation and enforcement of the terms and provisions
of this code would deprive the applicant of rights commonly enjoyed by other
parcels of land in the same zoning district and would work an unnecessary and
undue hardship. '

Furthermore,

V1/V2/V3/V4/V5: Literal interpretation of the Code would place a 8' buffer 50’
west of the property line in the middle of a drive aisle. This would also restrict
access to the LWDD canal for which the easements were created. The current
MUPD was approved with the existing buffer in place and the applicant would
propose the buffer fo remain in the current location to avoid restriction fo the
numerous easements. Sirict interpretation of the code would render the east 50°
of the property useless without the ability to provide parking or buffer and shift
the drive aisle creating a misalignment with the driveway to the south across
Cherry Road. Additionally, the property ownership area is fairly narrow so any
loss of property east to west would render the site very difficult to develop.

5. GRANTING OF THE VARIANCE IS THE MINIMUM VARIANCE THAT
WILL MAKE POSSIBLE THE REASONABLE USE OF THE PARCEL OF
LAND, BUILDING OR STRUCTURE:

RESPONSE: Granting these variances are the minimum needed for the
reasonable use of the property as an outdoor auto auction.

Furthermore,

V1/V2/V3IV4IN5: The 8 landscape buffer is existing and 100% encumbered by
the aforementioned easements. The Applicant is merely requesting to allow the
landscape buffer to remain in the current location which already provides 5’ of
landscaping. The parking along the east side of the property was previously
permitted with the same underground infrastructure in place. The current
proposal is no different, however, the installation of trees within 7' of said
underground infrastructure would be adverse to the long term use of these
facilities. The proposed terminal and interior landscape islands will also be
encumbered by the same easemerits.

6. GRANT OF THE VARIANCE WILL BE CONSISTENT WITH THE
PURPOSES, GOALS, OBJECTIVES, AND POLICIES OF THE
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AND THIS CODE:

1551 N Flagler Drive Suite 102, West Palm Beach, FL 33401 ® T: 561.684.6141 | E: jschmidt@snlandplan.com

(oA



Justification Statement

Cherry Road Plaza MUPD

Palm Beach County (PBC) Zoning Application
Original Submittal: June 1, 2021

Page 12 of 13

RESPONSE: Granting of the requested variances will be consistent with the
purposes, goals, objectives and policies of the comprehensive plan and the
ULDC.

Furthermore,

VAN2IV3IVAIV5: The subject property and overall MUPD contains similar uses
in nature and is surrounded by institutional uses as well as other intense
commercial parcels. There are very few properties which support a consistent
Future Land Use designation and Zoning designation to support a vehicles sales
use and there are even less that can support it on an existing developed parcel in
a predominately commercial development. Granting the requested variances will
be consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and the ULDC based on the current
FLU and Zoning and the fact that the proposed use is complementary to the
existing uses within the overall development. The portion of the property to
which these variances govern is not accessible by the public and have been
requested to ensure efficient operation of the business.

7. THE GRANTING OF THE VARIANCE WILL NOT BE INJURIOUS TO
THE AREA INVOLVED OR OTHERWISE DETRIMENTAL TO THE
PUBLIC WELFARE:

RESPONSE: Granting of the requested variances will clearly not be injurious to
the area involved or otherwise detrimental to the public welfare.

Furthermore,

VAN2IV3IV4AINS: The granting of the requested variances will not be injurious to
the area involved or detrimental to the public welfare as the property will function
similar to other vehicle sales facilities who host customer restricted inventory
areas. The inventory storage is specifically designated for employees to stack
the vehicles and maneuver them for sales purposes. The surrounding properties
are very similar in nature to the proposed use of the property. The property is
currently subject to the migratory patterns of the homeless from the canal to
Cherry Road. The Applicant is proposing fencing and gates to prevent this
pedestrian foot iraffic which wilt improve security in the area. These variances
will seek to ensure that the underground utilities are secure and to avoid any
potential breaks to these lines which provides services to other properties within
the vicinity.

On behalf of AATC Realty, LLC (the “Applicant”), Schmidt Nichols respecifully
requests your approval of this Development Order Amendment, Development

1551 N Flagler Drive Suite 102, West Palm Beach, FL 33401 & T: 561.684.6141 | E: jschimidt@snlandplan.com

(6D



Justification Statement

Cherry Road Plaza MUPD

Palm Beach County (PBC) Zoning Application
Original Submittal: June 1, 2021

Page 13 of 13

Order Abandonment Application and Type Il Variance (Concurrent) applications
for Cherry Road Plaza MUPD.

1551 N Flagler Drive Suite 102, West Palm Beach, FL 33401 = T: 5561.684.6141 | E: jschmidt@snlandplan.com

ol



(0



FRGS 70 10 Zo ON B3N§ AEAAYMN m “ »
1
a3 s <1 s 1
WL g mamyy o a L TF o _/ ¥ b
B E & ] i
au “Hupdaing, i siguizoome & _
SXEC=T
1\ 1UI0]03D) . . o (R |
E P = & a ' s " HTvma -
STIIOH DelA_ 0] passdig & rshn.cﬁkus ISy - )
— ! e ol "
AJAHNS SASN/VLIV P Ll e T - ot e
. o AGROLL0LS
1 avoH AYHIHD (W05 C DL L2 Tonrees revanvd | | GPOERTH crgseniry 2 7ot o o “ s
E LE e e - T 1 x (d30m 4 g - dotones, tumea K g * -~ i T o
i vt Koo R [ HI0HE0NT ssv - N T “h o o 5 - LA | e
i smoosimonearom, [ 4: o #EFLmATE . e F - 2 N L T e 1 gwuhw wﬂ.%._% .m.._ﬁnzuﬂ R N0
3 . y o . sy s
f 3 ubyeap o o i SORR e e " a1 94 "s41e 0330) | ey e R e -H
H nun g payaes by Vel - ? _uw._z_w.wwm . # 015 Ba a130) ?ua-qﬁ%mﬂsuav muﬂmu:ﬂsn ROUNLS FUuiTs 009 5 .\..p o T TTET
el TRy T i . oz LI R g
B PIO0) § RSP 8 ANTIOrete KRN ASIN - = AR F wr ZILEEIN
g k- e et g el e S e A N [ 2 N b ey e e ety
b L HITEM W0 3
E e o pirodrelyii a0 !
of =0 10 pRmadap N == 4 +
aTs aay) sl W) o e 1
1 smes nEed o [
i g 0t UL ] oy e ovier - 3 Lo 8
2] wareres soybaiy ar snpou M e - on JrA—
] 4 33 e oy -3 = 4IRS . R
3 e £ S ; " * s * s B e 40358
E UNIDI1IIL Bl 1 o . ] - - == - - j
b &
i 1
: | e 1 8
E S = W T £ || 5a
] o L — [l n'n_—g-...“n-whw ik} 33 I * m _ mmﬂ
M L ¢ Leitrrk]
i e \owori || Ei “Boet) A “Eot) MS BRI LEVHLNCH Hig = m 8t
o arint St L) M = ! gl
= S — 5 | &
— T ——— B
e o o v || g &
n ER O SL/R T MITI oo 5 nm
ST Ty e 2o A 2 2
o e | | ENE) vaen i f i
&v Sahd NUHTD =T ) Svooe 8 ]!
Wt a3 TIEEE £ o i) = *. mmw 1
o o D e 33
£ isoeL I aoo | ] alt FEE]
s pe=—r aa = 3 mmm _
s P o ‘ov0s m gk
K 1 L] scoor h rd m 1 =
Fo Aol e ausno sz o | eooor &. o m al m
W £ z
5 w0 o5 EE) 1008 E:.E.Bhndﬂk A mum | 2
& ot &1 0 wwor | AFEAESYE ALTLLN 21 o . mme m
) cwoct Y Secod preee wr P2 £
e == X v | g 1 mm &
ac [ £La Sxook Se Eduvd HE 5 g
A aowxt oL tovos oA~ e a, 8 g
ot T A2 oid d ' \1_“ i m “(
s et oo oeoon arocw 1 od s weo) ] 1| &34
I od Lhroce ) coon i RIS Adn 2L : T Ve aum
Y [ Y [ ' N.. oo mlm_
L5YE Tr JONVY N %)
i il il 10 HUNCS 0 crgoL SZ oL A H X a1 i
o oot o oo IWiF2S i A LA SHO LVD h i e ..w 5
e Taoc o oo | i H mo wm
1o £EROCE niva s £ [ H Hek [~ 3 . .W
o e = o i HHE wm
o =
s o o X Taoo Egﬁﬂgk : e m.. * %
S19 ) i KD ST veoow tooay "o 'weriz WHol m H H i EL IR
o et o s [ s RN 0 4 2z ]
KR o ) [E2] B i i mmm_
L ot ) wioon w6t 0 N Byl ad e i gou!
iz oa woroct G el e L HE 1S MMMM_
£ 04 HYOEY 1o [ ANSINSYE RIS P RS0 2 o I ...nmm
X carat & s1000 2 e n: Lams
) o) T a ary T + % p rﬂn:mmm&_h ~,
WD g o wn Tiooy 91T AATTT o _w F i Hi 208
MY NN - -\vf H " “
o 4500 ANd s 52 zio 4 : Iy e
to oo S a vo | |¢h B 0 P ol B 030G |
aa 3000 o) S0 0 L. ] ] L .
T T ey 3 Pl éfmr H I  ecr
E o x o o wld
X o I wom m . v i|..4.d..|i.1\-hv¢. o \
na 2o A co00h " —D - .ox _ .."- ............... — ol b
s v B w1 | ey S0 I T S AL e A= e L EERRTRARE R SN W L0 Al o e !
Ol I Je W Ot sogRews T N e 8 e e e A e e e s L
S o w00 iy o | |1t e Eid i i . e &% v el
L i | ] . , el e
) [ o o |12 'S { PR, P _ y
] T o Tom o4 P aﬁ-ﬁd&% ik uaf:.unw.ﬂwsmludw 'SZ HOLLZES 40 (1) 36 3HL 30 (7L} AN SHL 20 [} M 30 EEAB0T LSIMHLE0N 3
A ) L1 GHY 0015208 RS SY 1~
AEw 5008 Siu wom ! HENON 3L S0 THTHINGS 1S
ayediy saig = wpdig ang. Eag L0 g C1Z W) } SFTIBIVED 90 S . . : r—\.
o zown Sresnsens d HTIOO AL NO B 220 ZOUMH "5 £ dHSHVOL 'STROLLIFS 20 (1) LSVEHINOS 40 WENEOD ISIMMIMON | wal e,
aEL 3L L2 w04 nzsva S _ Fi ENZWIDNSWWOD J0 LNIod o
ARL —
“3 2 A00VH S € JEHENANDL ST NOLLDIS 30 (1) LSYSHLNOS 30 3NN HLBON ’ m

(0B




ARYS 70 )0 18 0N KRN
! [l e P A0 T B
J eemtsniens  ppmeyemy M st et ZIUQ sim
au) "Buddaung ] 1 1

O VLAV 0 VR0 2

o402 A T

S YUOVCTEI SHL HOTHEHA ¥ S04 30 61 0N @1 '21 31 WL T4 0L °6 % "I0M0E 2 B X 2 | SMEL S30T0m

TILLL OWW SASHY, SN0
- > |u1= - W ] — -1 ﬂuﬁﬂg‘i&hﬁiﬁ!ﬁﬁ_ﬂnﬂfDﬁ;ﬁg%ﬂﬂgwﬁw&mgm_bg-hﬁﬂgg e R0 WS FETVL 40 ST DA L £0 108 525 A0V 10T 00K ST TYIALO N (G41 VT ATIOT TGS ALK VS 4Ty Sne 1 40

T SO HOLLOMLETY GNY CINYNTAOD 30 NOLLYHYISAU 5K GALIALIY ST GHY HILR ¥3HLIDUL 108 S04 55 3004 RIEO0RN TYIZLLIT K1 '$461 VT SWVIHYT G30M003N FY
— EACH I o ¢ twi S0 NV VT AL VY SHLSTELON DHIT OL AL B 95K FARLE AL SEWOCYA B4V S0 WTEVE B HATEAT XY WIEYA D EAVE HOLLYEGII) YOROLE Y “DAA “EIIEH0E WA ONOITY GHY ATl WALNZ) TXVD GLIY
AJAHNS SASN/YL1Y BRGNS STTOUTE WA JO SIRYTLUSYI OKY TINVRIAAT 'SINGMA5YE TYI0MILAY 40 KOLIYNY ORI HIYIMY 1VET K KEN0d 135 ATUYVIOAUNA TUOM £y TI¥ Lodiawd 241 40
WIHLD GNY I “LIVA YTV R ANV DITVe WOE EAVADVEL TE vk FE10OY AV £LYRIAM “STI W€ ANY SVTIV ONNHYS TIL SE00Y
advYOH AHHIHD Y KON WEAD TIPS LN O SSEN0A RHY STINONT KYTLLSIOH QK HVLDHHIA NV DRINYE WP IR J& G30EM SHL W0l SHON LG iva aalsmisenod
ki AwEManD rEvd
B VTR L ALK HO VT TV 40 SOMOSTE SR TILL 40 HDG TT9 AR YL TR 000 SN00TE TR0
I GRQUIITE ICAEIEOY INATGTYS A SLINULY €Y UST 10%L T OO RIMGDD TYIEMLI W1 ‘441 ‘D6 XIMPIDA0 CIOENITH ¥ 'HOUVRONICD VIORIE0 ¥ 210
FLRINIIIIAID D Y pRLVAARON VIO ¥ "ol *SLLLGOE HTLITH (W A ININITAOV S HICY3 T¥OGAIDAT (VLI 1VAL W His0J 115 ATHYLLEY.
TUORL 5% TIV TGNV SWINIOGY 3K) JO 130 §1 AITLUSYE SHL HOAONAL ONY SOV XIAD JOVNIVAQ SIFSURENT W04 SIHOIN LEZIAEV] AASTICHHON
HIs ¥ERIIO0L FOIY] DMINCIEY FNICTRL GRY SS0007 Win0 rawid UNY $Ei0N] MrimHas ORY HYLIIoad ¥od SLIOH LGnases JusTomreen
E WwarawDIEr
H400273.4) 3T51 QA LmASK) T8I 0 1IVT "DMIHNITEE 40 [H104 KE 0L L3 T 197 40 IONVLEK ¥ ENTLYmJ0nLINd QIVE DHOTYLCLA. 1000
TVILALL DLLICOS0 TYNOLVA 1L O LHLINGD OL “UILLYA) W41 JO NIV TYHLEAL HATO EICOAL TV AWVAFM KUV 40 2] AV ASOLIGOL LOYE L L Hm NOLSAEEIE AG Tl ¥ AL LTI LETH 0 Z00eLEd ¥ 1iM EITIVAY Q0¥S bearTy Ll
3 HYDEEIITY HLNON 3HY 01 32433 ONV 1333 KI Y MOZUSH KuOHS ENOLLYATTS oK ovE. " 116,80 LGS RN 7T KIS IS J XY LSYIUANOE THL 40 MALYYNG LTLOHIKON JHL 40 TALOVAD LCIUHINON JHL 0 1NT] HLAOS JHL ‘DL STSONY.LIDTE
STV MG HLIRONAY LS 2003 ISYE L0 15VE IER L ANV (VOY ENGHOEAD ToNYAN 3¥-i0 Huow £33) ookt G ILin TTIYIV 2ATT ¥ il ML d0 1O ¥ L XULLE b0 Il SV V10V 2100 Hictof L Ll
40 HIN0H TIo) HEMOd HIG0GM Hinnda Sk S1 @t MMt DI EVE 1VEII [P ST IDINVLTA ¥ 151 S5 IE5% HINOS DOKHL ALELI RTHZ 40 TIAVATE ¥ I3V3 T100.00 IUNCE SOCIHL ‘L3 G50l 40 EIMVITIO ¥ 15V 425703 ALEON SNKLLHCO
UL OL GROVILY NOE S3aNite ¥ Hin THd daend ¥ d0 ISVANOSIsS 153t " . - WL IR (DO NEREH JHL Y03 DNINKIE 46 Leiod JH XY Teok 46 HWAL Aav1iN 40 JRN AVA-ITLDR 15vd Gl Hiv, ROLLERTLIN 5 L4
¥4 00V TR NMTUVHD ST1 § ¥ 40 MENER0 JSTWHINGE BHL O SEwHINOS 1, Ladf = ‘s.w%nwﬂﬂxcezzi vyt YOLLTL G 30 T390 ¥ T TITANLL GIVE DT 11 e 4 HOKGH ALRCILL ST ROLLIAS SVE K LIV LEVILLODE B0 T HINOH ML QL EEitd
11 TIOHNYH TI3d MEHLNOS ¥ o0 LAVAETNOR-ALOION 1o §F UStvI0T &2 RALIVAS SHL Qv L 0 NNLVD HOELEH HWOHS NS LV CHNSYAN T 0 K103 132 00 O 0KV KL TTTTIVAYA KT ¥ HLLe HOLLIZRG U J0 L0 ¥ 01 1324 @ 0T o ORVITG Y T-E-hﬂngnogg
e e E et L e Tt v Sty oy et o g sumose LIVAILOOS 52 £0 AKTT SIS ZEL DUOTY LV 1T1onoo HLN0Y EHLF ROLLIT v 40 ¥1N¥NO L30T F1Lt 40 WEANWNGD LI HINOH I LY DKINGRINOS
RS Leval it vo-Ival Aanasan @V SvRiy & WO H ALK ENYr ARG Enﬂn.ﬂﬂ-.ﬂlu..diﬁ.. LIKNO YT
QY RYATINOR TREOEDO 40 NGLEESHIING SH1 40 HOR GLVT S1 ROLLVIS DL oYY ALVE SOMYAESHI 000 OLL SHITHCTCH FWHNOS:EH-._»EE-H.EENEE T "LOYE 21 ADHYH b RTINS RV DTN ¥
NI SISV = NOLLYAT T s TIVic Cod
SODd0G. PE ALNNGD KIYVIE TV TAIVIOTION SALMLT OHNGHD 0NN ONY 'STZHI S 100 SNOLIVINAGH DHITWE (5 RoLEaIL
SRVIWHINDE TONTY1ITY

T LVADES ESCAFARE DHIARICE 40 L0154
HURACTIVES G5 OFVA 10N §1IGANS BRI Ir UL QL LTI T AEVE 2180 0 MLSGE TONILL A1 6 VEC LSVE 3§ 8 FLYON AOFIRL L7001 WOFT {07 590 XL ¥l LSVILLIGE HHLJO TNIT L5 o ) G THTIVUV

1 0 2 RisoH N ZRENL K uaﬂﬁssEEEEFSEH_EDuEEE._Hq_ﬁEnE.EEuE.-:-_Eﬂ:EE 0L THI HLNOH GRS

D1 TS HLLY LOH L T VIR CFATi 2 hi 758 3 Ao oD ST -0 EOMY A2 L A1 30 000w T LIC Y O i1 b 40, £V 4 ¥ Do [P L s LGP AL LAV
Avacs P ¥

.
§

Ve aL
AT V 40 ¥ K OXY QVOR ANEDD $ i) AVASIONOM ATEHLNON 2L OKDTY DKINKILANT ATEALISANINCS 2L SNALYANT £0 L0d ¥ O 133
ks L TrLENTAGE AR it INI A¥msO-LHED BA40W THL OFGTY DASTlLLN0S LA 28 28 152 HINGE BOIKL LAvtiosd DBAL WAL FIT 8T 43 FONVIEG VI 58
1 40 TTONY TVLUED ¥ GKY 2334 405130 RUCYR ¥ SHLIYE KIN0S THL OLLNV2ND L1 ¥.J0 0¥ FKLOAITY ORY IVOR ABEIHD 0 INTT AASKOLHOIN ATHIKINON
UL a4 e Ll HILL ONTTY ARIIFLAHLTT DRINSLNGD SONIHL DRI 0 40 10 41 0 139 1E7EL #0 EILIIT ¥ AT Z5 w11 40 TTONY TRLLGE ¥ TKY LT 9 0OF£0 ST
¥ ORLWYH HLNOTIHA 0L AAYSHID LA ¥ JOTEV 201 OHY INF LVAidrLRORE ATETHLNON 31, OHOTY ATASTTANICLACE OMTHE FUALY.UKT) 50 LIT0N ¥ O L §300
oo V0N LD 40 TN AVA-H0-LHON ATTEEION 1L OMOTTY "L 5 v 462 (LIS FRTIHL XU MGG 20 UHET AYMJO-LIIDTS KTUTILLIOH JAL O ST £ 03
ADINYND LSYTILMOE HL 40 BT AK) WA LYYHE L3 A HINC N TKE 10 (hT AL WLIEYIVY ASZANLNOE JILL 40 I ATHALEYE JILL DROTY LSZM o[ 0.0 HLNWOE L 5T
FOLLTSE 50,0 30 RLLIVDD LEvaHLACR L 30 G A ELLIVI LA HLNON B 4 O1F
LROTICE OV
RENCTEO LTHCLLLNYE TH0M YU RAKO0D 1YY TV LY [+ FORVE ST L2 40 O 40 Lv4 ¥ DHIE
ELLYIN Y LOK) TYADRRIY E-H.—ESE..EB Vamonas LR T 011 OV TR0 $O0A
Twivie ADK AYH. SO TS0 Y I 04 TS 00S SO TYERLIO HI NG £ Stn KR ALVL5 NS4 AYAACTHOE VVROLLIGY 100 § ¥ ROLHNL DL
- (LLS240A LTIV 10N SO T T2 .E.ﬂ:.:.nu:sdn..q:
-n ngnuﬂnﬂ.!..nuu"gﬂunﬂx.iunq di_.vw.ﬂli 30 SAINCOTL S HTIrEITMONY SCON ONCINYS Y DIV 13T) nE H IO FUL Mo IHL S LR
. — DAL IVRL GHY W51 BDYA THET 1008 O OKVASS1 20Yd Tracr 2008 W0 00T ANV %442 %000 .0 NI THTOOTY HTTM AV B
LD A GETIEILY §¥ TIL 20V T AR W0 M USTOTN LLLEKT 20NV HINQR 20T J0 B0V N gl Lsaaweasvd o8 o DHISKIoNE .8....:2 HLL 05T 60 TWOM L4 FT(3.20 DIMYLIL ¥ L] LAV OIYS ONOTY ATICIHLIO AL 6T HOUIaS
= SLMORE (£ IOV VOTEOLE VS 50 v1) LOVDLOS KL 40 W1 LSRR JHLIQ 1 T LIA0S 1AL 30 Fur] EVT 1L 01 SCTL 0 TWON LALF £ f 40 TIVLE ¥ LAO0NVL THLDHO T ATLEW
-y . L EH] oy EONTILL "ZAKD CIVE OL LKAGWY.L THI 01 “LE21 (578 J DAYLOD ¥ AL avs X0 KL OV HOIENA LIA WD LD 40 AN AVA=I0- LEDRE LTI IO
e AL e W 9 UL ONOTY STAILIVE SANIIAGD SHEHT LT3 102 40 BUGVE ¥ CHTAVH GV JLINAT TUT AL JAVDHOD LV ¥ 20 D4 FHL OL L334 (FA1T 40 ZINVASO ¥ "LGEORVE
LM0EE) (CTIWY VITEOTE " LLANGS KVZY Y3 DROTY KNI "ENWD DIYS GLAKIDNY.L ¥ 02 154 SV JOTNYLSIL ¥ LV G0V 40 57 L GNY NOSSHILIA TVOW AMMGE] 20 NI 1V/ACrLHNM HINOH 2ILL
Ped W0 ST F B T4 304 256 X000 01 CITODRY ALHAWSD IV FrTvd O WOAYd KL UGnEsva apvaavad 5t BHOTY ATELLEVA EOeEHE WARI ki 40 STV Y DALAYH I HLLION THL G ZAYINOD BAMD ¥ 40 J4Y UL rll D138 MONG11XA ¥ON A0HD J9 o1 AVRd0-LHOT
@ ADUD VORI A LM JOVES FETV HLE0M 3HL KO DOGE CIVE SEINDKE LINGYY HIVIE VTV AG YIT N0 WAOHT T¥ NOISLLYS QYO AWKSID 40 TR AVA'KMLEOR. XTGRLEON JEL DL T
X 10 it 3OV HE X0 AL ST 40 B 0 NrCiove Py 11 20 0N "L FYI 40 DOV Y AT TTIVEYY I ONTTY ATILO0N 1oL 'S HOLLIS SOV 40 DT NOLLOGS MALNYOD LGOS HINON EMI NOMI ATHALIVE
uly bl * 127 (4 OXV LU TETIVEVY D01 ¥ A0 100E ¥ OL 55771 30 Z40M "1 $435 20 ONV.AS0 ¥ 11 Z5VALLM0E 2101 LSZA IO B 1SImILLNOE T 20 2NE]
P 16 G0 YO OU 214700 KOV Y0 SO0 COTU TR 31 04 P48 000 WO K MTHO0TE TLULLAO LURR 1T HISON SHLGHOTY AT T, KOKILL T HOLLDES QW40 1] LSVAILLNOS THL 40 11 CTEAMINOR BILL 40 bri LELENINOE ARL 40 WIHNCD ISVEILTEOR FHL IV oamaniioda
wr (A28 2O ULLINTC Y LOK) {5130avd
e T GhETU A0 R PP, TR IS AUV LR 0% o TN T SATTIAL S¥ CATIIRIE LTOF WOLLEYA T O DRI “HIaTs
- LATAM0S 20 NILININ ¥ 108D AL VAT POTVG A5 1 J0HYH HLACS % ANPUNOL ¥ KOLLI3S 201 v} JSEHINOR THE 40 1 LSLUILEON BRL IC 1 LELRRI0S ZKL HE XYL 40 120V ¥
s CTCUYA 0L TV VOISO WL T SOV TS HOD axv
E STITTIF40 DUTCIEFSY G TEAYA) 179 A0V Shis 3008 n
(OLGIE S TIRVD VT VI VI v e
piovy AINOOD IV TV ¥5AONZ 9K X000 Py v ot DM HA00% 1 DIFGL TS SOLLIES 0 7L LEVEALICE 141,401 AFTARLION T.40 1l STAHLIOH SUL IO LEE T MIBOS AL 0 L1 o1 S8 2K Sy
i LLLAKNT 40 XTLLYW ¥ LK) [ (Y | STV 40 SHOLINDU VOO ARG L o o RS e b L L e,
VN FTVEI0 EHCOTE UM T 3DV BT 000 0 K MITHGTH 150 AL SV 1T ROV M (INI¥ING ROLLSALETY 4 T RS KTVaR T LSV £ OV LK K SRS wom "
i ULEOHE [FTINGE TIV VORTYL LA 1l W 40 NGO YT ST 30Yd T 3008 WO
pari TUTHOATY BOTHTTEOV ATV LI ELLYILY O cab A0 R 300U W 020 Il Loy s va W0l ¥ AUYISIZLD HRNNY
020TIS T BTV 0 £ VITITL LI KTV TV AT RTCOTY ST
ikl “IE¥ IOV T HO0R UTTISN W TIVY 508 B0V 8 3OO MO L]
g . s e DMLATIIE 0 LADLIL L LTI 0007 I ANKLE ¥ INIT AVATIO LD QIVE DROTY 3. L1.00
ieadabd . TR'ATHII O ™ HINOM DML VAL LWVATTIN TV 40 THI AVASZO-LIKCTN 15¥Z THL KAM SOLLSDEANT 40 1NI04 ¥ AL 1T1L T 161 30 IONELED ¥ DT TIPS O5vs BT 15,
[ VRO LLLKNO0 VA FETY 40 BIOCEY DI IE0M 1122 DY TS 3008 WO L1568 HUNOS SREHE ST NOLDES WIS 40 W0V LIVIHIO0S TRE 40 NIDAYAD ISTRHLK0N 41,40 X316VNG LIGARLION A1 40 ZKT1 HLNOS THL-GL G0NV LD
e fmoes w.nu!bda.qz..hﬁu 1V GRAGIN £9 40 INOW 1331 WasE ot IL1im ATTIVHYAE J0ST ¥ I NOLL G 0 LA ¥ L LTS 00 40 IDNY.LSIG ¥ LYl U700 1LLI03 KOMIL 44
ow ST OV "0 3008 L0rarea SLIEIaEYE 5 YL AD TNV ¥ LN TREAE HINGS IKIIL (T I 40 IIVIE ¥ I5VZ £100.00 HUNOK ZHEHL “ZaLd T4 061 40 DIMY.LTE ¥ LIVE 4250wk HLEGH JAINGD.
bl LTINS JO NLLYH ¥ 20D (5 BT TV VTR ALLKAGS Dyl e GRCTII NITE T VG2 ONIKFIIG 16 LKIGE 1L QKT Tiot ¥ UYL LUYIIIUN 40 GA] L¥a-0- MBI LevE 2UL 2R Mol TSEERLN 40 L0)
. QLLTLE 00 68 40 Z3VLSHL ¥ TATTLITIVNG OIVE OriOTY LDV 5240 oG8 MIMOM T0TTIL 523011338 IV J0 ¥ILAYR0 LEVINLNOE TiL 30 N1 RLADH FILL T BTTORY
WOV TV 20 STUOCER ST I LL 2OV HIE 000 WA QHY 82135V I 008 ¥ O K CTHIHIE SLCHRITNS Y WACKTY '+ AHETH LV GTUNSVIN 5Y U HANOS 1334 00 CAE G KILW TITIVYA 2T ¥ HLL, HOLTSSTALN J0 I ¥ DL ZEi 00T 40 TOKYLTD ¥ TE WIS CIVE 30 W11HVI
3 ARADS S0 WCTLLVIE ¥ 10N §TEIKVA GL 5V NIRMOLE A INOGY ASVIHLNOT KL 40 AHIT LFEN ZHI DRTTY "LFYd ACLO000 HANOS INERL azﬂggﬁgégunﬁklggguﬁh ¥ DUEIRANOS
EOVEE POV 40 WTE0OAE SN ‘069 A0V 1199 2008 W KT A,
TII LS I0KL Yot 300N % O 1] OGO Lot Tavsd QLAY 610 P 40l THOULINLL S TN SLKVAIAD 40 NOTYIOY EHTTIOL Y NI VU ALK ST
CLLAANS 40 ERLIYILY 1030 (STETWY4 TIY) 40 L1 T RTVLLEVE 21 I0NVAL MUAOE £ Aiimal T NOLLITE. HOUTEAVID FLNELILEON FILL NI ONV 40 TIWVE ¥
Axauns 40 TR
MALLY ¥ LOND (70 TIV0 LU YU 00 LLROGED ANY 40 GV 4 SEE4LUSYL 0L ETLANY Y HINE TN
AT DIAMIE THELLEAS £¥0 20 CHILCLS WL T3 ELELS WLLYin ANV A EE2UVES ¥ 2OL FAOWYID A QYW Wd VORI AL VAL v
ALY LT0d N0 30V TA R OLALID ANV A0 TO.VA KI-T4 %11 MALIVID K40 DNVIINA LN A HTACAL MAFT AKCY "1 200 BTH0TH ST BIL 208 AV 'S SOOI TUOOTA TVILLID KISG81 2 SHVAHYT THIO0TY L1 Javd LW ETTER/ Y 40 EIHTHALIYIN GRY EENYHIADD
TNV THVALEO% SNV TWROLINT 40 HOLLVAVIZHA K GIXIVINOD IVHL AMVITUN NORS OHY OF LLEII0W] 2N TITTR 428 THL ¥IAS LNIHASYE BETE0T NV SSTHDN
ML DPILTELSY EPGLLLLH) TICTHOE GHY 14 OOTYLY 10006 AVAITIA UG LAY NV bl SoriTs ont 30¥0 P
“ANVANDO TONYANSN F1ELL GOVOTE 1 GRNEE] LEMLINIGS FTUL 20 TN IHL KL GTEvVInkd $¥R LIaus soid. il

________ 40 10
THL O LR MR 'Y T8.500 HLNOE SHCRAL JUAR REYST L5V 4 J € 58 KIXOK ASKAILL LAAL 0057 T 0 ¥110v/0 LEVEIULAOE UL 45 THH 1530, 341 0L Trvivd
“LEAR 20 4 KUNON SOHANL (071 35 WLUAVDD LIVIHLOOT 151 40 JKT] {Elm il LU0 XTIV OKY 4 L5va 150 0020 SKT1 ¥ OL LZ0I 031 3N ILLIOH GIvs
DRIV IS8 515 o KLNOS T0RGHL Tl 38 3L LEVTHLIOK THL 16 () e YT LEARHINON ZHE 4O R ADLLIVAD LA LS Bt 10 30 HIROH 301
OULLZAL 1 "IN, 01 50 0 RAZOH AOMIAL LI34 250 20 DMV.LIHT ¥ T 41 2 40 THNY TVALIZY ¥ GKY L3214 000 40 5/UTYY 'Y OHLYH LilAILDION 1L OLAYDHED

i 1 :
VO 00EEHD 40 NN A~ D6 ATIGIILYON ZiLL DHOTY "LEL .45 0 43 HLOOS THEHL ‘TW0W JNGHD 30 320 A¥m~0-LHOR LTAIHLION 1L o LTt 510 Uil

AT UILXYAD LIYIHLROE: EFB?:!KEE‘E-E_ELD?—EE A L328 HLNOS AHL 40 DN ATHALLYA A1LL DRKOTY 1S4 o€ 0.0 HLNOE FaNINL 6T
ROLLTES 40 (1 40 I A WADVAD 1E3AHINOT ML 40 TINDOD LSYIHLION NIL LY DUIINTNINOS

g
@ VAITNOTY AL HOYIE M1V ¥ 42 HOALTES 20 G 40 184 ¥ 0uET

A TEI
NOLLRDSAA

(09




£ 1-dSd

EELYe)
Ue|d s
Aleunuijaig
dWVYLS SNINDZ dNVLS LNIJWANINY
g drdad s g e ]
- T
SNOISSIWENS / SNOISIAZY o o e l.uﬂ.mh........“ v
oot o R ] Bl e e e 4
bl Adpapac Joou o sage iz | LSO i o
Ay ““ﬁo - e Lere ol R e .Iﬂ“.“soelq
Py i - T | e, BT v
[&/r6/90 eg ErTW

EPLO]4 ‘Anon yoeaq Wed
AdniN eZe|d
peoy Auayon

TEDO00ST ON aruaan
WOTUGUTIT VA I

1L R,
Lirgetne

IHH G 2

BALH OF REARMOS

e peusy
TFII FRITIS O
TOPTE T4 WOP3g wired 13Mm
TOT N8 "W Bl N TESE

ONINNYId NY8HN ANV
IANLIAUHIYY JdYOSONVT

STOHDIN
1AIWHDS

d¥IA NOLLVDO1

008 =1 Bjo9%
o5 5T 0

e

e



)



€99¢-dSd

| oseyd
ueld ays

JWVY.LS LNIWONIWY

Areunwaid
SNOISSINGNS / SNOISIAZH
Pz “aN QA

T 1osio% TEN B
[ g papap

4D Agumeig

Nt AguBsaq

WS- 1 g
T80 awa

4|4 4|4 |4

peoy Alsyn

EPUO[{ 'AIUNDY) yorag WBd

ddnin ezeld

TELOOOFHN OH FTGA1
Wity LB aona R

LT

+

L0k =,1 2|Rr3s

FITLTT U T

XN LY RIGHT OF WAY)
ROAE BLAT BOGK 2, PAGE 237

(SSRIGAT OFWAY) SECTIO Bl6crzse:

Tiaior e va e s e s caram|
i

o peun
THL FIT LIS uod
TOPEE 1d VeI Wied 1630
TOT 3157 33 N TSST

ONINNYId NYEHN ONY
FUNLIZUHOLY FIVISON

STOHDIN
LJAIWHDS

HEE

. ‘l_'_

dVIN NOILYIO]

12




15



€4 ¢€-dSd

Il @seyd
ueld s)s
Aleuiwiaid

dWYLS ONINOZ dAYLS LNIWANIWY
e T —
o —
e |
ey
— s .
SNOISSINGNS / SNOISIAIY o i tmrea——— . v
T — FrE
. —rer
b1z onsat o e v
To'sz01 oN I jnenl L7
EY ] e
o g - | e | [
T Aqudq Al i i 0| I T Kl 2 wTTLL
e e i
oop=1 ieag - bt | s | Sgmarrae | SRR w
TS0 e e o e vy | Sen ot e i ey Crera
eaUmETRALT bl arouasad QIO T amn
Saint
i Ay ot i
“ W | & [ [ [ a4 | an 14 | Ses | omdaam| wond
L ) FE RN r = rddaw| 3
ST R wow [ ias {mwow| wo | o | oo
SRLTer T iy [ o o e
Suopieii Bl Aibdosd {dd ) Wl sIABD Peiiinedd 830 Hdied

EpLol4 ‘Ajunon yoeeq wied

ddNin ezeld
peoy Alsyn

TECCOOALDY OH TN

Jr0F =,1 2238
021 -] ;om0

ZREOSLGL-Y Fosey
GSIDOE LG 1 10TueD
adnw Buez
RHI IO

ZSEDSIEIH TosaN e 3
S9100GL81PINeD ZSE0SLELY oo
adnw Suniaz S9U0GLSITWED —
wHON i Bz

PO T

6641 3ovd 0ic s
s INFESY)
Jrmnge

TE0WHLE B80T (50
BASIE OF BEARINGS z?srmﬁ'mq

|

" A
v o vy b
Triemy ) tarr

]

I
M v .

EEH_ ey - d
b TSURSHE — il H
G L - ._.Jlnﬂ-su..av - TRa i +0d Tvg S35a G Hil5
gt 4 THERma F * - o
w = ._Ech!uu_ e =T - _m_
M £y A 1
g e S E
4
35
.

i
;

weredpuEy

woa usdpurH@aj) (ewy
TolyviyTas uoyd
TOVEE ‘14 U210 Wed 198
o8 215 4 2Pl R ISST

SNINNYd NVEHN aNY
TFHUIAUHIYY IdVOSONYT

STOHDIN
LAIWHDS

dVIAN NOLLYDO01

] b Y T
T Illrﬁwi‘l ey,
Tl ! R = e3n6N
b - 1ckd? L3,
| Joor anantng
; e
ol | rie e

L ) |exoers
o e v

P
M!EE_.EH..
2

7N e e | 2z [ I e %t 3 5
s B T .__:_,,F___mu_

4




15



® 00 0 06 0. 0 0 06 06 06 06 06 .06 0. 06 0 0 o
Transportation Consultants 2005 Vista Parkway, Suite 111
West Palm Beach, FL 33411-67G0

{561) 296-9698

Certificate of Authorization Number: 7989
June 3, 2021

Mr. Quazi Bari, P.E.

Palm Beach County Traffic Division
2300 North Jog Road, 3™ Floor
Woest Palm Beach, FL 33411-3745

Re:  Cherry Road Plaza MUPD - #PTC21-041
Dear Mr, Bari:

The purpose of this letter is to provide a traffic equivalency statement for the above referenced project to
determine if the proposed development meets the requirements of the Palm Beach County Traffic Performance
Standards. The site is located on the northeast corner of Cherry Road and Military Trail in the approved Cherry
Road Plaza in unincorporated Palm Beach County. It is proposed to modify the approved development as
shown below:

Land Use Approved Plan Proposed Plan Phase 1 Proposed Plan Phase 2
Self Storage - 115,350 SF 162,350 SF
Qutdoor Storage - 0.37 Acres -
Automobile Sales 46,890 SF 34,540 SF 34,540 SF
Furniture Store 18,000 SF 18,000 SF 18,000 SF

Car Wash (Self Service) 3 Stalls 3 Stalls 3 Stalls

Car Wash (Automated) 2 lLanes 2 Lanes 2 lanes

The buildout of this project is projected to be 2025, The Parcel Control Numbers are: 00-42-43-25-00-000-
5030, 5040, 5073, 5340, 5350, and 5400.

A trip generation analysis is provided on Attachments 1A, 1B and 1C for the approved plan, Phase 1 and Phase
2, respectively, Attachment 1D shows the trip generation comparison. The proposed development (Phases 1
and 2) results in a decrease in trips on a daily and peak hour basis. Therefore, this project is considered to be
equivalent to the approved uses and is in compliance with the Palm Beach County Traffic Performance
Standards. The projected driveway volumes (based on trip generation) for Phases 1 and 2 are shown on
Attachments 2 and 3. Please contact me if you have any questions or need any additional information.

Sincerely,

Digitally signed hy
Rebecca J Mulcahy
Date: 2021.06.03
10:07:43 -04'00’

Rebecca ). Mulcahy, P.E.
Vice President

No.42570

% STATEOF

Attachments

Rebecca ). Mulcahy, State of Florida, Professional Engineer, License No. 42570
This item has been electronically signed and sealed by Rebecca ). Mulcahy, P.E. on 6/3/21 using a Digital Signature. Printed
copies of this document are not considered signed and sealed and the signature must be verified on any electronic copies.

Letter Bari 21-041 6-3-21 Pinder Troutman Consalting, Inc. _'l LD



Tiip Sen 21-041 6121

&/2f202y
Attachment 1A
Cherry Road Plaza MUPD
Trip Generation - Approved Uses
DAILY
ITE % Total Internal Trips External Pass-hy Total
Land Use Code Intensity Trip Generation Rate (1) in Trips Trips % Trips Trips {1) Trips
Aulomobile Sales (New) 840 46,890 SF 27.54 /10060 $F 5084 1,305 39 3% 1,266 190 159&1 1,076
Furniture Store 530 18,000 SF 6,3 /1000 SF 50% 113 6 5% 107 5 5% 102
Carwash {Sa¥ Service) 947 3 Stalls 108 / 5tall 50%, 324 16 5%, 308 - 0% 308
Carwash {Automated) PBEC 2 lLane 166 / Lane 50%| 332 17 5%) 315 - Q% 315
TOTAL 2,074 78 3.8%] 1,996 195 1,801
AM PEAK HOUR
ITE % Total Trips Internal Trips External Trips Pass-by New Trips
Land Use Code Intensily Trip Generation Rate (1) | In In Out | Trips | Trips % In Qut | Trips Trips (1) in Out | Trips
Automobile Sales (New) 240 46,690 SF 1.87 /1000 SF 73% 64 24 85 2 2% 63 23 86 13 15% 54 19 73
Futniture Store 890 18,000 SF 0.26 /1000 5F 71%, 4 1 5 - 5% 4 1 5 - 5% 4 1 5
Carwash (Self Service) 547 3 Salls 5.54 / Stall 51%) 2 8 17 1 5% 8 8 16 - a% 8 8 16
Carwash (Automated) PBC 2 Lane 11.97 / Lane 50%) 12 12 24 1 5% 12 11 23 - 0% 12 11 23
TOTAL i 89 45 134 4 3.0%] a7 43 130 13 I 78 a9 117
PM PEAK HOUR
ITE % Total Trips Internal Trips Extemal Trips Pass-by New Trips
Land Use Code Intensity Trip Generation Rate (1) [ In | In Out | Trips | Trips % in Out | Trips Trips (1) In Qut | Trips
Automehbile Sales (New) 840 46,890 $F 2.43 /1000 SF 40%) 46 &8 114 F4 2% 45 67 112 17  15%| s 57 95
Furniture Store 890 18,000 5S¢ 0.52 /1000 SF 47% 4 5 ] - 5% 4 5 9 - 5%| 4 5 ]
Carwash (Self Service) 947 3 Stalls 8,00 / Sall 50%) 12 12 24 1 5% 11 12 23 - 0%, 11 12 23
Carwash (Autom;tgdl PBC 2 La_ne 13,65 [ Lane 50% 14 13 27 1 5% 14 12 26 - 0%) 14 12 26
TOTAL 76 98 174 4 2.3% 74 96 170 17 57 86 153

(1) Source: Palm Beach County Traffic Division and ITE Trip Generation, 10th Edition.

1



Trip Gen 21041 6-1.21

w201
Attachment 1B
Cherry Road Plaza MUPD
Trip Generation - Proposed Uses; Phase 1
DAILY
ITE % Total internal Trips External Pass-by Total
Land Use Code Intensity Trip Generation Rate (1) In Trips Trips % Trips Trips (1) Trips
Sell Storage 151 115,350 SF 1.51 /1000 SF 30%| 174 €| 3.5% 168 17 109& 151
Outdoor Storage PBC 0.37 Acres 35 / Acre 50% 13 -] 3.5% 13 11 10% 12
Automobile Sales (New) 840 34,540 SF 27.84 /1000 5F 50%) 962 29 3% 033 140§ 15% 793
Furaiture Store 890 18,000 SF 6.3 /1800 SF 50% 113 3 5% 107 5 5% 102
Carwash [Sell Service) 947 3 Stalls 108 / Stall 50% 324 16)| S% 308 - 0% 308
Carwash (Automated} PBEC 2 Lane 166 / Lane 50% 332 17 5% 315 - 0% 315
TOYAL 1,918 74| 3.9% 1,844 163 1,681
AM PEAK HOUR
ITE % Total Trips Internaf Trips External Trips Pass-by New Trips
Land Use Code Intensity Trip Generation Rate (1) In In Out | Trips | Trips % In Qut | Trips Trips (1) In Out | Trips
Sell Storage 151 | 115,350 SF 0.1/1000 SF 60%) 7 5 12 1 5%) [ 5 11 1] 1% ] 5 10
Quldoor Storage PBC 0.37 Acres 6.6% of Daily (2} G0%, 1 - 1 - 5%) 1 - 1 -1 0% 1 - i
Aulomobile Sales (New) 840 34,540 SF 1.87 /1000 5F 73% 47 18 63 1 2%, 47 17 64 10 15% 40 14 54
Furnilure Store 430 18,000 SF 0.26 /1000 $F 71% 4 1 El - 5% 4 1 5 - 5% 4 1 5
Carwash (Self Service) 947 3 Stalls 5.54 /5tall 51%) 9 8 17 1 5%| 8 8 16 - 0% 8 8 16
Carwash {Aulomated) PEC 2 Lane 11.97 / Lane 50% 12 12 24 1 5% 12 11 23 - 0% 12 11 23
TOTAL 80 44 124 4| 3.2%) 78 42 120 11 70 39 105
PM PEAK HOUR
ITE % Total Trips internal Trips External Trips Pass-by New Trips
Land Use Code Intensity - Trip Ceneration Rale (1) In In QOut | Trips | Trips % In Out | Trips Trips (1) In Cut | Trips
|Self Storape 151 115,350 SF 0.17 /1000 $F 47% 9 11 20 2 8% 8 10 18 2 10%) 7 9 16
Ouldoor Storage PEC 0.37 Acres 11.3% of Daily (2) 47%] - 1 1 - 8% - 1 1 -] 10% - 1 1
Automobile Sales (New) 840 34,540 SF 2.43 /1000 SF 40% 34 50 84 2 2% a3 49 a2 12 15% 28 42 70
Furniture Stora 890 18,000 SF 0.52 /1000 SF 47% 4 5 9 - 5% 4 5 9 - 5%, 4 5 g
Carwash (Self Service) 947 3 Stalls 8.00 /5tall 50%) 12 12 24 1 5%) 1 12 23 - %! 11 12 22
Carwash (Automatad) PBC 2 Lane 13.65 / Lane 50%) 14 13 27 1 5%) 14 12 26 - 0%) 14 12 26
TOTAL 73 92 165 6 3.6% 70 89 159 14 64 81 145

(1) Source: Palm Beach County Traffic Division and ITE Trip Generation, 10lh Edition.

19



Tilp Gen 21:041 6.1:21

/22021

Attachment 1C
Cherry Road Plaza MUPD
Trip Generation - Proposed Uses; Phase 2
DAILY

ITE % Total Internal Trips External Pass-by Total

Land Use Code Intensity Trip Generation Rate (1} | In Trips Trips [ % Trips Trips (1) Trips

Self Storage 151 162,350 SF 1.51 / 1000 SF 50% 245 10 4% 235 24 10% 211
Automabile Sales (New) 840 34,540 SF 27.84 {1000 SF 50% 962 29 3% 933 140 15%; 793
Furniture Store 830 18,009 SF 6.3 /1000 5F 50%| 113 [ 5% 107 5 5% 102
Carwash (Self Service) 947 3 Stalls 108 / Stall 50% 324 16 5% acs - 0%, 308
Carwash (Automaled} PBC 2 Lane 166 { Lane 50% 332 17 5% 315 - 0% 315
TOTAL 1,926 78 | _3.095 1,898 169 1,729
AM PEAK HOUR

ITE % Totat Trips Internal Trips External Trips Pass-by New Trips
"~ Land Use Code Intensity Trip Generation Rate (1) In In Out | Teips™ | Trips | % | In Out [ Trips Trips {1) In Out | Trips’
Self Storage 151 162,350 5F 0.1/1000 5F 60% 10 6 16 1 5% 9 [} 15 2 10%! 2 3 13
Autamobile Sales (New) 340 34,540 SF 1.87 /1000 5F 73% 47 18 65 1 2% 47 17 64 10 15%) 40 14 54
Furniture Store 890 18,000 SF 0.26 /1000 SF 71% 4 1 5 - 5% 4 7 5 - 5%; 4 1 5
Carwash (Self Service) 947 3 Stalls 5,54 / stall 51%) g 8 17 1 5%, ] 3] 16 - 0% [} 8 16
Carwash {Autormated) PBC P4 La_ne 11.97 /Lane 50%) 12 12 24 1 5% 12 11 23 - 0%) 12 11 23
TOTAL 82 45 127 4| 3% 80 43 123 72 72 39 111
.PM PEAK HOUR . - . . . . . . - -

TE % Total Trips Internal Trips External Trips Pass-by New Trips

Land Use Code Intensity Trip Generation Rate (1) In In QOut | Trips | Trips b In Out | Trips ‘Trips (1) In Qut | Trips

Sell Storage 151 162,350 SF 0.17 /1000 5F 47%| 13 i5 28 2 8% 12 14 26 3 10% 10 13 23
Automobile Sales {New) B840 34,540 SF 2.43 /100D SF 40%! 34 50 84 2 2% 33 49 52 12 15% 28 42 70
FOinfiiré Siore ™ 890 18,000 SF 0.52 /1000 SF A7% 4 5 9 - 5% 4 5 9 - 5%) 4 5 9
Carwash (5ell Service) 947 3 S5ulls 8.00 /5wl 50% 12 12 24 1 5% 11 12 23 - 0% 11 12 23
Carwash (Automated) PBC 2 Lane 13,65 / Lane 50% 14 12 27 1 5% 14 12 26 - 0%] 14 12 26
TOTAL 77 95 172 6] 3.5% 74 92 166 15 67 84 151

(1) Source: Palm Beach County Traffic Division and ITE Trip Ceneration, 10th Edition.

9



Aftachment 1D

Cherry Road Plaza MUPD
Trip Generation Comparison

Trip Gen 21-047 6-1-21

AM Peak Hour PM Peak Hour
Daily In Out Total In Out Total
Approved Uses 1,801 78 39 117 67 86 153
Proposed Uses (Phase 1) 1,681 70 39 109 64 81 145
Net New Trips: (120) (8) - 8 3 (5) {8)
Proposed Uses (Phase 2) 1,729 72 39 m 67 84 151
Net New Trips: {72) (6) - {6) - (2) {2)

6/2/2021



- |
N.T.S.
E
:‘ﬂt t23 (49}
————— 1,033
~
a
twes SITE
a2
e
|-—
&
5 175 166
z
| = o
CHERRY RD st taim st b2
LEGEND
XX -AM PEAK HOUR
(XX) - PM PEAK HOUR
XXXX -ADT #21-041

6/2/21

CHERRY ROAD
PLAZA MUPD

ATTACHMENT 2
DRIVEWAY VOLUMES PHASE 1

PTC|

B\



LEGEND

XX - AM PEAK HOUR
(XX} - PM PEAK HOUR
XXXX -ADT

N.T.E.
§ i
ét' 424 (1)
1.063
&
| =
' 111.(23)
L 484
4%‘
<z
"4
|.-
-
%
5 18 171
z
Y = o
- O A
‘ CHERRY RD st L1 st ta2m

#21-041
6/2/21

CHERRY ROAD
PLAZA MUPD

ATTACHMENT 3
DRIVEWAY VOLUMES PHASE 2

PTC

82



©5



/'\_ A Higher Standard of Excellence =

ENGINEEHS SURVEYORS + GIS MAPPERS grou InC-

DRAINAGE STATEMENT
for
Proposed Cherry Road Plaza MUPD (Palm Beach County)
Engenuity Group, Inc. Project No. 21049.01
Existing Conditions:
The existing site is approximately 5.86 acres located generally at the northeast corner of Cherry
Road and Military Trail, in West Palm Beach, Florida. The property surrounds the existing Wendy's
restaurant and Beach Car Sales buildings on this comer. The property control numbers are 00-
42-43-25-00-000-5030, 5040 and 5073 and are cdll located in the Westgate Community
Redevelopment Area.
The site is currently vacant, excephng the retail bullding and the car wash, and some associated
asphalt parking areas. These improved areas are not considered part of this drainage
statement. The topography is generally flat, with several frees and grass growth on the vacant
land. No visible improved drainage system exists on the vacant land and it appears that any
stormwater runoff is retdined on site.

Proposed Improvemenis:

The site will be developed as a self storage, car wash and retail faciity with associated
driveways and parking, landscape areas and buildings. All proposed drainage runoff will be
collected in a systemn of inlets and culverts. Exfiliration trenches will be provided and sized {o
accommodate the quantity and qudlity retention requirements according to PBC and SFWMD
{C-51 Basin) criteria. A posifive drainage outfall will be obtained by connection to the existing
drainage system in Cherry Road. Drainage system design will require appropriate agency
permitting for stormwater detention, finish floor and parking lot elevation design and positive
outfall,

Adam Swainey, P.E. State of Florida, Professional
Engineer, License No. 72235

This item has been electronically sighed and sealed
by Adam Swaney, PE, on 06/3/2021 using a SHA
authentication code.

Printed copies of this document are not considered
signed and sealed and the SHA authentication
Code must be verified on any elecironic copies.

Digitally signed by
Adam Swaney
Date: 2021.06.03
15:08:05 -04'00'

Adam Swaney, P.E.
FL License #72235

2021 06-03 DRAINAGE STMT
Project No. 21049.01

1280 North Congress Avenue, Suite 101
West Palm Beach, Florida 33409
Certificate of Authorization #7095



Ward & Company, P.A.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
5725 Corporate Way, Suite 106
Waest Palm Beach, FL 33407
Zenora Kerr Ward, CPA P: {561} 697-9468 F:(561) 697-5277

June 9, 2021

Board of Directors
Westgate/Belvedere Homes
Community Redevelopment Agency
1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215
West Palm Beach, FL. 33409

Please find enclosed our engagement letter for audit services for the year ending September 30, 2021.

The organization should prepare the management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A), financial
statements and footnotes, as part of its presentation of audit documents provided to the auditor. An
outside CPA firm or consultant can be used to assist in the preparation of these financial statements
including footnotes. Also review new Community Redevelopment Agency Florida Compliance
Requirements to ensure proper implementation.

Per conversation with management, no single audit is required for the year ended September 30, 2021,
Should, during the course of the audit, it be determined that a single audit is required, we will revise our
engagement accordingly. We will send a document request list by August 9, 2021 to assist staff in
preparing for the audit.

If you have any questions please give me a call at the above telephone number.

Thank you for your consideration of Ward & Company, P.A. for your auditing services.

\
Sincerely,

Zenora Kerr Ward
ZKW:cyce

Enclosure

Member of the American Institiie of Certified Public Accoumiants
and Florida Institute of Ceriified Public Accountanes

85



Ward & Company, P.A.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
5715 Corporate Way, Suite 106
West Paim Beach, FL 33407
Zenora Kerr Ward, CPA P: (561) 697-9468 F: {561} 697-5277

June 9, 2021

Board of Directors
Westgate/Belvedere Homes
Community Redevelopment Agency
1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215
West Palm Beach, FL. 33409

We are pleased to confirm our understanding of the services we are to provide Westgate/Belvedere Homes
Community Redevelopment Agency for the year ended September 30, 2021. We will audit the financial
statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information,
including the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the basic financial
statements of Westgate/Belvedere Homes Community Redevelopment Agency as of and for the year
ended September 30, 2021. Accounting standards generally accepted in the United States of America
provide for certain required supplementary information (RSI), such as management’s discussion and
analysis (MD&A), to supplement Westgate/Belvedere Homes Community Redevelopment Agency’s
basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is
required by the Govermmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. As part of our engagement, we will apply certain limited procedures to
Westgate/Belvedere Homes Community Redevelopment Agency’s RSI in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. These limited procedures will consist of
inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements,
and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We will not express
an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. The following RSl is required by
U. S. generally accepted accounting principles and will be subjected to certain limited procedures, but will
not be audited:

1) Management’s Discussion and Analysis.
2) Supplemental schedule of budgetary comparison information for the year ended September 30, 2021
3) Supplemental schedule of proportionate share of net pension liability

4) Supplemental schedule of contributions — pension plans

Member of the American instituce of Certified Publiz Accountants
and Florida Institute of Certified Publiz Accauntants

to.Y



Westgate/Belvedere Homes
Community Redevelopment Agency
Page 2

Audit Objectives

The objective of our audit is the expression of opinions as to whether your financial statements are fairly
presented, in all material respects, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles and
to report on the fairness of the supplementary information referred to in the second paragraph when
considered in relation to the financial statements as a whole. Our audit will be conducted in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards for financial
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States, and will include tests of the accounting records of Westgate/Belvedere Homes Community
Redevelopment Agency and other procedures we consider necessary to enable us to express such opinions.
We will issue a written report upon completion of our audit of Westgate/Belvedere Homes Community
Redevelopment Agency’s financial statements. Our report will be addressed to Board of Directors of
Westgate/Belvedere Homes Community Redevelopment Agency. We cannot provide assurance that
unmeodified opinions will be expressed. Circumstances may arise in which it is necessary for us to modify
our opinions or add emphasis-of-matter or other-matter paragraphs. If our opinions are other than
unmodified, we will discuss the reasons with you in advance. If, for any reason, we are unable to complete
the audit or are unable to form or have not formed opinions, we may decline to express opinions or issue
reports, or may withdraw from this engagement.

We will also provide a report (that does not include an opinion) on internal control related to the financial
statements and compliance with the provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a material effect on the financial statements as required by
Government Auditing Standards. The report on internal control and on compliance and other matters will
include a paragraph that states (1) that the purpose of the report is solely to describe the scope of testing
of internal control and compliance, and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control on compliance, and (2) that the report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal
control and compliance. The paragraph will also state that the report is not suitable for any other purpose.
If during our audit we become aware that Westgate/Belvedere Homes Community Redevelopment
Agency is subject to an audit requirement that is not encompassed in the terms of this engagement, we
will communicate to management and those charged with governance that an audit in accordance with
U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and the standards for financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards may not satisfy the relevant legal, regulatory, or contractual requirements.

Audit Procedures—General

An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements; therefore, our audit will involve judgment about the number of transactions to be
examined and the areas to be tested. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We will plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether

from (1) errors, (2) fraudulent financial reporting, (3) misappropriation of assets, or (4) violations of laws

or governmental regulations that arve attributable to the government or to acts by management or
employees acting on behalf of the government. Because the determination of waste and abuse is subjective,
Government Auditing Standards do not expect auditors to perform specific procedures to detect waste or

3



Westgate/Belvedere Homes
Community Redevelopment Agency
Page 3

abuse in financial audits nor do they expect auditors to provide reasonable assurance of detecting waste
and abuse.

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, combined with the inherent limitations of internal control,
and because we will not perform a detailed examination of all transactions, an unavoidable risk exists that
some material misstatements may exist and not be detected by us, even though the audit is properly
planned and performed in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and Government
Auditing Standards. In addition, an audit is not designed to detect immaterial misstatements or violations
of laws or governmental regulations that do not have a direct and material effect on the financial statements.
However, we will inform the appropriate level of management of any material errors, fraudulent financial
reporting, or misappropriation of assets that comes to our attention. We will also inform the appropriate
level of management of any violations of laws or governmental regulations that come to our attention,
unless clearly inconsequential, and of any material abuse that comes to our attention. Our responsibility
as auditors is limited to the period covered by our audit and does not extend to later periods for which we
are not engaged as auditors.

Our procedures will include tests of documentary evidence supporting the transactions recorded in the
accounts, and direct confirmation of receivables and certain other assets and liabilities by correspondence
with selected individuals, funding sources, creditors, and financial institutions. We will request written
representations from your attorneys as part of the engagement, and they may bill you for responding to
this inquiry. At the conclusion of our audit, we will require certain written representations from you about
your responsibilities for the financial statements; compliance with laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements; and other responsibilities required by generally accepted auditing standards.

Audit Procedures—Internal Control

Our audit will include obtaining an understanding of the government and its environment, including
internal control, sufficient to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements and to
design the nature, timing, and extent of further audit procedures. Tests of controls may be performed to
test the effectiveness of certain controls that we consider relevant to preventing and detecting errors and
fraud that are material to the financial statements and to preventing and detecting misstatements resulting
from illegal acts and other noncompliance matters that have a direct and material effect on the financial
statements. Qur tests, if performed, will be tess in scope than would be necessary to render an opinion on
internal control and, accordingly, no opinion will be expressed in our report on internal control issued
pursuant to Government Auditing Standards.

An audit is not designed to provide assurance on internal control or to identify significant deficiencies or
material weaknesses. Accordingly, we will express no such opinion. However, during the audit, we will
communicate to management and those charged with governance internal control related matters that are
required to be communicated under AICPA professional standards and Government Auditing Standards.

Audit Procedures-—Compliance
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we will perform tests of Westgate/Belvedere Homes Community Redevelopment Agency’s

compliance with the provisions of applicable laws, regulations, contracts, agreements, and grants.
However, the objective of our audit will not be to provide an opinion on overall compliance and we will

8o



Westgate/Belvedere Homes
Community Redevelopment Agency
Page 4

not express such an opinion in our report on compliance issued pursuant to Government Auditing
Standards.

Management Responsibilities

Management is responsible for designing, implementing, establishing and maintaining effective internal
controls, relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or etror, and for evaluating and monitoring ongoing activities to help
ensure that appropriate goals and objectives are met; following laws and regulations; and ensuring that
management and financial information is reliable and properly reported. Management is also responsible
for implementing systems designed to achieve compliance with applicable laws, regulations, contracts,
and grant agreements. You are also responsible for the selection and application of accounting principles,
for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements and all accompanying information in
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, and for compliance with applicable laws
and regulations and the provisions of contracts and grant agreements.

Management is also responsible for making all financial records and related information available to us
and for the accuracy and completeness of that information. You are also responsible for providing us with
(1) access to all information of which you are aware that is relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of the financial statements, including identification of all related parties and all related-party relationships -
and transactions, (2) additional information that we may request for the purpose of the audit, and (3)
unrestricted access to persons within the government from whom we determine it necessary to obtain audit
evidence.

Your responsibilities include adjusting the financial statements to correct material misstatements and for
confirming to us in the written representation letter that the effects of any uncorrected misstatements
aggregated by us during the current engagement and pertaining to the latest period presented are
immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole.

You are responsible for the design and implementation of programs and controls to prevent and detect
fraud, and for informing us about all known or suspected fraud affecting the government involving (D
management, (2) employees who have significant roles in internal control, and (3) others where the fraud
could have a material effect on the financial statements. Your responsibilities include informing us of your
knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the government received in
communications from employess, former employees, grantors, regulators, or others. In addition, you are
responsible for identifying and ensuring that the government complies with applicable laws, regulations,
contracts, agreements, and grants and for taking timely and appropriate steps to remedy fraud and

noncompliance with provisions of laws, regulations, contract or grant agreements, or abuse that we report.

You are responsible for the preparation of the supplementary information, which we have been engaged
to report on, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. You agree to include our
report on the supplementary information in any document that contains and indicates that we have reported
on the supplementary information. You also agree to include the audited financial statements with any
presentation of the supplementary information that includes our report thereon. Your responsibilities
include acknowledging to us in the written representation letter that (1) you are responsible for
presentation of the supplementary information in accordance with GAAP; (2) you believe the
supplementary information, including its form and content, is fairly presented in accordance with GAAP;
(3) the methods of measurement or presentation have not changed from those used in the prior period (or,

fon



Westgate/Belvedere Homes
Community Redevelopment Agency
Page 5

if they have changed, the reasons for such changes); and (4) you have disclosed to us any significant
assumptions or interpretations underlying the measurement or presentation of the supplementary
information.

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining a process for tracking the status of audit
findings and recommendations. Management is also responsible for identifying and providing report
copies of previous financial audits, attestation engagements, performance audits or other studies related
to the objectives discussed in the Audit Objectives section of this letter. This responsibility includes
relaying to us corrective actions taken to address significant findings and recommendations resulting from
those audits, attestation engagements, performance audits, or other studies. You are also responsible for
providing management’s views on our current findings, conclusions, and recommendations, as well as
your planned corrective actions, for the report, and for the timing and format for providing that information.

You agree to assume all management responsibilities relating to the financial statements and related notes
and any other nonaudit services we provide. You will be required to acknowledge in the management
representation letter our assistance with preparation of the financial statements and related notes and that
you have reviewed and approved the financial statements and related notes prior to their issuance and have
accepted responsibility for them. Further, you agree to oversee the nonaudit services by designating an
individual, preferably from senior management, with suitable skill, knowledge, or experience; evaluate
the adequacy and results of those services; and accept responsibility for them.

Engagement Administration, Fees, and Other

We understand that your employees will prepare all cash, accounts receivable, or other confirmations we
request and will locate any documents selected by us for testing,

We will provide electronic copies of our reports to the Auditor General; however, management is
responsible for distribution of the reports and the financial statements. Unless restricted by law or
regulation, or containing privileged and confidential information, copies of our reports are to be made
available for public inspection.

The audit documentation for this engagement is the property of Ward & Company P.A. and constitutes
confidential information. However, subject to applicable laws and regulations, audit documentation and
appropriate individuals will be made available upon request and in a timely manner to the Auditor General
or its designee, a federal agency providing direct or indirect funding, or the U.S. Government
Accountability Office for purposes of a quality review of the audit, to resolve audit findings, or to carry
out oversight responsibilities. We will notify you of any such request. If requested, access to such audit
documentation will be provided under the supervision of Ward & Company P.A. personnel. Furthermore,
upon request, we may provide copies of selected audit documentation to the aforementioned parties. These
parties may intend, or decide, to distribute the copies or information contained therein to others, including
other governmental agencies.

The audit documentation for this engagement will be retained for a minimum of five years after the report
release date or for any additional period requested by the Auditor General. If we are aware that a federal
awarding agency or auditee is contesting an audit finding, we will contact the party(ies) contesting the
audit finding for guidance prior to destroying the audit documentation.

We expect to begin our audit on approximately August 17, 2021 (Interim) and November 9, 2021 (Final)
and to issue our reports no later than January 25, 2022. Zenora Kerr Ward is the engagement partner and

Q0



Westgate/Belvedere Homes
Community Redevelopment Agency
Page 6

is responsible for supervising the engagement and signing the reports or authorizing another individual to
sign them.

Our fee for these services is estimated to range from $20,000 to $22,000 plus out-of-pocket costs (such as
report reproduction, word processing, postage, copies, etc.). Our invoices for these fees will be rendered
as work progresses and are payable on presentation. In accordance with our firm policies, work may be
suspended if your account becomes 30 days or more overdue and may not be resumed until your account
is paid in full. If we elect to terminate our services for nonpayment, our engagement will be deemed to
have been completed upon written notification of termination, even if we have not completed our report.
You will be obligated to compensate us for all time expended and to reimburse us for all out-of-pocket
costs through the date of termination. The above fee is based on anticipated cooperation from your
personnel and the assumption that unexpected circumstances will not be encountered during the audit. If
significant additional time is necessary, we will discuss it with you and arrive at a new fee estimate before
we incur the additional costs. In accordance with our firm policy we require a retainer of $5,000 prior to
commencement of the audit.

We are providing you with a copy of our most recent peer review report and any letter of comment, and
any subsequent peer review reports and letters of comment received during the period of contract. Our
2017 peer review report accompanies this letter.

We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to Westgate/Belvedere Homes Community Redevelopment
Agency and believe this letter accurately summarizes the significant terms of our engagement. If you have
any questions, please let us know. If you agree with the terms of our engagement as described in this letter,
please sign the enclosed copy and return it to us.

Very truly yours,

henoaHlJend, P

Ward & Company, P.A.

A\



Westgate/Belvedere Homes
Community Redevelopment Agency

Page 7

RESPONSE:

This letter correctly sets forth the understanding of Westgate/Belvedere Homes Community
Redevelopment Agency.

Management signature:

Title:

Date:

Governance signature:

Title:

Date:

QL



FICPA \ LAICPA)

FICPA Peer Review Prograrm ) AICPA Peer Review Program

Administered In Florlda by the Administered In Horlda by the

Florida Institute of CPAs Florida Instityte of CPAs
July 19, 2018

Zenora Kerr-Ward

Ward & Company, P.A.

5725 CORPORATE WAY STE 106
WEST FALM BEACH, FL 33407-2036

Dear Zenora Kerr-Ward:

It i1s my pleasure to notify you that on July 18, 2018, the Florida Peer Review Committee accepted the
report on the most recent System Review of your firm. The due date for your next review Is December 31,
2020. This Is the date by which all review doclments should be completed and submitied to the
administering entity.

-~ As you know, the report had a peer review rating of pass. The Commitiee asked me to convey its
congratulations to the firm.

Thank you for your cooperation and support of the profession’s practice-monitoring programs.
Sincerely, '

FICPA Perr Reiew Conmitie

Peer Review Team
. FIGPA Peer Review Committee
paul@ficpa.org 800-342-3187 ext. 251

Florida [nstitute of CPAs

CC: Judson Bagyett
Firm Number: 800010126191 Review Number; 554848

00 Esplanade Way, Sulte 210 | Talluhasseq, FL 32311 | £00.332.3197, In Flotida | 650,224.2727 | Fax: 850.222.8190 | www.flepa.org

A3



6/10/2021 Belvedere | CEl - Check Request - Elizee Michel

Belvedere I CEl - Check Request

Holly Knight

Tue 6/8/2021 4:54 PM

To:Elizee Michel <EMichel@pbcgov.org>;

CeKristine Frazell-Smith <Kfsmith@pbcgov.org>; Sandra Ospina M. <SOspina@pbcgov.org>; Morton Rose <MRose@pbcgov.orgs;
Kathleen Farrell <KFarrell@pbcgov.org>;

Elizee,
We need a check from the CRA for $275,000 to cover the CEl costs of the Belvedere Heights Phase | construction CEl.

Consultant $185,000
Staff Costs $40,000
Contingency $50,000
Total $275,000

Please send to my attention.

The construction contract is being advertised this weekend. Once we open and post a recommended awardee we will heed
the check for that contract extremely quick because FDOT has set an extremely tight schedule for the bidding and award.

Thank You,
Holly

Holly B. Knight, P.E.
Contracts Manager
Paim Beach County
Roadway Production
561-684-4150

o4

https:/iwebmail.pbcgov.orgiowalfviewmodel=ReadMessageltem&ItemID=AAMKAGYWZDVIMTVKLTAZNDCUNGFhNSD4ZDAWLWESZDMZNTIIZDNKM... 1/



WESTGATE/BELVEDERE HOMES COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY (“WESTGATE CRA”)
PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA

ADVERTISEMENT FOR BIDS
CRA PROJECT NO. 2021-01

Bids for the WESTGATE DOG PARK will be received by the Westgate CRA at 1280 N. Congress
Avenue, Suite 215, West Palm Beach, Florida 33409, until 2:00 p.m. on Monday, July 19, 2021.
Any bid received after the designated closing time will be returned unopened.

All bids shall be submitted in duplicate, in one sealed envelope addressed to the Westgate CRA,
and marked "CRA PROJECT NO. 2021-01 — WESTGATE DOG PARK". The work consists of, but is
not limited to installation of berms, landscaping material, irrigation, fencing, site furnishings,
park equipment, signage, and any site amenities consistent with these types of improvements,
along with other work incidental thereto as shown on the Construction Drawings and described
in the Contract Documents. Contractors desiring plans and specifications for use in preparing
bids may obtain a set of such documents from the Westgate CRA at their offices at 1280 N
Congress Ave,, Suite 215, West Palm Beach, FL 33419, (561) 640-8181x105, upon providing a
valid e-mail address for bidding correspondence.

A pre-bid meeting will be held at 10:00 a.m. on Thursday, July 8, 2021 at the Westgate Dog
Park site, 2660 Oswego Avenue, West Palm Beach, 33409. A mandatory site inspection form
must be signed and submitted with bids. Bids received from Bidders not submitting the
mandatory site inspection form will be considered non-responsive and will be rejected.

The Westgate CRA reserves the right to accept or reject any and all bids and to waive any
technicalities or irregularities therein. The Westgate CRA further reserves the right to award the
contract to that bidder whose proposal best complies with the bid specifications. No bidder may
withdraw their bid for a period of sixty {60) days from the date set for the opening thereof.

PUBLISH: Palm Beach Post

Sunday, June 20, 2021
Sunday, June 27, 2021

00100-2

A5



Stoen2ediIsoMm mmm

igtg obo19S §
60¥EE 14 ‘Yorag LWjed 159
G1Z 93NS “aAY s5a18U0) ‘N 0gTL

£auno) yoeoag wied
£ouady Juswdojaaspay fHHlunwiwo)
SAWOH a.12panjRg/a1esisam

0Z0T ‘0€ YAGIWILdAS ONIANIT HYIA T1vISid 404

140d3Y TYNNNY 0202/6107

A



I LHOd3d TYNNNY 0Z/61 Ad YHD LYDLSIM

VH-vid ‘dOIV ‘PYRIN 292413

Eiscerd

‘ueld 8yl
dunuawapdwi 01 WsWWIWO Suio8uo s,y7yD 3yl smoys 110dad jenuue SiYy|

g 34y SN204 Jo Led se AepienQ Buiuoz yyIM Y) pudite pue syafoud
uswidopaapa. saueape o] saianoe Suiuueld 103 pasn osje 243M SA2IN0SaY

*§ Bady snao4 Juawa|dwi 03 5103foad adedsyaadys pue ystaalls

“jlemapis ‘adeule)p uSisep 01 spuny 41 wespusis juads yyy ayr
"t 224y sn2o4 pajuawsajduw yled Jop e jo udisap ay) pue ‘60T a1e]

uljied pooyloqydian yeQ o8ams(Q ay) pauado pue pajajdwod Aoiagy ayy
‘€ ealy

SNJ04 Japun |je} Mm_u_zuum Buisnoy wesdoid uoljeasasasd pooyloqusianN
SYHD 8y} Jtapun awoy Jidyl jo Idueseadde ayy saosdwii 0} sjuesd
PRAIRI9) S1IUMODLUOY [BJDADS “12MISIP BY) Ul sadojanap e Ag 3ing aJam
SaWOY mau xI$ ‘s1aumo a1eand Jayio pue vy ay wouy pasnbae puejug

*Z PUE T Sealy sn204 Japun |{e} S3IAJ0. 3531 “19)Jewuaald
ledo] &Yl pue uwapded Apunwwod syl 2dueyua o} juads ose osem
spung -sajyaide juawudojsaapal aininy o) pue| ajquiasse o3 sanJadosd
pasinbae osje Axualy ayl ‘sassauisng paiyljenb (elanas o3 uzo] 3jgeaiSio
JeaA-auo e JO WLI0) Y3 Ul BDUBISISSE |eueul papinoad yy) ayy Oiwapued
6T-AIAQD 94yl Suunp Buy33ni1s sossauisng |[eWsS a|qeJaujna ueyas og

“wawdojanapay 4oy Buluueld (g pue ainonasesuy (s Huawaaosdwy
Ajunwwo) (¢ ‘Buisnoy {g€ ‘Buuonisod 1ayley (z ‘Juswdojenapay
2 juawdojaaag wouod] (T :a4e SEaNy SNJ04 3yl *PLISIp
Ayl ul suonipuod pay3i|g pue wnjs snowal 0] papasu
saIdalens JO uoneIIuUspl ayl pue ‘suopipuod Sunsixs
jo sishjeve ue ‘suonedijqo AI0INIEIS U0 PASEQ dJe yAym
sealy sndo4 Xi1s sasudwod ueld juswdojanapay LT0Z 2yl

40153.1Q 2A1INDDXT Y} wody 28esso|y

*3'd “AuaSfeq uyiny
Y3gWIw advosd

sa|19 jou3
d3dWIW QdvOd

sima1 ydjey
YIGWIW Qivod

I ‘A "H ydasor
HIGWIW qHvod

za)uag Ip|esdA
43gWIW QUvosd

Ayny auueor
dIYHD-dDIA

sjajueq pjeuoy
divHD

ue|d Juswdojaaapay
Apunuiwiod auyy

jo uonejuswa|du
ay3 sapmngd

S ILOISSILLILIOD
fAuno) jo paeog

Aunoo yoeag wjed
oy} Aq wuay Jeak

-b e 10} porujodde
‘pseog vid
218159\ Joquiay
£ague[e ayl

dUvod Va0 ALVOLSHM

o



' 140d3d T¥NNNY 0Z/61 A4 ¥HD ILYDLSTM

NOISIA

Aejd pue juom ‘aal adoad sssym Ayunwiwiod
JuUeIqJA AJjEDILIOUODD PUE ‘DS ‘DS1aAlp Y

2.n3N4 Y

ainyongyseqju oignd o3 sjuswiaoxdw pue
“uawadueyua Lyunwiwod ‘Ayiqeeae Suisnoy
‘funiioddo >nuouona y3nodyy aseq xel ay}
9sea.HHUI pue suoRIpUod pRIYSig S1eUILIS O

asodung u1noO

B



o

H 140d3d TYNNNY 0Z/61 A4 YYD I1YDLSIM

w.of,.._‘ se sasmpuadxa mcsm._mn_o pue: @Eouc_ .mm_u___n_m: ﬂmmmm

: ﬂ._au:mm< m:m:.._n_o_gm_wum b.::EEou mmE.o_._ Ew_ug_mm_,wummumm.;.ucv
It ﬁmn_ .mmp.mmw.mmm— §0 Y uszgo_m_;wvmm bE:EEou ayy B Em:.,ﬂ:m ;

‘ue|d awdopaaapay Ajunwuwo) pansoidde ue

Jo sanalqo pue sjeod ayl 01 uensind Juawdolsaspai _

21en329)5 pue Wy31jq pue Wnjs aleuWlje 03 palepuelp .
*Ajuno) yseag wied paiesodiodurin
ul Asuafy juawdojanapay Ajunwiio)

Ajuo ay3 s1 vy a1edisam ayl




H 140dTd TYNNNY 0Z/61 Ad vdD 1YDISIM

‘Yoeag wiyed

1S3 UMoILMOp

pue ‘oxiduang 7
S,PPLIO|d ‘56| i
“v19d 01 Anwxoud
350[2 Ul 5] pue
‘4sam ay3 o3 (6og
Hs) e ey
pUE ‘yinos aty 0}
Py 249paajag “ises
3y 03 "py oBuEy
epLiold ‘ydou
awy 01 (bol ¥s)
*PAld 9900330
Aq papunoq
‘Ayunod yoeag
Wwijed UM pajedo)
Allenuad spvdd syl

)

]
- OO

1
{

e T 2
el R iRy ades i

“sajiw
asenbs 7 yo sae
00£°1 ApPirwxoidde
sassedwolus eale

el dep Arepunog
__ UOTIBI0T VY )) 9188780 M



140434 TYNNNY 0Z/61 A4 YHD ALYDLSIM

%PLE 8200661 996001509 0203
%es  el'sovve szeoesy o 6loe

%Lz zpglghle 606'C0E'59¥ 8102
gL sersksse  JogEsivey A0z

%L Pl £62'599'05 | 20S'9EP'SEE _8loz

(%6°5) (g9e's52'12) 60212 PPE 5102

%E'Y 89€'SSL'lZ LET'OvL'I9E . h0E

%66 9rZ'v6e's 698'06€'SYE eL0e
(%%°9) (evy'ysyee) . fegoselbE o eTioe

(%12) (v20'9LY"L6) 990°1e¥'s9E LI0Z
(egob) - (see'u0'e6)  ovbuzeToy  0MOE

%4Z 016°269'L} 505'700'995 6002

%Z0 . TEEeIglE SEEO0EHYS _. 800z

%1€ Y8206 121 £9Z'I8Y'2LG 2002

%58} Z6TLVT'I9 6.6°966'06€ 9002

189'6¥2'62€ 5002

292691061 8861

T Ty, T
SNoINBI WOy 1e3), SNOIAZAd Jeay
adueypuaoiag  wouy adueyd 1anN sanfep ajgexe] vy iepuajed

sanjeA Ay1adoud 9)qexe] [ed1I0)sIH

020T 8T0Z 9T0Z »TOL TI0Z OTOT BOOZ 900Z wOOT TOOT 0007 866T 966T V66T

000°005
000'000°T
000°005°T
000°000°T
000005'Z -
000'000°E

411 [B10] muagem  AIUNOD) cmcgome  FNIGIY 1] e

Sujpueu) JuawaJouy jo Aojdalel)

Supueuly yuawRiduj Jo A1oyalea]

‘ueld uatudojaaspay Aluntuwo) a3 jo saanaalgqo
pue sjeo3 ayl yno Aued o3 pasn sl ‘spuny uesd [219pa) pue Iels ‘|elo)
yum pasSeians| ‘anuanal jeyl -uojjiu ££$ KpPrewnxolidde o) pajunowe
sey sJead 0f ISE[ 9Y} JOJ UOHTILIIUOD J|L Bl) ‘panialal Iand Sey vy
ay3 1saydiy ay1 s1 411 0Z0T dUL “Alorafen piemdn ue uejuiew o) paysfoad
S| pue paseasnnuy Ajpeals 411 8yl ‘dip leyl JeYy "ZT0Z/TI0Z Ul uoypw
T'T$ 01 yoeq Juljje) 1934w 2IBISA [Bal DY) JO YSI19Y 8L} I8 UOI|pHW £°25 03
paxead 1 600Z/8007 Ul “1eah e Q00°000°TS PaYydeal Jaadu 411 34} ‘S00Z 01
Jold -uejd juawdojaropay
vHD o) ul 19s seod ayy
Suiysidwodze u) Sunsisse
‘aseasnur WSS e udas
sey 0Z0C Ad 40 411 3yl

6107 Ad wiod %5 jo

asea.pu ue Jupuasaldal ozoz A4 Joj
S91Gob 7% SEM INUDARI JUSWIR.DUY XB ],

‘6T 0T WOJ} %5 Jo aseatdul ue ‘gzoT
Ad 10} S9T/GOP°ZS sem ‘uonINpas AloIniels %S e J19e ‘wodu] JUBWAIIU]
X2) s,yyD 91ed1soAp Y ‘S[IWw IZSH'E JO 91BJ 5,1011S1d Bndsay adld ay)
pue sjiw ST/ ¥ 1 Ajunod yieaq wijed JO el Xe} ayj usAld) 889 TEGPTES
01 snowe 7eaA 198png 0Z0Z Syl JOJ PIJ4IPISUOD INjEA Dd|gexe]
|euly 3yl wouy 1eah aseq ayy Jo anjea ajgexe) ayl Sunpengns ‘@iualaylp

" JeluBWBIIUI By "siedA 3Al 1SE| BY) Ul BSEBIOUI 1SBMO] U] ‘4eaA snojaaid

ay} woyy aseanul %pT'E e Sunuasasdal ‘gge’0NT'S0SS 01 paiunowe
uonenjens Auadosd ayy ‘0z0z A4 Ul *292°69T061S 01 pajunowe (anjen
ajqexe}) uopenijen Amadoxd sead aseq sy ‘NLSIA @NIsay ali{ pue pund
|EJaUaD ay3 wWoJi SuUBUL JURWALIUI Xel lenuue padpajd Aluno) ay: ‘686T
ul SIBUOISSILLIWO) Ajuno) JO paeog ayl AQ paysi|qeiss sem yyd SOOH
aJopanjagfaiedisapy oyl uayan Apoq 3uiwianod s,yy) e Ag 135 uaaq sey
ieah aseq ay} acuo 12113SIP YHD B ulyitsm suolienjea Apadoad Jo anjea pappe a3
uodn paseq 2Je spuny 4|1 ‘puni 15Nt 11943 01 SUOIINGLIIUOD BYEW 0} SIISIP
Buixey Jay3o uodn puadsp Asy: 1yl sueaw Yaym ‘s1olsip Suixey yuspuadap
ale epuold u syy) NIy -(41L) Spunj juswWaIUl Xe} ‘aWodul JO annos
ufew s,yHD a2yl pajeasd ‘|j) Med ‘€91 91mels eprioly Fundope ul ‘aje3s ayl

STIVIONVNIA VdD

\O\



L4043y TYNNNY 0Z/61 A4 VD 3LYDLSIM

SSIIAIIDE POEiRd
wpwdo@aap AJUnuitiod

33 WIAI-SU0| UO ¥SAIDW] -

juswdojaaspay

1s3I93U|
SIURID) o
anuanay Ausdold |RIUBWRIOU] u
Pl Tol

uo juads sem LG PEES ~ Apunuuo?) SWODL| [EIUBY =
%G1 asudwod
SIUBAS WO NUDADY ~
0707 10} ;
anuanai jesduad |B10] JO %96 |
sas1udwod saxey Ky1adoad sasuadx3 vud SONUIARY |EIIUID YYD
[BILSWS.IOU] LU0 DNUDARY ~
*510vd V_U_DNU ANUSAIS WUALLISLIUL RaL [RRLLY
[ wers 1ov0s1 99TSOPE 0860 (167667  T8GvE000 | 1815000 | SS6UOTVIE  SSGO0T'S0T <0303
%6  Gv0'86T 869VVE'T 0S50  EOTBOVT TBSYEODO STS/VODO (099'THS'667 [6OTLGBY 6107
¥869723°1$ ] ﬁ.mWM;@mem 6VI'EST ‘.._..om.m._o 666992 Hm@moo 0 STRIVOO  Zv9" VEU'SLT  GOG'EOE'SIY BI0C
%6T | 750’50 | 0B'605'T. 0560 | ECEOTOT  TSSYEOD'D  STSLYOD'O - OOO'EBGEVT | L9TTSTVEV! LT0Z
SASN3dXd %EE 685966 VSL909T 060  0ZE'T69T T I8SE000  STSLVODO SEL/9T'S0T  ZOS'OEV'SEE  9TOZ
INFGWNDNI TY1O0OL (keT)  (svI'ScD) SSTOTZT  0S60  SSE'ELCT  TSSYEOO'0  STELYO00  ZvGTO9'WST 6OTTLLWYE  STOT
) ‘ %pT €701 S8OE'SBE'T  0S6'0  6LCESYT  TSSYEODO STSLPO00 O/6'9/6'0[T LETOVTU9E  YIOT
v16°078°1$ % 69597 mmo SIZ'T. 0560  PO6'8/Z'T TBSYEDD'D STSLPOD0 Z0S'TZT'SST G9B'0GE'SHE  ET0C
SISNIAXT TV.LIOL (%ET) (LbE'BLT) Lyy'BBT'T  0S60  £66'0SZ'T  TRSYEODD  STRLYO00  9SELTETST | £79'966'IbE 10T
} c ¢ {%7€)  (988°%S9)  ¥6L'O9E'T  0SE'0  TEL'BEY'T TSSYEOD'D OOS/VOO'0  66LTST'SLT 990°TSY'S9E  TTOT
868°GLSCS {%bT)  (0z8°T8) 0891207 0S6'0  vBO'SZT'Z  TSSPEOD'D OVVEVOO'® E£/8°SL'TLT OYT'LZ6'T9v  OTOZ
SINNIATY TVLOL %o 86TZEL  OSEGEET  0S60  b/yTOYT  00SEZ000 TIS/E00D  GECSEY'SIE  SOS'VO0ISS 6007
(%T)  (S/8'ST)  ZST'L07'T  0S6'0  SIE'EIET  Y6LLTODO TIBLEODD SIE'LET'VSE  GES'90EPYS  800T
%vS  18L78L [Z0°E77'C  0S6'0  GUO'OPET 00B6TO00 O00BTYOOD 966LTEZZE E£9TISY'TIS  L00T
9YTOW'T  0S6'0  SYO'STST  06G0S00T0 00SYYOOD TIL'LT8'ODT  6L6'966'06€ 9007
mu..ﬂﬂw.ﬁmgwﬁm Jeajeseq  [97'69T'06T  886T
sadueys) WALIU]  uoInpay  BnudAly  oleyoedeljiy  ajeM aSeil JUBWRASUL seap
juadiad  safuey) xepeud  Aomyess Xei anasay ang Aunoc) anjep s|gexel  Snjea s|qexel  Jepuaje)

[enueury §c0o

SONUIADY JUDWD.IDU] [ED1I0ISIH

\OL



IA 140dTH TWNANNY 0Z/61 A4 YHD 31LYDLSIM

“SJEITZIE}S [ETOUENL] O} SA)ON 395

SIS E)G [BIOURIY 0 $HON 295

ISUPLTP] § 134 Jo ptta - woyrsod 13Ny
L6T°6E0ET 1e3X Jo Suraurdaq - uontsod 1N
FREVET'T uonised jom m s3uer)
868°6.5'C  § sanusasl [ersuad oL

681°6 »DMO
6V9°65 SO [y
008°¢ JLERER
POL'LE 3Lk y)
PULFT  § saxe} Autadord [eynatmasony

ISAMTIANY [RIPUIL

9LE'GETL § 18’19 § €RO90E § TLOTBIGS sddeeq pung
PUE SIRMqEY [eIoL
TE5BI0L  IPE0TS £70°90¢€ 207760°0 SIIUTTLq pUnJ [ElC ],
Ce8esel - - $T8SEl paIRIgsRmN)
£F0°90€ - £70'90€ - SIS 33T
0o re'oTe - - s123foad ryrdes
PRIy
SYSOEI'T - - SPR'OLT’I sasmdxs predasg
CEC665°E - - SE5'665°E S[esal 10] PIOY SIeSSY
sjqepuadsnon
SeOUelRq pURJ
FREITL 08+ 1€ - 79863 sammqey (oo,
08%'1£ 08¥'IE - - SNTIAT PIWLIT()
L8 - - Leg'y SPARY K0 03 (T
Leo’'sy § - - T $ LE08Y $§ sasmadxa pannoe pue aqeded synodsy
SSTHTIQET]
S99URTRG PUIY PUE SITNTIQET]
9£66EL § 1I8ICO § £P0'90E § TLOTBIOS sjasse (oL
¥88F - - Fag'y 59558 RO
cec's6s’s - - SEC'665°E TES 30 PIIT SIASSY
SFEOEI’T - - 8P8OLT'l saswade predaig
000°05 - - 000°0$ S2[GRATIAL ST
$H0°TH - - SFO°TI 3[qear@dal Juay
L8 +6L'LE £50'y - SPARI S0 WO an(]
POLEGTT § LIOPI9 § OI0TOE § IS.°8LE1 S juapeambs yses pue yse)
slassy
sponj sfeld WVARGIGHT [T

mwuurRien  Eenden

ey

070 ‘0% f2quardag papuy JvaX [easty o 101
SpUn J [E)UMIILIIAGS)

199G ueEg

(eprror g ‘uno) yareg meg jo yup 1nsuodme)) v)
Ay yusmdopzapay Hmnmmoyy M0 213paAIg eSS

FI60FE'L  § SONLALSE JUAtNL2A0F (R)0 ],
LS9 193p W-300] to 11T
LELPEE'T  § yeawrdafaaspat Atrmurno )
sasmadxg
SRy
BT AL

0707 ‘0f qumadag papug ava X [ESLY 3Gl JOJ
SIYLATIOY JO JUSmI LIS

(epriog 1 “Huno) ouag mpud jo 15us) Juanodino) v)
fouaBy yusmdopaspay OUNmwWo) SIWOYY 1P F/eBpso 4y

'0Z0Z ‘0g Jaquiaidag Sulpud Jeah ay3 Jo4 (H4vD) Hoday
[epueUY [BNUUY aaisuayaudwio) sA1uno) yieag wjed ulyum papnjaul
ale yyd 3y3 Joj sjuswalels [epueul pajpny ‘Aidoyine 3uixel yoea o1
pangsip pue sloypne juspuadapu) Aq Tzoz ‘sz Menigaq uo payajdwod
sem poday Upny |enuuy s,¥4D 24 ‘()28 °E9T "S°d Ylim 3JUepIoIIe U]

SINHWHALV.LS "TVIONVNIA CHLLIANV

\O5



n 1HOdIH TYNNNY 0Z/61 A4 VHD 31¥DISIM

NOILLYIUD2Y ¥ SHEV

:1s1auyled 1o9louad

020Z £29010 Ul pjay Sumn) uoqqiy

("S55S9 b S wesBoud) sededs njqnd g syuaweacsduw)
ainjaniiseru] fqnd “S Baly sndo4 g Juswaacaduw] ANunwiuoe?) ‘v eaty snooy
INOILYINIWITdIWT NV 1d LNTAWJOTIAIATY

‘Aemiapun s sjuaAd ANUNWILOD
alnny o) Buwwesdold 's9an Yeo
aamjeLLt ylewapeay s,93s a3 1y3iuasy
o0y Suidedspue| pasosdwy pue ‘suoz
sandy pooy e ‘seale Buneas ‘skemuped
Supuim  feate  sduewlojiad  pue
uoliaed JuaAd ue sapnpul yded ayy

*gT0z ul Pafoid ay3 punj Joyliny 0} uoiiedofe ngad s Auno) ayy
woiy £08°ske$ papinoad Ajjiqeulelsng JlIOouU0I] 2 SuisnoH jo yuawpedag
Ayuno) yoeag wied ayy pue 10z W weidoad jueld seruadoid pessaansiq
B paiydig (vms) Auouiny sisepy pljos Aluno) yoeag wied syl woly
Suipuny uy G/T'TSTS PIpJeme Sem Yy Y3 1S83UN0sal 3]s pue [2J0] Wody
sjueld Bupyaas Aq sanuanal Juswnul padelana| vy 9yl Jed ayi punj ot

-sasn a1gnd Jsyio
01 $yul] yua yed Jaxood Jeauy) auneay e Suiesas Aq ueld Juswdojanapay
Ajunwwo) sydd) 8yr w pauno se 1sfosd Aemusaln |eue)
Z-1 a3 21enyiut pue ‘Sunsyie] pue Suidwnp [eBaj) Jusansid 0} pue| uedea
asodind-aa ‘syuana Ajunwieod 1o} pue asn Ajunwwos o}y adxeds Hgnd
uado 312310 ||IM Yied pooyloqudiaN syeQ oFomsQ ay] ‘4a)ua) uonearIay
Ajunwiwio) 91e5159an U1 WoJy anuaay 0Fams() SS043E PalEl0T “pAld
J[OUILIDS 1 InuaAyY 0ZamsQ uo s|eaied juedea paumo-yyd € uziian
yied pooyloquSiou B uo 610T 238 W poajedwiod sem uoRINNISUOD

yled pooytoqysioN s}eQ 08amsQ
-11vVddn 1D3rodd

TAOIdWI] UO SNOO, ] ponu

U0y v

soordg orfqnJ 3u

\



H LHOdIY TYANNY 0Z/61 A4 WD JLYDLSIM

(-S-+5 ¢ b-1-5 wesBouyg) seoeds ojjqnd @ sjuswusAcdLU] BINIONJISEL]
oqnd 6 eaay snood g juawLaolsdw) Ayununuedy ‘b eaay snood

*NOLLVINIWITdINI NV 1d LNIFWAJOTIAZAT

1iauzaed aload

*1Z70T JO pUs E paledwod
aq o} pajedppue s| uondnisued pue ‘ugisap ul st 1ejoud syl

*apou |edpunw
palauuo) pue aaisayos & Buneasd Usjua) uoneannay Nesam
8yl 01 Ayiuawe Jqnd Aleiuswiaidwod e aq [im pue sadeds uado
algnd mau omy Aq payjuey aq (1M anudAY 03amsQ 1B “pAlg S|oulwag
10 UOIPRSIAIU 3Y) ‘PININIISU0I sI yied Fop Byl BuQ ‘saaneiul
Sunjew-soe(d wy) Joj Juiod |ed0) B S| pue YYD Y3 jo Ydua| [|ny ay:
SunJ Jeyl JoIBUUO0D YINOoS-LLIoU [eulalul Ajuo 3yl s| "pA|g Sjoulwas
*13U102 }5EALIN0S ) UO S10] JUBIEA £ Y] UO paledlo| aq 03 51 yted Jop
341 ‘PAIdNJIsuod A||n} i *pA|g jOUILWIIS 1B 2NUAAY 0ZF3MS( JO JBUI0d
158MyInos ayl uo paleso] Nled pooysoqysiaN syeQ odamsQ syl

*$10| JUBJEA XIS D1} JO 324} UO SIUIPISAI 21eB159AA JO asn ay) 10y Hied
dop e 8uneasd Ag anuaay oSamsQ Juoje suoya dn-ueap anuiuod
01 sya9s Palosd ayi ‘ease vy ayl w s510| Juedea paumo Apiqnd
pue Ajpleaud yiogq uo anssi Jewd|qosd pue aaisealad e surewias
sSALY Suisn  Juippnw,, pue ‘Guissedsasy “Juidwnp jeda) 123foad
Aemuasig Z-1 8Y3 JO UolEaId DY) pue [eued z-7 ayy Jo uoisuedxs ayy
10} paysew.ea Aisnolaasd anuaAy 0FamsQ U0 S10| PRUMO-YYD Juedea

¥is Jo uopnedyiInesq pue dn-ues)d ayy Joj wesdoad juesd sajuadoag

passaiisig g pawsSiug (vms) Aluoying s1sem pios J4d ayy
wo.y Buipuny Ul 0DL'Z6$ PIapJIeme sem vHD a3yl ‘gToz Jo Asenugaq uj

yded 8oq x pafoud
dn-uesp) sanJadold snuaay o03amsQ

-41vddN 153rodd

\OD



H LHOd3H TYANNY 0Z/61 AJ WYD ILYDLSIM

(-£-4S g ~9*4-9 weaBouy) sededs slqnd » syuswaacidw)

4NIINIISELIUL X|gnd 'S ealy snood (1P L 108foad

g1 '[q0) Juswdo@aspay g juwdojaaag dlwouody
‘bzoT 103 paunesBosd uononiisuod 4 ealy SO TNOILVINIWITIWT NV 1d INFWAOTIATAIE *Tz0¢ Joj pawwelgoud uoponisuod
ynum  Tzor ul wdaq [pm udisaq yum 1zoz w wiaq m  udisag

\

*pafoid ayy sysdwos
0} wesdosd juesd dyl vdl yoesg wied
ayl wouy Julpunj 10ad Ut 000°000°TS
papleme sem Yy) 9yl 0Z/6T Ad ui

-apeys apinoid
01 SBuideospue| pue Azajes awnydiu
10} 514319915 ajess-ueliisapad se jjlom
se ‘yinos ay3 Suoye suoipod 03 syjemapis
pue ‘Aempeos By} jo 3pis Yyllou
ay3 uo yjed asn-njnw ,zT-0T € Sulppe
Aq same} 151PAIq pue uelisapad
ancudwi 01 syeas wafoad ayg el
Aenjny wosy pooyloqydisu {sydiey
MIINJ[0D) SOWOH aJapean|Pg ayl ou
wutod ssade Alewnid ayy s1 peoy Aayd

sjuawaaoaduw|
ueLIsapad peoy ALyd

u0J2395 55043 ugisap jemdsouod - gQYYAIINOE TTIONINIS

udisap jenydasuod

QVOY AYYIHD

‘pafoad ayy aadwod
03 wesdoad esd gyt vdl yoesg wied
ayl woyy Juipuny 104 Ul 000°000'TS
papleme sem YY) 9yl ‘GT/8T Ad Wi

‘anuany oSamsQ 01 'pAlg 9200YIIBR0
woij Aempeos 8yl jJo B8pis uyies
uo syled asn-pnw ,ZT-0T Sunonaisucd
pue ‘syydijisans ajeas ueuisapad pue
Suidesspue| Suijjeisul Aq syuswanosdw
anuaay  23edisapn poauueid o
ai1 |iw 19foad siyL pajg Aol 03 "pAIg
aagoydaayQ woly Fupusixa ‘PuisIp
83Ul Ul UIYUM 101IBUUOI YINOS-LLou
Juepodw; ue s| ‘anuany ajedisapn Yiam
sSPasIaul Yoiym “pleasinog sjouiwasg

s199.3S 339|dwo)
pleAs|nog 2[OuIIDS

KauaSy Bujuue,
.._ozmtwnm_m_m._h_n Lo

NOLLVYLHOdSNYHL Au
HO2V39 WiIvd "4 10 wennedaq eppoly Fonu um‘—m _(—U.L mnﬂ PUQMOL&
‘ea.e Juswdo|aAapad 3yl INoYZNOJL} }JOMIDU [EPOLU-I}[NLU ‘DJES B 31EAI pUR
‘suondo uoneyodsue.) anosdiu) 03 s3I042 S1 PBNURLO YYD 2y} “1ead 198pnq 0zoz a3 U]

1S2131U[ JUDWISIAU| je|NWIS B AlljIgeyjepn pue A1ajes ‘Aiialldauuo) aaoltduw yey) sadedsiaans

SLOHLOUd "TVLIAVD B LNHINJOTHAHA DINONOOH




H LHOdTd TYNNNY 0Z/61 A4 WHD 31YDLSIM

Asuaby Bujuuerg \-

uopepadsurs)
HOV3a Wivd (.

I
ouxLiodsuviL { JLOa-

:s1aUlIRd 129]04d

("L wesBoay)

sacedg sqnd @ stuawaolduwy
IN¥INISEYU| JI[gnd

S eaay snood (1) oload

‘C-z1 'lqO) 3uswidolaaspay

) Juawdo]aaa(] JlWoUosy

1 ey smo4 NOILVINTWI TdWI
NYid INIWAOGTIATIATH

HIVIATONS vy E ! E Iy swaas | ]
A3DND wmau B awiae T T Wil | BT vz (5 A ETELTS I
-—9 ———01 m Db L — 0L Ll 9 — m —0l-—F-9 !
: _ ! _ “
'
(DN} {3dvosanv) 1
VIV X373 Yadv X314 “
uoIIas 55002 udisap |emydasuoy !
R |I’ b
¥ [y ] AT ]
L] Ve = , ﬁu_m..

-Zz0T Jo jnr u1 uiBaq 0} UCIIIMUISUS) “IOPLLIOY 3Y) 104 UOISIA USISOP B} U
Bupjiom ui8aq 01 sieauiBus payrajes pue ‘udisap 1oajold 10} 444 ve panssi ‘s1aaloud 10gd fiunod
Suifeuew 1o} ajqisuodsas Louade payniad 4y ayl ‘SurtesuiBug funo) oeag uged ‘610t a1 u|

~322fo4d ay3 Juawa|dwy Bulpuny uj UL 6°Z$ PApIEME SEM
pue Joj pajdde yyd ayi ‘912Ad juead (1) seanemu] (207 Adualy Suluueld uoienodsues) 8T0Z Ad
ay3 Bunng *ssadoud analleyd Hed-om) e eja s1ap|oyayels JuswuIanod |B20] pue AHUNLILWOD LWOLy
indui pajesodiooul ueld adedsiaans ayl "10plI0d anuaay aledisap oy Suoje AjjelA JWOU0ID
puedxa pue JUIWIS3AUL MBU 1384118 0] JUDLUUCIIAUD UE D1Ed4d pue JJueyud ‘Ajineaq o1 pue
saiyunuoddo ysuesy |epow-nnw pue Ajigeyjem ‘Aijeuonauny aaosdw) 03 uSisap adeasiaans e
91E9.12 0] SEM UE|[d 3y} jo asocdlind ay] “ueld adedsiaalls JopLUo) anuaay 21e81so 2 Jo uoneledaad
841 Ul I51s5E 0] sjue}nsuod afedua 01 weidold JUelD IdUBISISSY |EJIUYI) Suluuejd Ajunwwo)
{03a) Anunyuoddo 2nwuouea3 jo Jwawedaqg syl wold) 000szS papieme sem vy auyl ‘o910z Alnr uj

‘Aem-j0-1ydis ay) u) Suideaspue| pue ‘Sunnysy| a|eas-ueysapad ‘Jupped
192415-U0 ‘S9UE| I PPe ‘DAl 0SSeqEAN 0) 2NUIAY FDUBMNS WO dNUBAY d1ed)1sapn uo a3yl 0}
BAIJ WD) SBUR| SINPSJ |IM JaALIp Juswdojanap wouods siasw Pafosd sjuswanroidun |endes siyl

19load s3943s 939]dwo)
10pLLIOD DNUBAY 918819 T1VdAdN 1D3Aroyd

TWIOUO0IT]

$71901}Q 9j91dwo)) + JusmdofeAs(] o

\ON\



H 1HO43Y TYNNNY 07/60 A4 VYD 1LWYDLSTM
(-5 wesSoud)
saneds 31qngd g syuswaaosdLul aunyanaysedyul dqnd ‘S ealy sndod

NOLLVYINIWITdW! NV 1d INTFWAOTIATA3IT

uo1D3s $5042 MOY ,0S 1221dA Jo udisap |enidaouo)

L omus Rils

U S e e e e

{1y3u anoge} s8euielp 1ood 01 anp sejems ul Suipoo)y pue (19|
anoge]) Juysi| 199015 ou ‘SHEMBPIS OU — SIYSI9H 2UIPSAISYG Ul SUCIIIPUCD Bunsixg

RIILT

“n
&

St
Kauaby Buyue)g \- NN P | AT,
(G Me=—-  NOLLY1:OdSHVUL O¢4d : o
HOVIE WIVd 1o astaiadeg spyoi A 5
S &

LTt

:sdauyted paloid

*1ZOT JO JBLUWNS UIBaq 0} UokINIISUOD “1ralosd syyipaaas
pue syjemapis ayl jo uoianssuod Fuwuigdaq oy dolid speod
|B20] [[B ue swia)sAs 23eulelp papedddn [|eisu; pue sulewl J31EM
p=enbpue adejdas o) sepnn Jolean pue SunssuiBuy fjunod
yim Surtauiied sy 9y ‘pooytoqyBiau spyBloH a4apaneg aul
uy senss| Sulpooy) pue 3SeUIRIP DIUCILD SSAIPPE 01 0T A< Ul 3aload
23 papuedxa wyd 9yl “pegpasy Apununuod o1 asuodsas uj

*€207 Aq pajedipnue uolia|dwod UOIIINIISLOD YlMm GT0Z
231e] ul uiSaq M uldisap || aseyd -pooyloqysiau ay} Ul Speo. |eio|
€ Sujuiewss ayy aa|dwos 01 weidosd i §T0OZ Ad S,.¥dl 3yl wouy
1 8seyd Jogy Suipuny 1 0G4 Ul Uol||iW 000‘9S6S PaPIemE sem vy Yyl

*zZ0Z Aq pa1ajdwod aq o1 paiediaiiue s| pue 8Tz 21e| ul uedaq
| aseyd Joy udisag “pooyloqysiau ay) UM speod |eao] § apnpul
0} 193[0ad 313 jo [ aseyd 91a)dwiod 03 ZT0Z Ui WeIS0ld SOAIIEWIRLY
uonerodsuel] (vdl) Auady Suiuueld uonenodsuel] Auno) yoeag
tjed ay) woay Suipuny LOQd W T8S°GEGS papJeme sem wyd ayl

‘auou AUa.LINd aJle aJal) alaym pooydoqysiau spysioH a1apaniag
Yl Ul §192J1s [E20] § UO SY|EMBPIS 1INJISUOD pue sjydipaans
ajess-uelisapad jjesu] | 138fodd siuawaaoisdun jeades siyy

suley Joyepn/ageutesq + |1 g | "Yd 3ddload
SH[EMIPIS B SIYS1|399.43S pooyloqysieN
S)ySIoH a49paajad :3LvAdN 1DIroyd

\OB



H 140434 TYNNNY 0Z/61 Ad Y4 TLYDISIM

(mo)ag ojoyd) vonepunoy

zandpoy syl Aq pasosuods

pue ‘sajjiwiey |eaof Aq papuane ‘610z
A3qIBIaQg Ul Wie4 Y] JE p|ay sem
Aemedan seunsiay) AJlunuiuo) v

{(mojaq ojoyd} gT0Z 12quiadag Ajuea
Ul UDP.IED S,UDIP|IYD MBU DU} JO
Buluado ayy 1e s19||21A1035 S,u24p YD
[BI0] Y31Mm JUSAD IINIS|0S M
|enads e paziuedio siadeuetu wieg

SJIUDAJ
A unwwod

{(‘t+F woidorg

g bzb fqo) uatuascadeuy
Aunwiwo) b pary snxod
‘NOTIVINTWITJWT

NY1d INGW4O13ATa3d

YU OIE MG Y ORE R
I
N vup g — iy = of e §

ALy gL

\ 7

Arenemar) aEds, Spedus e jo urd 5 spig Moy npard pue uury
3 AFRULLY MO IIREY FaLIY *2m 514 PUE CLAQUT PEUE(] S2AUD Jatle) $1)

ard I Rudppe it

o sapqrsadan por syELy ysp BUpAA| PR 2 A8 WAL PRI g KN
PN ST gy LRI AR, AL 3 105 U
1 1ved o — uose2s qumo) w05 peusdo Susse: T 3 Mg ST

Spreysnoy guy g Agdnoe sy puediedtog jo pasop

poay, Py Arap ArIspag sl U7 3R] OFFTAE ) U0 RRT UL UG ATAE RIjom TUr]
Opunwun padpa-[1ny T oju; waosd sey 0qunsas Hic)-1005-1 e g paddoy
Adsuiey v ozt p3g Yeg ¢ i Ing padpta 1 god patperd ¢ aua seA TR,

WA 3 Sk 51 MG
LHUIIATY. ) Y TR TR, APIFING 56 N JO 1550 1] neim, H)

“riemat poud pug peds # urd
03 YHBOLY Lo Y2123 03 — Juay § JngY 03 SN PR poag L1340 30 tHELP IG5

nodary [EuonETILEN] YIe Wed Jo
[Uod pooyIoqy$1au IWoIu-mo] Jo 123y u) urre] Jejndod
QUL LIED POOY 1IN IDNSY EALAY PUE OR|GOY |PILE(]

AT OUS I ELOZ 2 2] Ps0d
Wed g Ed IR) (N Bg N I

SISED U22IS
Aupy e 91wBa0g 2REISOM W MISIP OO} B MOY

3 SLHVAS SMIN TV

18504 YoBSg Wed A,

‘aonpoud umoid-epriog4 aseydind o} syjauaq
d¥NS so[qnop ydiym welBoud syang ssadoy Yysai4 s,epriof4 Sulpasd
up sazedpiaed jeyy ‘Aunod yoeaqd wijed ul j9ysew Ajuo ayy pue
‘epl140]d Y3nos ul s1ox4ew SIsULIE) pulled XIS JO SUO S| 1M JELULIDIIN
21e8159pA 2yl ‘sAep j19jiewuuzaln Apj@am je sdwels pooj yum
Aed 03 syuapisat payjijenb smoje yoym {dyNS) wesSoad asueisissy
uonuINN [eyudwslddng s, yasn syl uw ssjediyyed wieq syl

“puUBLUSP AJLNLULLOD pasesIIUl 199 0}
dunsaaiey pue Sunue|d ue pasnaoj pue esA 1a8pnq ayi jo jley 1se|
a3yl uj saiunyoddo J9ajunjon pue spusad Ajlunwitiod pasned wieg
ay1 ‘wapued gT-QIAOD 2Y) 01 anq *Aeqd ylom Ajlunwiwo) Ajyiuow
e Funsoy pue ‘sjooyds |elo] 01 sduy pjay unago ‘aaejd uonesnpa
pue Suuayles e se saAIdS Os|e wuey ay) ‘4adeuew uapled asnoy
-Ul Ue YUAA 'SILUIDPISD |ENPIAIPU] 10} JJe|IBAE BpEW dJE Spaq pasied
pue syojd [enpiaipu) SAnunwwod a3edisap Ul J0p sanpoad umoad
Ajjeaue8io Fuipinosd 01 paiedipap s1 waed ayl "ST0Z W WD 9yl Aq
paumo pue| Jo 240B ue uo palels sem wiey Ajunwiwio) a1e81sa/n 9yl

wie4 Lyunwiwod) 23e815oMA

ST H o

aﬁ@&@uﬂmnmm hﬂﬂ,ﬁ&&oo

\OA



H L140d 39 TYNNNY 02/61 A4 vHD ILYDLSIM

{-€t1 wouSold) Juautdofanapay g wawdopaag

Jpuouos3 ‘L baly smo4 NOILYINIWITdWI NY1d INTIWdOTIAIATY

“TZ0Z Ad Sunnp Suisnoy 10 asn paxiw 10}
3115 AU} Jo JuawidoanARpaL 3Y3 10) 44y ue anss| 03 suejd yu) ayl

‘aALDSDL JB|Y20) “d Sluuaq S,VHD Iyl
$HOOBAD IS 8Y] "Eale-ghg SIYY Uy 343e Jad suun 44q 0ST 03
_dn smojje (dg@) weiSoud snuog Ajsuaa OVHIM dylL -Alsuap
[Blluapisad pue  AJSUIUE [EIJSLWIWO]  ylIm Juswdoisasp
ajeas aSie| afeinodua 01 papuaiul eale ue {OvYIM) Aepang
Sujuoz ealy wawdo|sAlapay ANunwwio) s1edisapy aul Jo ease
-qns HN 8Y3 ulylim paiedo| Ajjeap] pue ‘saude T Ajalewxoadde
51 3US 9yl "6T0OT J2qWaIaQ ui ‘pPAjg S9(0YI2INQ JO YINOS
1sn{ *any e3neweydry) uo s|sdied aaiy) paseydind vy syl

SBuisnoH 10 asn paxil 1oy Ajquiassy pue Suio3uQ
fy1adoud |esa3e[[0D

a.Jenbg 1aouads Jo uonsinboy

(bt 'z wwiSouy)
Suuonisod 19440 ‘7 baly snood Huswdofarapay 2 uawdojanag
I1WoU033 ‘1 paly SN0 NOIIV INGWI TdWIT NV 1d INJWJOTIAITIH

sumg ‘panssy addijiyd uear—
31048 Al2120u1S “Alunuiwiod

ano fo srigof 3y fo 1iod o an

Y2y sassauisng Jows ay) Jioddns

07 UONID HIMS pUB UJaIUod JNok yHm
passarduls uip | “aanniaiddn Aian os,,

J3UMQ “BjeH SUJIoN--
L« YBnoua sAnb nof yupyl 3,103 am
“1anps-afi} o yans som wipsboid inoj,,

AL A9X20Y Z0LT "PALE 99QOY29dN0 ZEST
S3IIAIDS DAIOWIOINY SANEUIRLY Uolsip, pooueapy
I S

"0Z A4 JO 2SO[2 2} 210459 SISSIUISN] [E30] § 01 SUBO] 3[qeAIFI0) §
passadold yyu ay3 {wesdoud au3 Joj pajadpng si sieak |easy omy Sujuueds
000'0STS §0 |8101 ¥ "IsngoJ sem weldoad ayl ul 3salaium ‘0zoZ Isndny ug
1IN0 [1EW S53UISNG-01-128.41p B Buime||od "ueo] 3|qeaigio Jeai-T 881} 15343}u]
ue ul 0gO‘0TS ‘ssa) 10 saaholdwa §Z Yyum sassauisng Suipinoad Aq sibdigap
fioided pue ‘suieyz Ajddns Aojuaau) ul suolidnisip ‘sa2iAIds Ul suoonpat
‘spinsofp Ssauisng palepuew ajels Aq peledwy sassauisng  |lews
01 J91|24 [Bi3URUY 193.41p sapinoad WweaSold 3yl "11IsIp JuawdoPaapal Jo
YHEa1 DULIOUCI BU] 0} [E}A SB553UISNY [[ELus 243 JJoddns 03 ozoz sung )
wesSoad ueo ajqerSio Jaijay Aruadistuy ssaulsng jjews 61-QIAOD AU}
paleass yy) a1edisap oyl nuapued 6T-AIAOD 12908 ay) 0} asuodsal u|

weuaBouad ueoq ajqeaisiod
joley fouadiawg 61-GINOD

TUOTJUo9Y Ssoulsnyg [[ewg

\\O



H L1HOdIH TYNNNY 0Z/61 A4 YD ILYDLISTM

(‘Th9
wpiSoid} juawdoanapay Jof Sujuupld ‘g paty snood (*1t'€ wpiBoud)
Buisno ‘¢ paly snao4 :NOILVINIWTIdW] NV 1d INIWJO 13AIa3d

udisap |[emydaduod adply uwmny

spsfoad Jajjews Joy
DAID1I158 00] SEM ‘2IN1IBYIYIIE pue wio) Sulasiyde uo pasniog Ajiaeay
‘ea1M2 sholaasd 'suun QT J49pun spafoad Suipnpul “uawdojaasp
J0 a83uel sapim e 01 jood By} 01 s58278 Suimo|je B1I2}1ID UOIIEpUSWILIODAL
VD PasiAal siuatupuawe ayl ‘Ajunuiwod auo Aue u) 3uisnoy atuodu}
mo| Sunenuasuod jou jo |eof sAunod ayl yum jualsisucd Suisnoy
awoout paxiw Sunowotd ajym ‘vonsnposd Buisnoy adiopjiom pue
a[qepJoyje s1aLlany 1ey] YYD oYz 104 weaSoid Buisnoy e 91892 SUOISIADY

“{dHM) weagoud Suisnol 2210434084 SH JO Aljeuonduny
ay) ajepdn o} poya 5AIUN0D 3Yl YUM DIEINSUILLWOI SuoisIa0sd
wawanoa pue ‘@uendwod ‘udtsap sssappe 03 gzad W (daa)
weidoud snuog AJsuag OYHIM 24} 01 SJUsWpuaWe pajeniul vy ayl

sjuswpuawy wetdold snuog Aysuaq

***0T0T Ul MaN

S1I0JH Sutuue]J jusumdo[osspay Surtosu()

‘Suisnoy Aj1apje awoduL MO| 10} BpISe 13s 24 [[im spun 1afoad
1e103 243 Jo %0g (IWY Jo %ob1-209) spjoyasnoy awodu| 33elapoLl
ygnoiyy mo| paijenb 01 uonornsal paap Lq papirosd aq ysnw
sHun 1€ 10 yob suun 4gq L2 10} eLI2YIY> OYYDM 13W O3[0.d "100[}
puncag ay} uo aseds [1e324 JS 000°L B 3pN|dU] 03 Ay s5a43U0D UO
saoe '€ uo 3>ajoad [ejuss AIey nw 9ol ‘A103s-S - ZPIY UWININY -

anuany ajeBi1sopn uo Ayljoe}
afe103s 1ed anbiue R We auy Js 000‘0s ‘A0S — YNEA CaSNIA <«
J8qusd [eardins Juanedino /30140 1e3paw e Joy Suip|ing Sunsixa ay)
sasodindal — (aJe) Aeq au] Ajunjioddo Jawaoyg) sanq 1enD €T4T <«

:0Z0Z/610Z Ad W 1481s vy Aq pamsinaa spaafoad |esanas Suowe aue
Suimo)joy sy “sjood {y331) eaty uoidaixg Aruasiniuo) uoielsodsues)
OVHOM BYy: pue (4gq) weadoud snueg Ausuag OVHOM 2yl azyuan
0} YYD 243 woJj poddns j0 uonepusWIWIOIA B aAlRIBl 1shwt 13afoad v
*OVHIM 241 Jo splepuels ufisap pue suonendal juawdojaaap Auedoad
a8yl pue ‘uejd wdwdo@Eaapay Ayl JO s|eod syl YUm ASUBISISUOI JO)
s1afoud Suimalass ‘sallepunog s) ulyum juswdolaaap (e Joj Ayoedes
Sulpuawiwiodas e U SPE vy 3yl 'ueld Juswdolpasapsy s,vd) 9yl Jo
uonejuawa|dwl 9y} piemo] |je ‘salpIsualul pue saiIsulp pasealsiul pue
“Juawdojanap asn paxiw Jo} mojje o3 udisap ueqin pue ‘ssjdidulid apod
paseq wuoj ‘Yymosd Jews ‘sannuadul Aloyengas 4Snoayy eate sswoy
aJsapanjag/eiedisapy ayy jo juawdojanapss pue juawdojarep oy
a28e1nosud 03 D24 9yl Aq 9ooz Ul pausiqeiss (J3a1n) apo) juswdolaasqg
pueq payiun s,Aunod ayi yum Aepaao 3uiuoz |eads e S| OYYIM BYL

(ovddOM) LelaA0 Suluoz
24y Juswdopaspay Ajunwiwod a3eSisopm

'SALLIALLDY MAIATH LINTFWJOTIAIA

V)



H 140d34 IVNNNY 0Z/61 Ad 4D LYDLSIM

ﬂm.v.m EEME& *3AY JBUBJES UO SIUN OM) 78 “3AY MEUISES LD S1UN {ddN 5,740 943 W0} Spuny pszi(izn laumoatuoy)
sacpds Jngng g siuawaaosduwi] aunyonanspaful 2ignd (U] M3 — UOLINJISU0D B0y Ajtwey-a)5uls map
‘S paiy sN>04TN

s

BuisnoH pajeaouay g MaN

ofei103s Alojuaaut [9A3| Buideaspue|
-13{nw 7R Wooumoys — {[1eaL AJejiw) uoisuedxa 1@ Adoued jan} ‘apedey mau - (~any ssaidun))

saydeayqg wijed ayj JO SIeIL010|A Anunod may Loiyelijiqeyad 310315-) 'g UOIE}S se5 UolnBy)

*2IUBUSUIELL
yled SuioSuo Joj ajqisuodsas ag |m vy 8yl
“uawnedsp ayl yum y) ue ysnoayl ‘Surdedsspue)
pue sease  Suneas ‘unod  [eqidyseq ey

e ‘aunjandis Aepd s,ualppiya e sapnjui yied sy "0z
Ad Suunp pooytoqudiau siyfioy aJapanpg oyl ul
Py uewdpug pue “py oJuelp epLio]d 18 10| J9U10D . o
juesea e uo yied 193d0d e pajniisued Juawitedaqg : kR T Lo

UoIIeR.129Y 1§ SHied Yl ‘SIHUNWHLOI PaAIasISpUN
ul saipunuoddo aaeds uado pue ucijeasnas puedxa Co_m:ma ER, Co_umw___n_m:wm jef>aWioc)

03 suoneooie Suipuny 98qD sAwne) i Aurzisn SLOHLOUd INAIWNJOTHAHAAY
yied sYSIoH 249paajag |
VILNAJISTY 2 TVIDYAININOD NO LHOYTTLOdS

W2



H 1HOd3Y TYNNNY 0Z/61 A4 V4D J1¥YDLSIM

DIO'DIIDIDDISIM MMM
0 sgam S, yy) IYr uo 3jgoppap  si pup  Auno)
Y3038 wind {0 13[fondwo) 3 3431 ay3 Yim pafif sj Loda siyi

1S v a1pbisapy Aq parodaid si pioday pnuuy siy

410*A0d2qd @ Inquu
TOTX1818-0v9-195
IUBISISSY ANBISIUIUIPY
Ing 1ejAl

Hio'aoBoqd@ouleisdd
90TXI8T8-09-195
tadoayjoog

auleIaD UauIE)

Fro rodHqd)jjsuuadp
SOTXT8TI8-0v9-195
Jadeuen 198loidf1auue|d Joluas

VH-Vid ‘|[Puuag asiuag

Hio'roHqd@ayaiwe
COTXTI818-0¥9-159
10152.1¢) AANNIAXT

VH-vHd ‘dJIV ‘[2YdIN 9913

4481 YYD 918159

(‘b€ wpigord)
Buisnoy ‘€ paay snaodq g (*ob'i wbigold) uswudojarapay g JuswidopEasg
Jjuouo03 ‘L valy sno4 *NOILVINIWITdWI NV 1d LINIWdOTIATATT

sjuawanosdw) Aadouad JoLiaxs jo
51502 8Y3} 195140 03 SpooYI0qyIaU |ERUDPISII SIUIOH D19PIA[ag PUB S31e1ST
93e8159M 2Y) Ul SISUMOIUIOY [ENPIAIPUL § OF PapIeme 31am spuny juels
JUBLLBSINQUUID] uonEAIaSald pooylogydiaN w 06'zoT‘zés ‘ozf61 A4 U]

'sjuawanosdwi Apadoad touaixa jesausd pue ‘Ajiqissadde ‘uonjezuayieam
‘selausnpyap jednjandls ‘sapuspyap apod Sulisixe 1294100 01 0Q0‘9S JO
wNWIXew e o} dn sisumoawoyy 03 Sulpuny juesd ajgesinguuial s19}j0 vy
ay1 H203s Juisnoy Ajnwey apduis Builsixa jo ucnearasasd ayl #Beinodus o)

(ddN) weaSoud jJueln UoHeAIRSAd PoolloqydiaN

sassaulsnq 01 aduelsisse uedd yuswdo[@aap 23is U; 0004651 ~

067108tz Bulje1o) sisuMmodloy 03 51uetd ddN ¢l ~

:papiaodd sey wyd a1} ‘Zooz aduls

~anuany aedi1sam Suiluoy s1oafoad uswdojaaap pue sassauisng
03 9|qejieae s1 uipunj jueld ajqesinguuias ul gpp‘oss 01 dn "Judwdojanap
[E13UBpisAI Mau 3pnjiul 0} papuedxa sem esdosd ayy ‘gTog vl -eiueieadde
Jewssixe 9y} Burnoldw) Ag sanjaadoasd 2oy apelddn o3 sisumo Apadoad
jedowwod aSesnodus 01 paysijgerss sem wesdosd ayl "suoneAOUDd
pue ‘uoisuedxa SuIp[Ing ‘UoOIINIISUOD MIAU LM pajeldosse 51500 Suipiwaad
pue ‘einpaayyaie  ‘Sundsuiua  palejss-1oefold pue  suswanoiduwg
J0191X8 Jo 150D ayi Aeyop dj@y 03 ease yH) 9yl UlyHm Sassaulsng
pue swawdojaasp Bunsa pue mau 01 3jgejieae s1 Suipuny juel

(vas) weidouid uean asueysissy wwdopasq aus

SINVHOO0Ud HALLNHONI VHD

\%



Bill signed for tax exemptions

Bruce Thomson

Mon 5/24/20271 12:00 PM

To:Patrick Rutter <PRutter@pbcgov.org>; Ramsay Bulkeley <RBulkeley@phbcgov.erg>; Patricia Behn <PBehn@pbcgov.org>; Jon MacGillis
<JMacGill@pbcgov.org>; Doug Wise B. <DWise@pbcgov.erg>; Oscar Alvarez <QAlvarez@pbcgov.org>; Robert Santos-Alborna
<RSantosAlborna@pbcgovorg>; Wendy Hernandez N. <wnhernan@pbcgov.org>; Denise Pennell <DPennell@pbcgov.org>; Kevin Fischer
<KFischer@pbcgov.org>;

Cc:Robert P. Banks <RBanks@pbcgov.org>; William Cross <wcross@pbcgov.org>; Willie Swoope <WSwoope@pbcegov.org>; PZB-Planning <PZB-
Planning@pbcgov.org>; Scott Cantor B. <SCantor@pbcgov.org>; Joanne Keller M. <JKeller@pbcgov.org>; Quazi Bari <QBari@phcgov.org>; Alex
Biray <ABiray@pbcgov.org>; Monica Cantor <MCantor@pbcgov.org>; Scott Stene A. <SAStone@pbcgov.org>; Katelyn Cucinotta
<KCucinotta@phcgov.org>; Chelsea Koester <CKoester@pbegov.org>; Jeff Gagnon <JGagnon@pbcgov.org>; Megan Houston
<MSHouston@pbcgov.org>;

A bill approving an expansion of the Affordable Housing Ad Valorem tax exemption, an independent living items tax
exemption, and several tax holidays for Florida was signed into law on Friday (HB 7061, Chapter No. 2021-31).
Some details of the legislation are included below

The tax exemption items take effect on July 1, 2021.

The bill also includes changes to homestead assessments/exemptions (see voluntarily elevated property) and
educational property exemption for ad valorem taxes).

Link to the complete copy of HB 7061...
bttps:/iwww.myfloridahouse.gov/Sections/Documents/loaddoc.aspx?
FileName=_h7061er.docx&DocumeniType=Bill&BillNumber=7061&Session=2021

EXPANSION OF AFFORDABLE HOUSING AD VALOREM TAX EXEMPTION

Florida law currently offers property owners who provide affordable housing to low-income individuals and families
a 50 percent discount for property taxes on these units. The discount applies only to properties with more than 70
units and begins after the property has been recorded as an affordable housing property for 15 years. This bill
expands the property tax discount to 100 percent of property taxes. Continuing the current requirement, the 100
percent exemption does not begin until the property has been recorded as an affordable housing property for 15
years.

ot
L]
(A
’_l
562
~1
&8
e
Hh
1
O
%
jo
jl
o
[
1]
b
O
o
4]
[._l.
=}
O
oo
s
o]
k%)
@O
3]
fall
Lo
O
e
11
=
ke
ct
-
&
]
i

-
3
AH)
=
=
!._!
bt
-
H‘
]
=
H'
=

b

o]
ot
o}

w.h
i
4]
1
[l
g
w
s
=3
=
B
4]
ot
in
|
e
L5
[

sguirements of this

paragraph is <onsidsred property used for a chariztakle purposse
"y

gnd is exempt skgil oweo-doce o 5
4 o L2XE e

ad valcorem tax Dpeginning with the

]

January 1 assessment afte leted vear of the term

L]
o
o
iy
-
n
)
—
1
[#]
=
a1

of the recorded agrsemsnt on thoss portions of the affordable
n

nousing property that previds housing To natural persens ¢

L]

>
'

families mesting the extrsmelv-low-income, vervy-low-income, or

\ 4



- - - - - —— — -

vroject must:

1. Ceontain more than 70 un

afforgarle heousing to natural

perscons oOrxr

its that are used toc provide

families meeting the

axirsmely-low-income, wvery-low-income, or low-income limits
specified in s. 420.0004; and

2. Be subject to an agreement with the Tlorida Housing
Finance Corpecration reccrded in the official records of the
county in which the property is located te provide affordable

heusing to natural perscns or families meeting ths

lew-~income, very-lcw-income,

5. 420.0004.

extremely-

or low-income limits specified in

This exemption <iseswire terminates if the property nc longer

serves extremely-low-inceome, very-low-income,
rersons pursuant tc the recorded agreement.

(p) Tc receive the exemption disesunt under paragravh (a),

or low-income

2 qualified applicant must submit an applicaticn to the county

property appraiser by March

1

-

(c) The property appralser
Prox Y app

11— CEETY
T —r71

D

locs  ompm mlyg o
oy oo

L))
WP

-]
—a—

shall apely the sxemption to

Felee—a¥ those portions of the

th

fo

=

dable hcousing property

W

persons or famillies mesting

incoms, or low-income limits specifiied in s.

certifying the tax roll to the tax collscio

provide housing to natural

420.

very-lov-

G004 befeore

SrE e mnyn b o ey g

= P oI T ~ R REWS
= 3 R T e N e T e A ey
SN |
Ea—a—a—a—a o= o
- i b,
oo
L i B
i S e
A i P . =la =117 So= Y =1 = PR S |
T B s e S P B T T T - = B = T T R T T =Ry g 4
- ceoo = e 3.0 1= 2= = Py g
=TS = SR o e e — ey e oy R gl S S




